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ABOUT US

Based in London since 1986 and floated on the London Stock Exchange in 2002, Beazley (BEZ L) 1s
the parent company of a global insurance and reinsurance business operating through Lloyd's
syndicates 2623 and 623 In the UK and Beazley Insurance Company, Inc , a US-admitted carrier in
all 50 states

Beazley 1s a market leader in many of its chosen lines of business, which include professional
indemnity, marine, reinsurance, commercial property and personal lines

About Specialty lines

We underwnte pnimary and excess business from Narth America, Europe and around the world We
operate n a flat organisational structure where underwriters take ownership and a strategic
perspective They are encouraged to focus therr efforts on understanding the needs and aspirations
of their clients We hire the very best peopie who are active risk takers They understand the big
picture as well as the detall, so they can make major decisicns for clients without referral

About Property

With an underwnting presence (in London, the US and Singapore our clients range from Fortune
1000 companies to homeowners We build long term and mutually rewarding relationships with our
chients We shape ourselves around clients and what they need from an insurance policy The
service 1s totally Integrated on every level - from rmaginative and entrepreneunal underwriters, to
speciahst claims and policy wordings teams, supported by a reck solid, in-house technical team Qur
underwriters are empowered to make rapid decisions and give straight answers, so they get the
policy they need And when it comes to making a claim? We want to pay It - not argue about it

About Reinsurance

Our reinsurance clients renew with us year after year because we are specialists at handling
challenging exposures Our underwriters are empowered decision makers who employ the most up-
to-date software and analytical tools to assist nsk assessment We are leaders in our field, and put
time and resources into thinking ahead and developing compelling products that deliver tangible
benefits The reinsurance division also benefits from being part of the larger Beazley Group which
provides the strength and securnty our clients can rely on

About Marnne

Marine insurance 1s a challenging business often involving high-nsk ventures in volatite industnes
We're open-minded and will therefore consider a wide range of marine rnisks In 2006 global trade
rose to US$11 76 trllion and 1s growing Our enthusiastic team has a wealth of expenence and has
established many rewarding relattonships with all sorts of enterprises, from global corporations to
family firms, because we know the nsks their businesses are exposed to inside out Whether 1t 1s
trading goods Internationally or being involved n the actual transportation of those goods, we deliver
the products they need to meet the nisks they face every minute of every day We help insure 10% of
the world's ocean-going tonnage and cover 35% of the top 200 oil and gas companies

Further information about us 1s available at www beazley com




HIGHLIGHTS |

The group has achieved a profit before tax of £138 5m

2007 2006 2005
Profit before tax and foreign exchange 130.3 96 2 79
adjustments on non-monetary items (£m)
Profit before tax (£m) 1385 868 161
Cash and investments {(£m) 1,490.6 1,167 8 8845
Average Investment return 4.9% 4 9% 4 2%
Average rate (reduction} / increase (4%) 6% -




Our vision
To build a premier nsk-taking business measured by results and reputation

Our principles

. We are a specialist insurance and reinsurance business focusing on underwriting and claims
handling

. The portfolio will compnse large and small nsks, with a geographical spread, and having a
balance between short and long tail business

. Products will be distnbuted through brokers

. We will provide an excellent service to brokers

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

The group has had another tremendous year and we are delighted to announce record profits of
£138 5m

Overall

The board I1s delighted to announce record profits before tax of £138 5m (2006 £86 8m) We are
confident that our controlled approach to risk taking leaves us well placed to build on this result
going forward

Underwriting performance

We continued to grow the business durning 2007 Gross premiums written increased by 5% to

£780 5m This was achieved in part through increasing the share of the premiums we wnite through
the combined Lloyd’s syndicates from 78% to 81% in 2007 The US business also increased its gross
premiums contributton significantly to $175 2m (2006 $68 9m)

The group's net premiums written rose by 14% to £652 2m in 2007, mainly as a result of a change
in the way the group buys retnsurance In 2007, we increased the group’s risk appetite to reflect the
stronger capital base by buying less reinsurance For example, In the specialty lines business
reinsurance spend fell from 26% of gross premium 1n 2006 to 17% n 2007

Market conditions

On average, the rate charged for business we renewed fell by 4% in 2007 (2006 increase of §%)
Rating levels generally still compare favourably to the early 2000°’s The specialty lines business
performed better than initially expected with decreases in rates of only 5% Our shorter tail property
Insurance businesses enjoyed a reasonable start to the year but saw rates come under pressure In
the second half Property reinsurance rates eased but not to the same extent as the insurance
business

US business development

The US business continued to gather momentum dunng 2007 Premiums written by US-based
underwriters were $175 2m - more than two and a half times the $68 9m wrntten In 2006 The
business was established in 2005, writing bustness through our managing general agent (MGA) on
behalf of both our syndicates at Lloyd's and our domestic insurance company, Beazley Insurance
Company Inc (BICt) This platform enables us to access business that would not traditionally have
come to the Lloyd's market To supplement the existing business, we acquired in February 2007 an
MGA in Chicago called Sapphire Blue, which writes professional and general hability insurance for
long term care institutions

During 2007 $64 3m was wnitten directly to our Lloyd's syndicates and $110 9m was generated by
BICI, the admitted market insurance company During the year the US operations extended their
product range from professional and management liability insurance to include mid-sized
commercial property




in Aprit 2007 we increased the capital of BICI by a further $45m, bnnging the total capital retained to
$105m In November AM Best upgraded the company’s financial strength rating from A-to A This
rating improvement should provide further support for the development of the underwnting platform
in the US

Combined ratio

The group’s combined ratio remained stable at 88% The claims ratio fell to 50% (2006 53%) In
2007 we released £64 1m (2006 £31 Om) of the 2006 year end claims reserves These reductions
have been from reserves In both catastrophe exposed businesses and specialty ines business The
absence of major catastrophes enabled us to release £30 7m from our property, reinsurance, and
marine accounts, while in specialty ines we were able to release £33 4m due to the continuing
positive development of claims experience We are hopeful that this positive claims development wiil
continue in 2008

We continue to invest in our US platform, which was one of the factors which increased our expenses
ratro by 3% to 38% Dunng 2007 US employee numbers rose by 42 to 153

Investment performance

Investment markets were particularly difficult in 2007 with the fallout from the global credit crisis
beginning in the summer followed by volatile equity markets in the second half of the year In sprte of
this instability, we were able to record increased investment income of £64 9m (2006 £48 3m) -a
return of 4 9% (2006 4 9%) We were impacted only marginally by the sub-prime mortgage bonds
mark down - holding around 1% of our investments in these assets - none of which were
collateralised debt obligations (CDO's), and all are AAA-rated The portfolie compnses mainly fixed
Income bonds and cash, with less than 10% invested in other investments such as equities and
hedge funds

Capital

The group’s capital position remarmns strong In the finance director's section of this report, he
descnbes the compositicn of the capital base - a mixture of shareholders funds, long term debt and
short term banking faciities The last of these, a syndicated £50m short term letter of credit faciirty,
was recently renewed The capital 1s used to support Lloyd's underwnting, the US insurance
company, and to fund acquisitions of small insurance companies and MGA’s which fit strategically
with the business

In Novermber 2007, following a review of the group’s capital position, the board authonsed a rolling
on-market share buyback programme to return excess capital to shareholders We announced that
5% of our shares would be bought back and held as treasury shares within the group At the end of
2007, £5 1m of shares representing 0 9% of our share capital had been repurchased

We were pleased that Standard & Poors {S&P) upgraded our enterprise nsk management (ERM)
rating to “strong” This places us in the top 14% of insurers and reinsurance companies worldwide A
strong enterprise nsk management culture throughout the organmisation 1s a key asset to take us
through the market cycle

Dividend

The board propose a final dividend of 4 Op per share and an additional special dividend of 4.0p per
share This brings the full year dividend, inciuding the intenm dividend, to 10 Op per share (2006

4 8p} The final dividend and the special dividend will be pand on @ May 2008 to shareholders
registered on 18 Apnif 2008

Management update

Since August 2007, Andrew Beazley has been undergoing medical treatment This 1s progressing well
and has only reduced to a imited extent his day to day involvement in the business As and when
required dunng this pencd, Micholas Furlonge, co-founder of Beazley, has taken on Andrew's
responsibifities as Chief Executive and Chairman of the Executive Committee Johnny Rowell has




taken over from Andrew as chairman of the group's underwnting committee This committee looks at
all underwnting related matters within the group The specialty lines dimsion 1s undergoing a
development of management structure that includes the formation of a new division, the poliical
and contingency group (PCG)

Conclusion

We generated record profits in 2007 - a testament to the skill and hard work of our people We
continue to search out opportunities for growth and profit through carefully targeted initiatives,
particularly in relation to US operations We moenitor developments closely in all our markets and will
respond to the market cycle in the same disciphined fashion as we have done 1n the past

Jonathan Agnew
Chairman

BUSINESS REVIEW

2007 has been another excellent year for the group We have continued to grow the business -
searching out strategic openings, pursuing vigorously the most profitable opportunities as well as
buiding on long term chent relationships

Strategy

Our vision 1s to build a premium nsk-taking business measured by results and reputation
Underpinning this vision are the following four principles

¢ We are a specialist iInsurance and reinsurance business focusing on underwrniting and claims
handhng

e The portfolio will comprise both large and small nisks, with a geographical spread, and a
balance between short and long tail businesses
Products will be distnibuted through brokers
We will provide an excellent service to brokers

The enablers that will help us achieve this are

e Access to business worldwide
Developing new ways of providing customers with access to insurance products will help us grow the
business profitably

e (Claims management
An exceptional claims management capability can be a source of competitive advantage for the
group Consequently, we are making a significant investment in this area

s Informed underwniting decisions
The knowledge and expertise of underwriters 1s central to our ability to develop the classes of
business we write

Access to business worldwide

The Lloyd's broker network provides us with access to large complex specialist insurance risks from
throughout the world and Lloyd's and London continue to be the hub for this type of business We
have also established offices in a number of overseas locations to access business that would not
nermally come to London

US business

The US 1s by far the largest non-life insurance market In the world and has one of the highest levels

of penetration by brokers through whom we deal The US business is fully integrated with our London
business and our underwriting 1Is managed on a product line basis We regard our US operations as a
natural extension of the Lloyd's business - we target markets we know well Having a presence on the




ground enables us to insure middle market and small scale nsks which we would not normally insure
through London

During 2007 the business grew with premiums increasing to $175 2m for the year (2006 $68 9m)
Of the US$175 2m, $110 9m (2006 $35 9m) was wntten through BICI, with the remainder bemng
written directly to our two syndicates The chart below illustrates both the growth In the business
overall and the growing importance of the insurance company in generating these premiums

Dunng 2007 we extended the branch network in the US, expanding both specialty lines and property
businesses Qur head office 15 1n Farmington, Connecticut and we have offices in 8 other US states

Specialty ines, wrote $134 6m in 2007 (2006 $57 3m) Of this, $90 4m was written on behalf of
BICI and a further $44 2m for the Lioyd's syndicates The specialty ines team 1n the US targets small
to rmid-sized customers offenng a variety of professional iIndemmnity insurance (the current biggest
segment being architects and engineers), and management hability insurances (principally directors’
and officers’ hability and employrment practices hability) In February 2007, we acquired Sapphire
Blue, a Chicago-based MGA, which wntes professional and general lability insurance for long term
care Institutions  We knew the organisation well, having supported the agency's business for a
number of years In 2007 we wrote $16 1m through Sapphire Blue

The property group, which writes both commercial property insurance and high-value homeowners
business in the US, wrote premiums of US$39 3m 1n 2007 {2006 $10 3m) We wnite US commercial
property business on both an admitted basis through BIC), and on a surplus lines basis for the
account of our Lloyd's syndicates The admitted market business, which underwrites mid-sized
commercial risks, was launched in February 2007 and i1s supported by our internally developed
Beazley Trade underwnting system and offers brokers and clients service standards rarely matched
in the domestic market The high value homeowners’ bustness, based in Florida, continues to
develop a reputation as a high quality local insurer, writing business on a surplus lines basis In 2007
it wrote premiums of $14 3m (2006 $10 3m)

Accessing markets worldwide

We continued to search out new geographical opportunities in 2007, wnting business for the first
time through our new branch offices in Pans and Singapore, complementing those offices already
established in Hong Kong and the US The France and Singapore offices both operate on the same
basis, sourcing business locally on behalf of the Lioyd's syndicates Building these branch operations
enables us to access business we would not normally see, diversifying the portfolio geographically In
France we wnte professional indemnity insurance, within our specialty Iines team, mainly focusing on
protection for insurance brokers and agents In Singapore, a team within the property group writes
specialist engineering risks and 1s managed through the UK

Claims management
Unlocking the value in claims

We continued investing in the claims service during 2007 The results to date have been positive,
delivering improved underwriting and pricing capabilities, high client retention rates, lower cost of the
claims, and improved confidence in results and reserving Clients - both insureds and brokers -
along with competrtors recognise the benefits of this investment In a poll of over 3,000 nisk
managers, insurers, rensurers and brokers conducted by Reactions magazine, Beazley was awarded
Best Insurance Company for Claims Handling Furthermore, the specialty ines claims team won
Insurance Day’s Claims Team of the Year award where the team was described by Insurance Day as
having “demonstrated an enviable track record in handling complex claims and a clear structure
highlighting the relationship between underwriting and claims professionals”

We have chosen to differentiate our approach to claims service from competitors  We do not have a
separate claims department -claims managers and underwriters are integrated by product ine We
pride ourselves on high qualhty, appropriately sized teams, with specialist skills  For example, 1n
specialty ines many of our claims managers are sourced from partner and senior associate roles in
top law firms  Most have over 10 years’ expertence and expertise in specialist areas, such as the
insurance of architects and engineers, professional and general hability and employment practices




In the property division, claims managers each have at least 14 years’ experience In the marine
division, we employ a chief engineer of ships to evaluate the claims, finding alternative solutions to
clients’ exposures and our own

We adopt a team based approach to claims, particularly in specialty ines where third party claims
can generate significant complexity, and have developed analytical tools to support our efforts We
have also refined our approach in the selection of counsel and adjusters and are working closely with
them to improve their practices Last year, we decided to set up claims operations in the US to
manage US professional and management liability claims emanating out of both Lioyd's business
and BICI This has enabled us to tap into new talent pools for claims managers, to develop closer
relationships with clients, and to achieve better results on claims by supporting clients in person at
mediations and arbitrations As a consequence, we have continued to grow these operations

We remain confident that the energy invested in this important area will continue to benefit both
clients and shareholders We believe that there 15 potential to add more value in this core area

Informed underwriting decisions
Rating Environment

Cumulative rate changes since 2001

Overall the rates charged for business we renewed fell by 4% in 2007 (2006 an increase of 6%)

This reduction should be viewed In the context of the historically high rates seen in the market at the

end of 2006, as demonstrated by the chart above Since 2001 rates across all our lines of business

have increased by 49% I

In the property division, rates reduced by 2% The reductions are a reflection of a relatively benign
clarms environment, particularly on the catastrophe exposed parts of this account Similar rating
pressure was also experienced by our reinsurance team in the later stages of 2007 Despite this,
overall, this business saw rates increase by 5% In 2006 the catastrophe parts of these insurance
accounts saw significant rate increases as a result of the high level of claims following the
devastating hurncane seascn in 2005

Similarly the marine business has faced increasing competition across all ines, particularly in marine
cargo and energy, where rates have fallen by 7% and 9% respectively These are insurance risks we
know well, and their pricing reflects this knowiedge

The largest line of business, specialty lines saw a 5% rate reduction The overall specialty lines
account has been trading at historically high levels for a number of years Premiums achieved in
2007 were 58% higher than that for comparable nisks in 2001 We are confident of the level of
profitability in specialty ines supported by the pricing methods employed, nsk management
approaches adopted, and claims handhng techniques applied

Growth and balance

In 2007 gross premiums written increased by 5% to £780 5m This is only partly explained by the '
increase in ownership of the managed premium capacity at Lloyd's, where we now own 81% (2006

78%) The main reason for the increase Is the growth of our prermiums written through our

operations in the US

The balance between our locally underwritten US business and our Lloyd's business (of which US
risks are also a major component) 1s a key part of our strategy to manage the insurance ¢ycle By
marketing insurance products through these separate, but complementary, distribution channels we
can achieve a less volatile business mix than a “Lloyd’'s only” strategy

Qutlook

2008 will be a more challenging year for the insurance industry and will give us the opportunity to
distingutsh ourselves from the competition We have built a platform that s differentiated from peers



in the products we offer (we are the largest insurer of US professional liability business at Lioyd's),
the way we access business through cur US operations, and our approach to claims management

Over the past two years, strong market conditions and an absence of significant catastrophe losses
have contributed to excellent results across the sector The area of most competition i1s the large
catastrophe-exposed syndicated property business where there are few barriers to entry  Although
our inceme In this area is expected to fall in 2008, these lines will still form a significant part of our
portfolio and represent one of our core competencies We expect this dechine to be counterbalanced
by the growth of the US operations We continue to constantly mornitor the cycle across lines of
business as “eternal vigilance” 1s the key to success and market conditions may alter rapidly

The US strategy 1s to scurce business that s not subject to the same competitive pressures as the
Lioyd's market business The US operations are now well established and we expect this business to
continue to grow substantially in 2008 We have set a target for premiums underwritten locally in the
US of $250m

Our people are closely aligned to the interests of cur shareholders Management and staff own 15 6
millien shares (4% of the company), and underwnte £10m of capacity through our Lloyd's syndicate

Managing the insurance cycle remains our key objective, and with more than 21 years’ expenence of
market cycles, the challenges are not unfamihiar to us We look forward to 2008 based on our
current market position, strategic focus and experienced team of underwriters, claims and support
staff No one likes to see a market soften, but we expect the cycle to create opportunrties for
established, well diversified, underwrting focused businesses like ours to create substantial long
term profits

Andrew Beazley
Chief executive
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Specialty lines

Architects and engineers defiver complex projects with the utmost precision With industry expertise
and in-depth knowledge of the risks involved, our underwriters write tnsurance for 27 of the top 50
architects and engineers in the US

Profile

Led by Johnny Rowell since 1892, specialty lines includes professional and management
habiiity iInsurance as well as political risks and contingency business Together these lines
compnise approximately half the group's premium income In February 2008 the decision was
taken to form a new division for our political nsks and contingency group (PCG) Henceforth
specialty ines will focus exclusively on professional and management hability [ilnes Adnan
Lewers, who headed the PCG team within specialty ines, will lead the new dwvision

In many of the markets we serve, we are market leaders We hold particularly strong positions tn
lawyers’ professional liability and architects’ and engineers’ professional hability The healthcare
professional hability portfolio Is also substantial, comprising some of the largest and best run
hospitals in the United States, as well as long term care facilities and a wide range of miscelianeous
healthcare nsks such as blood and tissue banks The technology, media and business services team
provides errors and omissions cover for some of the fastest changing businesses on earth

In management liability, the teams long term focus has been on non-financial institutions, which
protected us from the effects of the US sub-prime mortgage crisis iIn 2007 We write both directors’
and officers’ (D&O0) insurance and employment practices llability (EPL) insurance for a wide array of
public, private and non-profit organisations

Market overview

2007 was a testing but rewarding year for specialty lines  Competition intensified and rates edged
down in many of the lines of business in which we specialise But by employing the cycle
management skills that we have honed through previous underwnting cycles, we continued to
identify attractive business opportunities Gross written premiums in 2007 rose 9% from the
previous year to £394 9m, while rates across our business fell by approximately 5%

The US 1s by far the world's largest market for professional and management liability insurance and
we write US nisks both at Lloyd's and from our offices around the US However, the business 1s
geographically diversified, with offices in Pans and Hong Kong as well as London  The locally
underwritten US business, which grew strongly in 2007, compnises rnisks that are not normally shown
to Lloyd’s underwriters, either for regulatory reasons or because their smaller size makes them
uneconomic to place in London

The US operations made a sigmficant contnibution to overall specialty lines premiums, increasing
from $57 3m in 2006 to $134 6m in 2007 The largest segment, architects’ and engineers’
professional hability business, wrote $57m of premium income locally in the US The growth of
business in small scale and mid stzed nisks, made possible by our US operations, 1s an important ‘
element of our cycle management strategy

Current performance

Softering markets test the mettle of underwriters who must balance the goal of writing profitable
business with retaining clients attracted by lower priced competitors  High quality claims service and
nsk management expertise and specific industry sector knowledge play an important role in
Increasing client loyalty in such an environment We continued to invest in both these areas in 2007

We also began to promote skills and services directly to clients and prospective chents in 2007,
running advertising for architects’ and engineers’ business in Engineering News-Record, a leading US
publication Brand-building 1n this way 1s only permissible in the admitted market due to regulatory
restrictions on the promotion of surplus lines carners




Qutlook

We expect competition will intensify further in 2008 Rates are dechiring from histonically high levels
but we expect to continue to identify profitable underwnting opportunities We will manage costs
carefully while continuing to invest in the skills and technologies that make i1t attractive for brokers
and clients to do business with us and which enhance our nsk selection capabilities

Clatms service will continue to be a major differentiator for us In 2007 we won two major awards in
the London market for our claims service and independent research indicates that brokers are
increasingly appreciative of our claims service A claim is a *moment of truth” in an insurance
relationship that can have a major impact on future client loyalty Within specialty ines, claims are
frequently highly complex, meaning that good service i1s not easily replicable by competitors

We plan to leverage other strengths that denve from our cuiture, corporate structure and history As
the US economy has slowed and the dollar has weakened, many US clients have sought to build their
business internationally As they do this, they are eager to partner with an insurer that has extensive
expernience of international risks
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Property

The financial secunty provided by insurance is vital to the success of commerce in the modern world
Qur property underwriters provide the leadership, expertise and capactty for the insurance
programmes of some of the world's most advanced and complex commercial developments

Profile

Led by Jonathan Gray since 1992, the specialist underwnting teams in the property group lead the
programmes of US Fortune 1000 clients and insure some of the world's largest construction

projects In addition to corporate clients and engineenng the group insures homeowners, jewellers’
risks and small commercial property chents All told, the property group accounts for almost a quarter
of the group’s gross premiums written

With expansion in the US, we are also able to write commercial property risks on both an admitted
and non-admitted basis locally in the US, as well as US high value homeowners' nsks on a non-
admitted basis The diverse nature of our clients, class types and distribution platforms enable us to
provide the group with a well-balanced portfolio and positions us well to manage the cycle

Market overview

Property rates entering 2007 were at a cyclical high, which inevitably, led to an increase In capacity
in most markets around the world Consequently, there was downward pressure on rates in most of
the property classes, which has recently accelerated on the back of a henign hurncane season One
exception 1s the UK homeowners' market where rates have increased following the floods in the
summer :

In the US more business 1s being retained in the domestic market as local carriers become more
competitive in their pncing and terms and conditions

Current performance

The amount of business led by the property group 1n 2007 remained broadly consistent with 2006 at
67% of premiums written (2006 70%)

Rates decreased by an average of 2% across all ines in the property group dunng the course of
2007 compared with 2006, with the engineering and commercial property accounts experiencing the
largest decreases of 7% and 5% respectively However, during the fourth quarter rates on US
commercial property risks deteriorated further This 1s still a key segment in our portfolio and we're
confident of its continued profitability

Our MGA had ancther successful year with premiums wnitten increasing from $10 3m in 2006 to
$19 6m 1n 2007, following the expansion of the product range to include small commercial business
in addition to high value homeowners' Insurance ,

In addition to the MGA |, our presence in the US expanded further through BICI which began
underwriting mid-sized commercial nsks in February Our entry into this market received a very
positive reaction and written prermiums for the penod through to the end of December total
US$6 5m

The engineenng team had another successful year in 2007 We opened a Singapore office In
November 2006 and our local presence has been received extremely well with an excellent showing
of business

The UK homeowner market had a difficult year with the floods in June and July costing the insurance
industry in excess of £3bn Our loss from both events 1s estimated to be £7 5m, which i1s well within
our realistic disaster planning scenarios Dunng the course of the year we made further progress at
rolling out our revised rating tables, which have been compiled using the latest peril and ifestyle
data avallabie Rate increases have averaged between 10% and 15%
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We have continued to build upon our reputation as property insurance specialists, and have been

acknowledged as providing a fast and responsive underwriting and claims service In the US we have

been able to promote the ability of BICI to 1ssue commercial property policies upon binding as a i
major differentiator from the domestic market

Outlook

We continue to see the US as creating the greatest opportunities for our business, both in London
and on the ground 1n the US We have planned for further growth in our MGA operation, not only In
the high value homeowners' business but also for small commercial risks where we are expanding
our product range

We expect the rating environment for large commercial risks te continue to be challenging in 2008

and see greater opportunities on small commercial nsks where there 1s less competition To enable

us to access and service this business we have established a small business unit, which !
encompasses our underwriing in London and the MGA

Further growth of business underwntten through BICI is anticipated as our reputation of being able to
offer expenenced underwriters, flexible terms and rapid policy delivery 1s demonstrated to the
market Additional opportunities will also arise with the AM Best rating being revised from A-to A in
the fourth quarter of 2007
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Reinsurance

The calculation and trading of nisk 1s a tughly complex process fundarmental to the insurance and
remsurance business Experience and innovation, combined with a focus on long term relationships,
have enabled our reinsurance team to work successfully with some of the world's most sophisticated
insurance businesses for over 20 years

Profile

Led by Nell Maidment since 1996, the reinsurance division 1s a recognised leader providing capacity
to a significant proportion of the world’'s leading general insurers, some of which have been clients
for over 20 years Specialising in property catastrophe, property risk excess, casualty catastrophe,
aggregate excess of loss and pro-rata business, the team's main exposures outside the US are in the
UK, Europe, Japan, Canada and Australasia The reinsurance division represents 7% of the group’s
2007 gross premiums written

Market overview

After the significant hardening of the reinsurance market expenenced in 2006, pncing continued to
improve, albeit at a more moderate pace, dunng 2007 Further rate increases in the first quarter
were to a degree balanced by moderate reductions dunng the mid-year renewals Overall, we
achieved an average rate increase con a rnisk adjusted basis of 5% across our portfolio  Rates In the
property treaty market rose by 8 3% in the US while outside the US, rates fell by 0 9%

Current performance

The favourable results for the reinsurance division dunng the current penod have been driven by the
very low claims activity experienced in both the 2006 and 2007 accident years Although the 2007
hurrnicane season saw a number of storms including the very powerful category 5 hurricanes Dean
and Felix, none made landfall in areas of high insurance density and so insured losses were modest
The other natural catastrophes which occcurred during 2007, including the storms in Australia, the
bush fires in California and the severe flooding in the UK, were not of sufficient scale to materially
Impact our reinsurance account The largest single event was windstorm Kyrill which resulted in
claims to the reinsurance division of £2 million out of a market loss of approximately £2 5 billion
During the course of the year we developed a new portfolio optimisation model which will assist our
underwriters in deploying our capacity as efficiently as possible

Outlook !
Following a second consecutive quiet year for catastrophe losses 1n 2007, pncing in the reinsurance |
market eased during the first two months of 2008 Rates on average were down around 6% con a

nsk adjusted basis In the US, the smaller, regional specific business generally expenenced greater

reductions than the larger, more complex nsks Outside the US, there was also negative pressure on

pricing, particularly in the smaller non-life markets In markets such as Germany which had suffered

recent loss activity, pricing was more stable Despite the pressure on pricing expernienced which 1s

likely to continue through the rest of the year, we believe the market still offers adequate margm for

reinsurers We aim therefore to continue to diversify our business with measured growth in our core

markets, particularly in Europe
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Marnne

Hull and machinery business has been a key dniver for marne in 2007 The world freight market
remains strong which, combined with high commodrty prices and increasing capacity on larger
contamner ships, has resulted in ever increasing ship values Demand for new vessels following the
upturn 1n trading economy has had a positive impact on the shipbuslding business which in turn 1s
reflected in our builders’ risks boock

Profile

Led by Clive Washbourn since 1998, the marine team are established leaders in all the main classes
they write, which include marine hull, cargo, war and energy We are able to attract the highest
quality business through our leadership position and in-depth knowtedge of the segment As the
portfolio has grown, we have continued to strengthen our underwnting and claims team

Market overview

2007 was another good year for marine underwriting with adequate rating coupled with low loss
frequency to produce excellent results As almost all manne sectors are producing good profits it
was not surpnsing that rates began to reduce more quickly as the year progressed This was
especially so In the energy and war sectors where very large profits will ikely be recorded by most
marine insurers There have been no major capacity withdrawals from erther the Lloyd’s or
international manne markets and therefore rate reductions will continue

Current performance

2007 was a rewarding year for our marine division with record levels of gross premiums at
£139 8m The marine sector has continued to benefit from both the strength of the global economy
and high commoedity prices The greater the values insured the greater the premium we earn

Our hull account has continued to grow on the back of a strong freight market that has resulted in
increasing ship values and full order books for almost every shipyard In the world We have
Increased our written line to take advantage of this buoyant shipping market

The energy market 1s still In a growth phase currently with insured values trending upwards and
investment at historically high levels in many areas For our energy account low, loss frequency and
high rating levels have combined to produce strong returns  We anticipate increased competition
dunng 2008 aithough we believe that the energy class will continue to offer the prospect of good
profits While new capacity has entered the class in recent months the energy insurance market
remains relatively small and we consider that we are very well positioned to take advantage of any
upturn

Our war account, the insurance of ships and aeroplanes against terronst and war rnisks, continues to
perform well because of negligible claims activity Base rates are down but as a market lead we are
In a strong strategic position to take advantage of rate nses In the event of a catastrophic loss

The Lloyd's cargo account has had a difficult year with above normal attntional losses and
decreasing rates This account though s still expected to produce profit

The UK regional marnne account continues its steady growth in a highly competitive market All the
infrastructure is now In place to continue to grow this portfolio profitably

The manne hability account doubled this year, through the addition of a large and well respected
coverholder account This insures the hability for hirers of vessels Our premium rates in the marnne
katility portfolio have dropped only 1 4% for the year and still remain at a level where projected
profitability remains achievable

We have not renewed our participation in a satellite consortium that we have underwritten for four

years, as we believe rates are now too low We will re-enter this class when we can see an
opportunity to make a profit
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Outlook

We look forward to 2008 as a year when we can use the team's underwriting skills to outperform in a
more challenging rating environment We continue to be pleased with the quality of the business
and expect profitability and the long term return to shareholders to be met

As a team we pelieve the market 1s always good i you are adept at navigating the softer market

there are always opportunities to seize profit  Where we can continue to grow the portfoho profitably
we will
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

2007 2006 Movement

£m £m %

Gross premiums written 7805 7451 5
Net premiums written 652 2 5743 14
Net earned premiums 617.2 5096 21
Net investment incorme: 64.9 48 3 34
Other income 10.1 71 42
Revenue 692.2 565 0 23
Net insurance claims 307 4 2707 14
Acquisition and administrative expenses 2374 1796 32
Foreign exchange (gain)/ loss {(31) 223 -
Expenses 5417 4726 15
Finance costs 12.0 56 114
Profit before tax 1385 868 60
Claims ratio 50% 53% -
Expense ratio 38% 35% -
Combined ratio ‘ 88% 88% -
Rate {reduction) / Increase (4%) 6% -
Investment return 4 9% 4 9% -

The group has reported record profits of £138 5m, a 60% increase on 2006 This is achieved despite
increasing competition in underwnting markets and volatiity in investment returns Highlights
include

Gross premiums increased by 5%
Reinsurance purchased by the group reduced from 22 9% of premiums written to 16 4% in 2007
Claims releases of £64 1m (2006 £31 Om), of which £15 6m related to releases from the
catastrophe exposed accounts from the 2006 underwntng year

* Investment return of 4 9%, generating income of £64 9m

Gross premiums written

During 2007, gross premiums written rose by 5% to £780 5m This growth was achieved despite the
4% devaluation of the US dollar in 2007 and 4% reduction In insurance renewal rates Around 70%
of our business I1s written in US dollars - hence the importance of this exchange rate The main
reasons for the increase in premiums were the growth in the US operations - which wrote $175 2m
of premiums tn 2007 (2006 $68 9m), together with the increase In the group’s ownership of the
combined syndicates which rose to 81% in 2007 from 78% in 2006

As highlighted in Andrew Beazley’s section, the business 1s well diversified - both by class of
business and geographical location As well as protecting us from exceptional events, it also enables
us to hold lower levels of capital to support the business

We continue to write 51% (2006 48%) of gross premiums through our largest team - specialty lines

The charts below show the composition of our portfolio in 2007, across types of insurance,
settlement terms, classes of business and geographical reglons
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Reinsurance

Reinsurance 1s purchased for a number of reasons
+ To minimise the impact of catastrophes such as hurricanes,
¢ To provide lead line capabilities to underwriters, and
s As a way of managing capital

In 2007, reinsurance costs decreased by 24 9% to £128 3m As a percentage of the gross premiums
written, it fell from 22 9% to 16 4% dunng the year This was largely the resuit of two decisions the
group made around it’s appetite to retain nisks Firstly, in the specialty ines business we rebalanced
the proportional treaty arrangements by taking on a larger share of the nsks Secondly, in the treaty
reinsurance business we re-underwrote the account in 2007 to be less reliant on the third party
reinsurance market

Combined ratio

The group's combined ratio remained at 88% in 2007 Within this the claims ratio reduced from 53%
to 50%, while the expenses ratio increased from 35% to 38% n 2007

Claims
The claims ratio decreased from 53% to 50% i 2007 This arose due to two principal factors

— Releases of claims reserves held in the short tail accounts, particularly against catastrophe
type rsks, following benign claims activity mainly from the 2006 underwnting year, and
— Releases from our specialty lines account reduced the claims ratio by 5 4% (2006 3 5%)

As the business has matured over the past five years, we have gradually been able to increase the
levels of reserve releases across all classes of business This 1s llustrated in the following chart
which highlights the steady increases in release together with the benefit attributed to the claims
ratio in each year

We found 2007 to be a quiet year in terms of claims activity There were a small number of events
which caused modest claims in the early to mid-part of 2007 Windstorm Kyrill caused losses across
a wide area in Europe in January The UK floods in the summer, firstly in Yorkshire and parts of
Northern England and then the west of England, caused losses within the UK homeowners’
insurance account All these events were contamed within the reserves established for anticipated
losses

Claims ansing from sub-prime exposures

Against the backdrop of increased rmarket commentary about sub-prime mortgages and related
Issues, we set up an internal working party during 2007 tasked with monitoring the nsks to and
opportunities for Beazley As was demonstrated in the late 1990s, Beazley has imited appetite for
professional labity risks within the financial institution sector  This has remained the case and
whilst the number of sub-pnme related cases (as reported recently by Advisen} s approaching 200,
the number of claims to Beaziey ansing out of those cases remains in single figures As such, we
currently expect that our exposure will remain within our reserves and we don't anticipate a change
to our reserving philosophy  Our underwriters and ¢laims managers are skilled at measuring,
predicting, diversifying and mitigating the nsks to Beazley

2006 catastrophe reserves
We were able to release £15 6m in 2007 n respect of claims reserves held at the end of 2006 for
potential catastrophes We were unable to release these reserves at the end of 2006 because at

that stage we were still on nsk for a number of policies we covered, These releases were In the
reinsurance {£5 2m), property (£5 3m), and marine energy {£5 1m) accounts
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Total releases from the short tail accounts, where claims are settled within two years of the policy
period expiring, totalled £30 7m The table on page 104 sets out in which accounts these claims
releases originated, but as you will notice, all ines of business reported favourable adjustments The
reserving approach In these accounts remains consistent with prior years We take a conservative
view of the unexpired policies within portfolios, only making releases once a substantial part of the
account has expired

Specialty ines claims reserve releases

The specialty ines claims reserves continued to develop well In 2007 enabhng us to release a further
£33 4m during the year (2006 £18 Om) We have consistently adopted a cautious approach
towards reserving in this business The nature of these claims Is that for the majonity of classes of
business the corndor of uncertainty surrounding potential losses Is wide 1n the first three years of
development following the premium being written As we gain more certainty in years four and five,
we have a better view as to where claims are likely to settle and we can adjust reserves accordingly

Across alt underwriting years the ultimate claims reserves we were holding have reduced dunng
2007, enabling these releases This can be seen i1n the loss development tables within the notes to ‘
the accounts (page 101) These show loss ratios at various points in time - after 1 year, after 2

years, after 3 years, at the end of 2006, and current These tables also give the size of release made ‘
by underwriting year The majonty of the releases come from the earlier years - £25 5m relating to

the 2004 underwrnting year and pnor |

Expenses

The expenses ratio has been restated tn 2007, {and for 2006 comparatives) so that it includes all
costs We believe that by including all costs within the ratio, this 1s a fairer representation

The expense ratio has increased by 3% to 38% in 2007  This was largely due to the growth in the US
operation and increased profit related vanable compensation In the US we have increased the
number of people employed from 111 to 153 As the business I1s In a start-up phase where costs are
currently growing faster than premiums being written, this has an adverse tmpact on our expenses
ratio The first few years of building the US operation have involved a number of one off costs such
as information technology (IT) development on underwriting systems and faciliies costs in
establishing new offices

It 1s likely that certain of these costs, such as IT, will continue into 2008 - as we search out more
efficient longer term IT ptatforms to support the business It was always known that bullding offices
on the ground in the US would be a more expensive approach than running a pure Lloyd's operation
The reward for this spend will come from the quality and type of business we are able to write (1 e
business that would not come to Lioyd's) These benefits won't be seen imsally, however, but rather
are investments for the future

Employee numbers

In 2007 we continued to build the business through growth in talent, particularly in the US By the
end of 2007 we had 153 people in the US (2006 111), of which 53 were underwriters and a further
18 were claims managers In the UK the headcount level stabilised in ine with the premiums being
written The largest growth areas were n speciaity lines in the US, and support staff in the US - both
in response to the increased premiums and volumes being written The claims team within specialty
lines also increased from 25 to 35 people in line with our service strategy around claims highlighted
in Andrew Beazley's section in this report

Employee numbers 2007 2006
Specialty ines 205 172
Property 71 55
Reinsurance 10 9
Marine 25 28
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Finance (including actuarnal, comphance and internal audit) 63 55
IT 52 43
Ceded reinsurance 13 15
Talent management 12 11
General management and other support 39 31
Total 490 419
UK 326 298
us 153 111
Other (Hong Kong, Singapore, and Pans) 11 10

490 419

Investment performance

2007 was a year of exceptional volatility in financial markets, marked by a collapse of confidence in
credit markets during the secend half of the year Despite this investment income grew to £64 9m
(2006 £48 3m), providing a return of 4 9% (2006 4 9%)

During the first half of 2007, strong economic growth globally, together with rising commaodity prices,
continued to provide upward pressure on mterest rates as inflation concerns mounted However, the
effect of monetary tightening and the escalating cnsis stemming from increasing defaults in the sub-
pnime sector in the US caused a collapse in confidence in financial assets duning the second half, as
mutti-bilhon dollar write-downs were announced by leading banks and investment houses This
particularly extibited itself in the sharp increase in money market spreads over official rates as
money market funding dned up Central banks reacted to the increasing strains in the financial
system by reducing rates and injecting funds, but this did not prevent credit spreads, even of high
quality assets, from widening sharply in the second half However, for the group, the high quality of
our fixed ncome portfolios largely insulated our returns At 31 December 2007 the weighted
average duration of our bond and cash portfolic was one year

The group’s Investments in alternative assets and equities added to the investment returns Hedge
funds achieved a return of 7 5% Meanwhile, the group's equity investments achieved a return of
7 7%

The US fixed income portfolios had a imited exposure to US sub-prnime assets throughout 2007
These are all AAA-rated asset backed secunties and comprised around 1% of group assets as of 31
December 2007 The group does not permit investment in collateralised debt obligations (CDOs} All
these secunities have been consistently marked-to-market throughout the year

We remain comfortable with the overall position of the group's investment portfolios, and anticipate
that duning 2008 some of the spread widening that has dampened fixed income returns in 2007
may reverse as the current credit concerns are worked through We continue to look for
opportunities to enhance returns while imiting volatility of the overall portfolic, both through
Investment in diverse asset classes and by utiising managers with different skili sets  To this end we
have appointed a new manager, BlackRock Investment Management, to manage a portton of the
sterling fixed income assets from January 2008

For regulatory and legal reasons, certain trust funds and deposits are required to be managed
centrally by Lloyd's on behalf of the syndicates These funds are invested in high-grade, fixed income
secunties and their performance 1s detailled separately in the table below

The group maintains funds in cash for vanous operational purposes The majority of these cash
halances are invested in money market funds

The table below highhights the returns received by currency and by investment type
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2007 2006

2007  Annualised 2006 Annuahsed
Average return Average return
£m % £m %

Fixed interest securities
UKE 5504 47 3830 45
Us s 5233 50 4257 44
Lioyd’s managed and other 672 3.7 56 6 39
Hedge funds 607 75 453 111
Equities AT 7 77 225 119
Cash and money market funds 799 2.8 575 37
TOTAL 1,329.2 49 990 6 49

Investment income has also Increased as a result of larger cash and investment balances being
managed by the group The group’s cash and investment balance grew during 2007 mainly due to
additional underwnting of syndicate 2623 1in 2007 and a berign 2 years for major claims

The following chart highlights the growth in investment balances over the past 5 years
Foreign exchange differences arising on non-monetary items

In 2007 the impact of the foreign exchange adjustment on non-monetary items 1S a credit to our
tncome statement of £8 2m (2006 a charge of £9 4m) Non-moenetary items include unearned
premium reserves, remnsurers’ share of unearned premium reserves, and deferred acquisition costs
Under International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), these balances are carrnied at histonic
exchange rates, while monetary items are translated at closing rates This imbalance creates
volatility in our accounts which cannct be hedged as the mismatch i1s not monetary in nature

In 2007, the histonc US dollar rates applicable to the non-monetary balances are weaker relative to

sterling than the closing deollar exchange rate applied This has a positive effect on net assets as the
non-monetary net hability 1s valued lower than when using the closing rate
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BALANCE SHEET MANAGEMENT

Summary balance sheet

Intangible assets
Investments and cash
Insurance recewvables
Reinsurance assets
Other assets

Total assets

Insurance habilites
Borrowtngs

Other habilities
Total labiltties

Net assets

Net assets per share

Intangible assets

2007 2006 Movement
£m £m %
287 219 31
1,490 6 1,167 8 28
199.9 244 0 (18)
353.3 3531 -
108.2 97 4 11
2,1807 1,884 2 16
1,471.9 1,225 6 20
156 7 154 9 1
153 5 184 2 (17)
1,782.1 1,564 7 14
3986 319.5 25
112 1p 89.8p 25

Intangible assets consist of goodwill on acquisitions (£15 5m), purchased capacity in the combined
syndicate (£4 4m), hcences (£4 6m) and capitalised expenditure on IT projects (£8 Om) The total
balance on intangibles increased by £6 8m in 2007 to £28 7m as a result of both the acquisition of
Sapphire Blue, a US based MGA that writes professional and general iability insurance and the
capitahsation of additional IT expenditure in 2007 The T capitalisation relates mainly to building
the large commercial property underwriting platform in the US, ongoing development of the specialty
fines underwnting platform in the US, and development of systems to better manage claims
processes Qur accounting policy Is to depreciate these items over their useful economic life (3
years)

Investments and cash

The group’s portfolio remans mainly invested in high quality, short duration bonds We invest 10 6%
{2006 11 8%) in alternative investments and equities to enhance returns and further diversify risks

associated with investing solely in bonds A breakdown of the growth in the portfolio, by asset type Is
set out below

The group’s strategy Is to use a number of specialists to manage the portfolios in order to diversify
manager rnisk and to give us access to different investment styles and skill sets

2007 2007
Manager Investment Type £m % of total
US $, £, Euro €, CAD $ Fixed
AlllanceBernstern income, equity 9175 615
Conning Asset Management US fixed income i79¢9 120
Wellington Management US fixed income 106 8 72
Alternative iInvestments including
Unicn Bancaire Privée hedge funds 157 9 106
Lloyd's Corporation Fixed income 730 49
Scottish Widows Investment
Partnershup Money market funds 203 14
AlM Global Money market funds 71 05
Bank of America Money market funds 162 11
Other cash balances Current account and deposits 119 08
TOTAL 1.4906
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The performance of the managers and the structure of the investment portfolio 1s monitored by the
chief investment officer who reports to the investment committee, which holds delegated
responsibility from the board for all investment matters

Insurance recevables

Insurance recewvables represent broker balances receivable in respect of premiums we have written
Duning 2007, broker balances decreased by 15% to £199 O9m We continue to outsource the
collection of our premtum broker balances to JMD Specialist Insurance Services Limited, which
operates within the Lloyd’s market as specialist credit controllers

Reinsurance assets

Reinsurance assets represent recoveries from reinsurers in respect of incurred claims (£280 4m),
and the unearned premiums reserve on reinsurance (£72 9m)

Of the recovenes from our reinsurers, £89 1m 1s in respect of claims paid or reported to us, and a
further £191 3m Is an actuarial estmate of the recoveries on claims not yet reported These assets
are managed through

- Minimising nsk through selection of reinsurers who meet strict financial critena (e g minimum
net assets, minimum ‘A’ rating by S&P when initially selected) These critena vary by type of
business {short v& medium taill) The chart below shows the profile {based on S&P rating) of
these assets at the end of 2006,

- Timely calculation and 1ssuance of reinsurance collection notes from our ceded reinsurance
team, and

- Regular monitoring of cutstanding debtor posiion by our reinsurance security committee

We continue to provide against impairment of remsurance recoveries, and at the end of 2007 we
had provided £5 7m (2006 £4 8m) in respect of reinsurance recoveries

Other assets

These are separately analysed in the notes to the accounts The largest items included in the
balance are

- Deferred acquisition costs (£82 Om}
- Deferred tax assets, either against UK or US taxes paid (£4 bm}, and
- Profit commissions recelvable from syndicate 623 (£7 6m),

Insurance habilities

Insurance liabilities of £1,471 9m consist of two main elements, unearned premiums reserve
(“UPR™), and gross insurance claims

-~ Qur unearned premiums reserve (UPR) has increased by 7% in 2007 to £384 3m, mainly due to
increased premiums written The bulk of the UPR relates to the current year Current indicators
are that this 1s profitable and will earn through to the income statement in 2008

- Gross Insurance claims are made up of claims which have been notified to us but not yet paid
and an estimate of incurred but not yet reported claims (IBNR) These are estimated by both the
underwnter and the syndicate actuary through the quarterly peer review process, a description of
which 1s included In note 23 Gross insurance claims increased by 26% in 2007 to £1,087 6m
mainly due to the increase In business written

Borrowings
The group utiises two long term debt facilities

e In 2006 we raised £150m of lower tier 2 unsecured fixed rate debt that 1s payable in 2026
and callable in 2016 The imitial interest rate payable is 7.25%, and
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e An US$18m subecrdinated debt facility raised in 2004 This loan Is also unsecured and
Interest I1s payable at the US interbank offered rate (LIBOR) plus 3 65% These suborchnated
notes are due in 2034 and callable in 2009

At the time of the £150m bond i1ssue we entered into a derivative transaction, whereby we matched
our investment and currency risk by swapping the sterling fixed rate loan into the equivalent of

- £108m of floating rate sterling loans, and
- US$80m of floating rate US dollar loans

These items have been accounted for using hedge accounting for both the floating rate and currency
elements of the transaction

In addition to these borrowings we operate a £50m syndicated short-term banking facility, managed
through Lloyds TSB The facility was successfully renegotiated for two years in November 2007

Currency profit hedging

We minimise currency exposure to the US dollar, which represents the group's largest currency sk,
by estimating US dollar profits each year and selling a proportion each month By the end of each
year we aim for US dollar exposure to be minimal At the end of 2007 we had £67 8m of US dollar
net assets, which mainly relates to our investment in the US In 2007, the group sold US$332m at an
average exchange rate of 2 00 (2006 1 88) We also sell year-end unhedged profits for the second
largest currency exposure, Eurgs, once a year
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CAPITAL POSITION

The group has several requirements for capital

1 Tosupport underwnting at Lloyd's through syndicate 2623 This 1s based on the group’s
individual capital assessment This may be provided in the form of either the group's cash and
investments or debt facihties,

2 To support underwriuing in Beazley Insurance Company, Inc in the US, and

3 To make small acquisitions, such as the Sapphire Blue acquisition in 2007, of insurance
companies or MGA's whose strategic goals are aligned with our own

Our funding comes from a variety of sources

1 £398 6 comes from shareholders funds (1 e net assets) Of this balance, £113 3m 15
unavailable to the group because (t relates to intangible assets, fixed assets or undistributable
syndicate profits

2 £150m was raised in 2006 through a tier 2 subordinated debt issue,

3  An $18m subordinated long term debt with a matunity in 2034, and

4 An undrawn banking facility of £50m provided by a syndicate of banks led by Lloyds TSB

In November 2007 we announced a rolling on-market share buyback programme to repurchase up to
5% of the company's tssued share capital, representing approximately £30m By the end of 2007,
£5 Am (representing O 9% of the company’s shares) had been repurchased The special dwidend of
4 Op per share will distribute an additional £14 5m

2007 2006
£m £m
Sources of funds
Sharehclders funds 3986 3195
Tier 2 subordinated debt 1500 1500
Long term subordinated debt (US$18m) 90 92
557 6 4787
Uses of funds
Lioyd's underwriting 3062 2020
Capital for US insurance company 555 306
3617 3226
Surplus 195.9 156.1
Unavailable surplus (113 3} (81 0)
Available surplus 82.6 75.1

Individual capital assessment

The group 15 required to produce an individual capital assessment (ICA) which sets out the amount of
capital that 1s required to reflect the nisks contained within the business Lloyd's reviews this
assessment to ensure that ICAs are consistent across the market

In order to determine the ICA, we made significant investment in both models and process

s  We use sophisticated mathematical models that refiect the key nisks in the business allowing for
probabllity of occurrence, impact If they do occur, and interaction between risk types A key
focus of these models 1s to understand the nsk posed to individual teams, and to the business
as a whole, of a possible deterioration in the underwnting cycle, and

+ The ICA process 1s embedded so that the teams can see the direct and objective link between
underwnting decisions and the capital allocated to that team This gives a consistent and
comprehensive picture of the risk reward profile of the business and allows teams to focus on
strategies that improve return on capital

The ICA has increased from £292m to £306m which reflects changes n the amount and mix of
business in the plan, the impact of falling rates, and the posttive development of claims reserves
from prior years

Andrew Horton
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Finance director
INVESTOR RELATIONS

We place great importance on communication with shareholders The full report and accounts and
the intenim report are avallable to shareholders on the company’s website (www beazley com)
Alternatively, shareholders can elect to recerve a mailed copy of the accounts on request The
company responds to individual letters from shareholders and maintains a separate investor
relations centre within the existing www beazley com website as a repository for all investor relations
matters

Financral reporting for iInsurance companies can seem to be complex In order to help shareholders
and potential iInvestors better understand the key dnvers of the business and 1ts prospects, we have
endeavoured to provide increasing levels of transparency and explanation 1n our communications
As a result, in addition to enhancing the information contained in the annual and interim reports, the
investor relations centre on the company website contains a substantial amount of relevant
information for investors including key corporate data and news, presentations to analysts,
information for the names’ syndicate 623, analyst estimates and a financial calendar The website
also gives investors the opportunity to sign up for an alert service as new information becomes
available

There 1s a regular dialogue with institutional shareholders as well as general presentations after the
preliminary and internim results The board 1s advised of any specific comments from institutional
investors to enable them to develop an understanding of the views of major shareholders All
shareholders have the opportunity to put questions at the company’s annual general meeting

The company’s shares are listed on the London S$tock Exchange Prices are given daily in
newspapers including the Financia! Times, The Times, the Daily Telegraph, the Daily Maul and the |
Evening Standard

There are currently nine analysts publishing research notes on the group In addition to research
coverage from Numis, the company’s corporate broker, coverage 1s provided by ABN Amro, Fox Pitt
Kelton, Credit Suisse, JP Morgan, Keefe Bruyette & Woods, KBC Peel Hunt, Clear Capital and UBS

FINANCIAL CALENDAR

21 Apnl 2008 Annual general meeting

9 May 2008 Final dividend payment

25 July 2008 Internim announcement

25 July 2008 Intennm dividend announcement
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RISK MANAGEMENT

Our business is to underwrite a diverse range of specialist classes of insurance This means that effective risk
management 1s integral to everything we do The group's approach to risk management focuses upon

Limits and monitoring processes - all risks in our business are clearly understood, measured and controlled
Orgarusational structure and accountabifities — all nsks 1n our business are ¢learly owned by individuals who are
responsible for managing nsk

Constant evaluation of the risk versus reward equation for making decisions - this ensures every decision we
take i1s based upon i1ts contnbution to our overall performance

Strong nsk management discipline 1s and always has been part of what we do Nevertheless, our risk management
practices are continuously evolving to meet new challenges as the business grows Some of our areas for focus in
2008 are outhined in more detail below

Managing the Cycle
One of the key challenges for many insurers in 2008 will be to manage the insurance cycle This s the nisk of
softening market conditions causing premium rates to fall and/or claims frequency and values to increase

Our tried and tested approach to cycle management 1s demonstrated through our strong and consistent trading
record Accessing this expertence will be a key differentiator for our business as we can call upon our experience and
leading market position to

Maintain expertise - deliberately attracting and retaining top talent across our business to outperform on
underwriting, claims management, marketing, distribution and risk management

Unlock vaiue through claims - our focus upon superior claims management means we can attract and retain the
best business and effectively respond to new claims trends in our underwnting

Create diversity - deliberately reducing our rehance on and impact of any one portfolio by spreading our
business across products, geography and size

Focus on long term objectives - by being clear about where we want to be for all our classes of business at the
top of the next cycle we can ensure our plans, tactics and infrastructure are ready to meet these goals
Consohidate barriers to entry - we specialise In classes of business which have barners to entry This allows us to
build upon well-established infrastructure, service, stability and relationship management in our core markets so
that we continue to attract the best business available

Apply technical skills - by supporting our underwriters and claims managers with the tools they need to exercise
supenor skills in pncing, market segmentation, risk selection, data analysis, reinsurance buying and
management control

Underwriting Risk

Our business 15 founded upon a complementary blend of catastrophe and non-catastrophe insurance portfolios To
manage these exposures we mode! and stress test our risks to understand the expected financial impact of extreme
events which result in policyholder claims

For classes of business where accumulations of losses can result from a single event, such as property, marne
energy, terronsm and war, we set insurance nsk appetite imits These risk tolerances are based upon the extremity
of potential events, the impact they could have upon our forecast earnings and capital, and the potential
opportunities that will exist to write high margin business afterwards

Our fargest risk appetite relates to a modelled probabiiistic 1 1n 250 year US natural catastrophe event, such as wind
storm or earthguake, and in 2008 we wiil manage to an amount of $340m after reinsurance

We also have market leading portfolios 1n areas such as professional indemnity and dwrectors’ and officers’ lability
insurance For these classes the primary sk 1s charging premium rates that are too low as a result of external
factors such as new laws, social trends or systemic events or regulations which subsequently lead to larger than
expected claims They are other types of nsk which continue to benefit our business by providing healthy
diversification from the typical natural catastrophe exposures of many London Market insurers, such as Flornda wind

or

Califernia earthquake

Investment Risk
We adopt a conservative approach to investment nisk ansing from uncertain movements 1n financial markets,
Interest rates and foreign exchange rates

Through setting comprehensive investment guidelines, regularly morutonng the performance of the underlying
investment managers and stress testing our investment portfolio we can assess If our overall sk and return targets
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are being met and protect our investments from adverse financial markets We therefore constantly menitor our
investment exposures in areas such as asset duration, type, matunty profile, rating, economic sector, individual
counterparty and issuer

To avoid very volatile returns from changes to interest rates, our investment approach specifically does not require
the asset portfolios to match the duration of our habilities  Although this creates some residual economic risk, we
closely monitor the asset-hability duration mismatch as part of our regular nsk assessment, and to manage income
our investment managers are tasked with delivering returns in excess of LIBOR from a balanced portfolio with low
nsk of loss

To muumuse the nsk of an event impacting both our claims habihties and our investment portfolios, we carefully limit
investments in areas which correlate with our insurance portfolios For example, we avoid emerging market
investments which could potentially clash with cur political nsk exposures

Credit sk

As market conditions soften, this will challenge the financial stability of some firms Therefore we thoroughly vet alf of
our counterparties, such as reinsurers and brokers, before trading with them We also carefully momitor therr
performance regularly which has given us a good track records in the Lioyd's market for avoiding remsurer bad
debts

Emerging rnisk identification

We employ specialist teams to support our underwriters in identifying external trends and 1ssues Using this research
improves our underwnting risk selection, allows us to avoid markets i decline and improves our claims management
capabilties For example, we closely monitor developments in US tort reform to determine the hikely impact on claim
frequency and severity for classes of business such as healthcare, allowing us to tailor our underwnting approach at
the earlhest opportunity.

Assessing risk versus reward

By allocating capital to each investment and underwriting segment and regularly reviewing returns, we manage our
business in a way that supports our core markets and targets growth on the best opportunities as they arise

To optimise use of the group's capacity for risk, allocation between classes of business and types of risk 1s reviewed
regularly through stress and scenario analysis Stochastic modelling technigues are also used to rngorously assess
the capital requirements of our business plans through the ICA process

Risk assurance framework

Our rnisk assurance framework encourages all our business areas to focus upon achieving the group's strategic
objectives The board of directors has ultimate responsibiiity for defining the group’s nsk tolerance, with key
individuals and committees made accountable for day-to-day management of nsks and controls which anse from
their activity

In 2007 the effectiveness of our nsk management was formally acknowledged by Standard and Poor’s who have
categorised it as ‘Strong’, which ranks our practices in the top quartile of companies rated by them,

Risk management team

The purpose of our nsk management team 1s to facilitate and strengthen effective nsk management in all of our
activiies Their pnimary goal 1s to help the business achieve a consistent approach to the identification,
measurement and mrtigation of risk across the group Active participatton of this team n all board meetings and
senicr management committees ensures that risks are monitored and managed as they anse

This team uses a leading edge system called the BeazleyRiskMatrix to support its work This online risk management
tool allows the emerging nisk profile of the group to be captured and analysed in real time using information input
directly by nsk and control owners across our worldwide locations

Internal audit and comphance
Our internal audit and compliance teams reinforce our comprehensive sk management strategies They work
closely with the nsk management team and the business to co-ordinate activity, avoid duplication and deliver a
targeted nsk-based approach
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Key nisks at a glance

The group has identified six primary categories of nsk that anse from its activiies

Risk type

Sources

Importance to
group caprtal
requirements

Insurance

Underwriting
Relnsurance

Claims management
Reserving & ultmate
reserves

Dominant

Credit

Reinsurers
Brokers &
intermediaries
Investments

Matenal

Liquidhty

Insurance & non-
insurance cash calls

Low

Market

Foreign exchange
Interest rates
Investment prices

Matenal

Operational

People

Process and system
Regulation

Service provider
Business continuity
Information security
Financial reporting
Data integnty

Legal

Moderate

Group

Strategic
Reputation
Management stretch

Moderate

Note 2 on pages 72 to 81 provides further detail about the group's definition, appetite and controls for our key risks
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CORPORATE AND SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

in continuing to build Beazley as a premier nsk-taking business, we take our corporate, sccial and environmental
responsibility senously We constantly consider the ethical implications of how we operate in our day-to-day business
and put policies and procedures in place that reflect our commitment We also recognise the regulatery and
reputational risks associated with ethical practice and adhere closely to the Association of British Insurers (ABI)
guidelines pubhshed in October 2001 on the disclosure of kisted companies’ social responsibihity policies and
endeavours In 2007 we also signed up to the Lloyd’s Climate Wise principles

Intrinsic to our culture 1s an ethical approach to business conducted by and towards all our stakeholders, including
management, staff, chents, suppliers and shareholders The values that form the essence of our brand and our
working culture are professionahsm, integrity, effectiveness and dynamism We have appointed Nicholas Furlenge
as the group sponsor of our corporate and social responsibility programme

Corporate responsibility

We are an equal opportunities employer and make 1t our policy to offer equal treatment to employees and
prospective employees, ensunng that all are treated fairly and with digmity and respect We absolutely do not permit
unlawful discrimination of any kind aganst any person, to inciude on the grounds of gender, race, nationality or
ethnic origin, age, disability, religious beliefs, sexuality, marntat status, working patterns or pregnancy

We are committed to taking positive action to ensure that all employees, whether full-time or part-time, receive
equality of opportunity in recruitment, training, development, promotion and remuneration

We strive to ensure the health, safety and welfare of our employees and anyone else who may be affected by our

operations Employees are expected to take reasonable care for their own health and safety at work as well as those

of others, and to co-operate with management to create a safe and healthy working environment Al employees, |
contractors and visitors are subject to induction, training and supervision In aspects of health & safety and additional

training tn ergonomics and fire safety awareness 1s provided to all employees All health and safety matters are

communicated via notice hoards, email memos, the intranet and via safety representatives

We believe that the knowledge and skills of cur employees are a key element of organisational success and
therefore invest in traiming and development We ensure that this 15 accessible by everyone and recognised as a
shared responsibility between individual employees and the organisation

Employees are kept informed of developments in business through our internal communications including, formal
company-wide briefings that cccur twice a month, team meetings and an information-rich intranet

We are proud of our working culture that ensures that we achieve our aim to attract and retain talented staff in
competitive markets and supports them as they strive to perform to an excellent standard

Social responsibility

We encourage employee involvement in a range of community programmes Nicholas Furlonge 1s the chairman of

the Lloyd's Community Programme Management Board in London, and encourages staff to involve themselves in

helping pupils in schools in the Tower Hamlets area, one of the most deprived areas in the country The largest
programme 1s “Reading Partners”, where members of staff volunteer their lunch hour to sit with children and help

them with their hiteracy There are currently 14 volunteers on this scheme and a further 7 on the “Maths Partners”
programme which we also support  In addition, one employee participated in the police mentoring programme,

where a senior business person Is paired wrth a senior police officer in one of three of East London’s most .
challenging boroughs In order to help them develop their management skills

In 2007, we sent volunteers to a school to help students understand the process of getting paid We also
participated in cricket coaching and are looking at some of our business teams participating in Lloyd's community ‘
programme days in 2008 |

The group made charitable donations dunng the year ended 31 December 2007 of £59,232 (2006 £25,436) The
group's charity budget 1s managed by a chanty committee charred by Nicholas Furlonge, and consideration 1s given to
a wide range of activities, particularly where members of staff are engaged in fund raising activities For example,
these activittes raised over £7,000 competing in a dragen boat race and over £2,000 in a white-water rafting
competition  Also, our annual Chnistmas card 1s distrnibuted electronically to over 20,000 key clients and contacts,
giving them the opportunity to indicate the charity that they wish us to support
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In Qctober 2006 we intraduced a payroll-giving scheme 1n the UK in association with the Chanties Aid Foundation By
the end of December 2007, 11% of staff had joined the scheme, donating £13,791 annually to 31 different
chanties

No political donations were made by the group in either the current or prior reporting perod

Environmental responsibility
We are committed to achieving best practice in all the areas of the business where there may be an impact on the
environment From our head office in Plantation Piace in London we encourage environmentally aware behaviour
including
» A policy for minimising waste by scanning nsks and claims which enables employees worldwide to view
documents electronically rather than on paper
+ Extensive video conferencing 1s avallable at the London offices and some US offices to reduce requirements
for business travel and air travel
s Recycling facilities for plastics, glass, paper, cardboard and used toner cartridges are located throughout
the buillding
e Glasses are used within the offices and refillable glass bottles are used for the meeting rooms lieu of
disposable ones
Recycling bins for old mobile telephones for chanty
Multi-functional scanner, printing, copying and faxing facilities exist and double-sided printing 1s set as a
default on all copiers and printers
* Inthe London office, motion detectors are fitted to lighting systems to ensure electricity usage 1s kept to a
minimum and lighting tevels have been reduced by 25%
The landlord for the London office procures the electricity from a green suppher
The London offices have changed the paper supphes to 100% recycled
We also actively encourage the use of public transport and provide ample cycle racks, shower faciities and
locker storage for those employees who cycle into work and we provide a cycle to work scheme

We are also currently undertaking an environmental impact assessment of all cur UK cperations, including an
assessment of Its carbon emissions
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive directors
Andrew Beazley (aged 54) 1s the chief executive of the company Andrew 1s a co-founder of Beazley Furlonge and the
active underwriter for the managed syndicates 2623 and 623 He has 32 years’ experience at Lloyd's

Andrew Horton (aged 45) 1s the group finance director and joined the board in June 2003 Andrew was previcusly UK
chief financial officer at ING and, prior to January 2001, was deputy global chief financial officer and global head of
finance for the equity markets division of ING Banings, having held various financial posttions with ING Barnings since
January 1997 He quahfied as a chartered accountant with Coopers and Lybrand in 1987

Nicholas Furlonge (aged 57) 1s responsible for the nsk management of the Beazley group Nicholas 1s a co-founder
of Beazley Furlonge, and has 35 years expertence at Lloyd’s and has recently been appointed as a non-executive
director of the Lloyd’s Franchise Board He 1s also Chairman of the Lioyd's Community Programme Management
Board and a director of the LMA He 1s also responsible for brand and communications and the ceded reinsurance
department

Jonathan Gray {aged 54) s head of the group’s property diviston Jonathan has 33 years of experience at Lioyd's, \
Joining Beazley in 1992 He ts an active underwriter in his area of expertise, open market commercial property nsks

Netl Maidment (aged 45) 1s head of the group’s reinsurance division Neil has 23 years of Lioyd’s experience He
Joined Beazley in 1990 and remains an active underwriter on the account

Johnny Rowell (aged 46) 1s head of the group's specialty lines division and chairman of the group underwriing
committee Johnny has 22 years’ experience, joining the market as a broker He joined Beazley in 1992 and
continues as an active underwriter with a principal focus on professional iability

Clive Washbourn {aged 47) is the head of the group’s marme division Clive has 24 years experience in the manne
insurance industry and actively underwrites marnne hull, marine hability and marine war risks  He 1s a member of the
LMA Marine Committee, the LMA Underwnting & the Claims Committee and 1s the chairman of the Joint War
Committee

Non-executive directors

Jonathan Agnew (aged 66) 1s the chairman of the company Jonathan was formerly a managing director of Morgan
Stanley and subsequently chief executive of Klemnwort Benson {now Dresdner Kleinwort) He has been chairman of
Limit ple, Gerrard Group plc, and Nationwide Bullding Society He 1s currently chairman of Ashmore Global
Opporturtities Limited, The Cayenne Trust plc and LMS Capital pic and sentor independent director of Rightmove plc
He was a member of the Council of Lloyd's from 1995 to 1998

Dudley Fishburn (aged 61) I1s chairman of HFC Bank Limrted and a non-executive director of HSBC Bank plc He s a
non-executive director of Altna inc 1n the US

Andy Pomfret (aged 47) was appointed chief executive of Rathbone Brothers Plc in 2004 having held the position of
finance director since 1999 Prior to that, he held positions at Peat, Marwick, Mitchell & Co (now KPMG) and
Kleinwort Benscn (now Dresdner Kleinwort)

Marty Becker (aged 55) 1s currently chairman and CEO of Max Capital Group, Ltd (Nasdag - MXGL) and LaSalie Re,
Ltd He was formerly chairman and CEO of Onon Capital Corporation, President and CEO of McDonough Caperton
Insurance Group, and intenm chairman and CEO of Trenwick Group, Ltd He 1s currently a director of Selective
Insurance Group, Inc (Nasdaq - SIGI)

Gordon Hamilton (aged 62} recently retired as a senior audit partner in Deloitte & Touche LLP after more than 30
years, principally involved with listed multi-national company audits and major forensic assignments He 1s currently
a director of the hsted South African group, Barloworld Limited, and 1s a member of the Financial Reporting Review
Panel (FRRF)

Dan Jones {aged 56) retired 1n 2003 as vice-chairman for Marsh, Inc , responsible for non-North Amencan
operations, strategic planning, and mergers/acquisitions, based in London In 2006 he re-entered the broking
business as chief executive for the broking operations of Fred A Moreton & Co, a Salt Lake City-based regional
financial services concern focusing on the western United States
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STATEMENT OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Application of principles of good corporate governance

There 15, and historically there has been, throughout the company and the group, a commitment to high standards of
corporate governance The directors continue to develop procedures which ensure that, where the board considers it
appropriate, the Beazley group will comply with the Combined Code on corporate governance

Compliance with code provisions
The beard confirms that the company and the group has, save for the composition of the board, complied with the
provisions set out In the Combined Code for the year ended 31 December 2007

The board I1s accountable to the company’s shareholders for good governance and the statements set out below
describe how the principles identified in the revised Combined Code have been applied by the group

The board

The board consists of a non-executive chairman, Jonathan Agnew, together with five independent non-executive
directors, of which Andy Pomfret is the senior non-executive director, and seven executive directors, of which Andrew
Beazley 1s chief executive All five of the non-executive directors, who have been appointed for specified terms, are
considered by the board to be independent of management and free of any relabionship which could matenaily
interfere with the exercise of their independent judgement

The board intends to reduce the size of the board within the next 5 years depending upon the size and complexity of
the business, and therefore the appointment of further non-executive directors was not considered appropnate
notwithstanding that the company s now included in the FTSE 250 index

Biographtes of board members appear on page 41 of this report  These indicate the high levels and range of
business experience that are essential to manage a business of this size and complexity A well defined operational
and management structure is in place, and terms of reference exist for all board committees The roles and
responsibilities of senior executives and key members of staff are clearly defined !

The full board meets at least four times each year and more frequently where business needs require The board has
a schedule of matters reserved for its decision including, inter aha statutory matters, approval of financial
statements and dividends, appointments and terminations of directors, officers and auditors, appointments of
committees and setting of terms of reference, review of group performance against budgets, approving of risk
management strategy and matenal contracts, and the determining of authority levels within which management is
required to operate

There 1s an agreed principle that directors may take independent professional advice if necessary at the company's
expense, on the basis that the expense I1s reasonable This 1s 1n addition to the access which every director has to
the company secretary The secretary 1s charged by the board with ensunng that board procedures are followed

To enable the board to function effectively and directors to discharge their responsibiliies, full and tmely access s
given to ail relevant information  In the case of board meetings, this consists of a comprehensive set of papers,
including regular business progress reports and discussion decuments regarding specific matters

The composition of and appointments to the board of both executive and non-executive directors are considered by
the nomination committee  The recommendattons of the nomination committee are ultimately made to the full
board, which considers them before any change is made The remuneration committee considers any remuneration
package of executive directors before it 1s offered to a potential appointee The members of the audit, remuneration,
nomination and investment committees are set out below |

Any director appointed during the year 1s required, under the provisions of the company's articles of association, to
retire and seek re-election by shareholders at the next annual general meeting The articles also require that one
third of the directors retire by rotation each year and seek re-election at the annual general meeting, and the
directors required to retire are those In office longest since their previous re-election  In addition, each director is
required to retire at least once 1n any three-year period

Full details of directors’ remuneration and a statement of the company's remuneration policy are set out in the

directors’ remuneration report on pages 46 to 55 The members of the remuneration commuttee and the principal
terms of reference of the commitiee appear on page 44
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Meetings with non-executive directors
The chairman holds meetings as required with the non-executive directors without the executive directors being
present

Board performance evaluation

In accordance with the requirements of the Combined Code, the board undertook a formal and rigorous evaluation of
its own performance and that of its committees and individual directors in 2007 and the 1ssues identified and
recommendations from the evaluation, i particular in relation to the composition of the board are to be
implemented

Individual attendance by directors at regular meetings of the board and of committees

Director Board Audit Remuneration Nomination Investment
No of Ko No of No attended No of No No of No Ne of No atanded
MBOUNEY attandad _mestngs mestngs meetngy attended mestings
J G W Agnew 5 5 - - - - 3 3 4 4
A F Beazley 5 5 - - - - - - - -
M Becker 5 4 8 6 - - - - 4 2
J D Fishburn 5 5 8 8 5 5 3 2 - -
N H Furlonge 5 5 - - - - - - - -
J G Gray 5 5 - - - - - - - -
A G K Hamilton 5 5 5 5 - - - -
D A Horton 5 5 - - 2 ‘ - N . 3
D Jones 5 4 - - 5 4 3 2 - -
N P Maidment 5 5 - - - - - - 4 4
A D Pomfret 5 5 8 8 5 5 3 3 - -
J G B Rowell 5 5 - - - - - - - -
C A Washbourn 5 5 - - - - - - -

Board committees
The company has established properly constituted audit, remuneration, nomination and investment committees of
the board

Audit committee

The audit committee currently compnses Andy Pomfret (committee chairman), Dudley Fishburn, Marty Becker and
Gordon Hamilton The commuittee regularly meets without any executive management being present and the
committee hold regular meetings with the head of internal audit, and with the external auditor

The committee’s main objectives are, inter alia to monrtor the integrity of the company’s financial statements and
any other format announcements relating to the company's financial performance, review significant financial
reporting judgements contained 1n them, before submission to, and approval by, the board, and before clearance by
the external auditors, review the company's internal financial controls and the company's internal control and nisk
management systems, approve the appointment, or termination of appointment, of the head of internal audit and
monitor and review the effectiveness of the company's internal audit function, and review the arrangements by which
employees of the company may, in confidence, raise concerns about possible improprieties in matters of financial
reporting or other matters

The committee also reviews any matters raised by the auditors and internal audit The chief executive, the finance
director, and the nsk management director are invited to attend part of each meeting of this committee The
external auditors are invited to attend meetings regularly The auditors have unrestricted access to the members of
the audit committee, and the committee ensures that meetings are used as an open avenue of commumcation
between compliance, internal audit, the external auditors and the board The committee receives regular updates
and monitors the status of actions taken by management to address 1ssues raised by both external and internal
audt Risk management provides reports to the audit committee on the risk assessment and the self-certification
from nsk owners of the operating effectiveness of internal controls

In respect of any firm of external auditors and consulting actuanies which may be appointed by any group company,
the audit commuttee 1s also responsible for recommending their appointment and termination, recommending their
terms of reference, recewving regular reports, independently of management where necessary, determining therr
independence, monitering ther performance, and approving their fees

Following a recommendation from the audit committee, the board has adopted a policy 1n relation to the provision of
non-audit services by the auditers  The cobjective 1s to ensure that the provision of such services does not impair the
external auditor's objectivity The policy specifically disallows certain activities te be provided by the auditor such as
bookkeeping and accounting services, internal actuarial service, internal audit outsourcing services and executive
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remuneration services The policy requires pre-approval for all matenal other services such as due diligence
assistance, tax services and advice on accounting and audit matters

The aim 15 to imit the total spend on non-audit services to a maximum of the annual audit fee unless it 1s deemed to
be in the shareholders’ interest from an effictency and effectiveness point of view

The split between audit and non-audit fees for the year under review 1s disclosed on page 85 All of these are
considered by the audit committee not to affect the auditors’ independence or objectivity

Following publication of the Combined Code on corporate governance, the terms of reference of the audit committee
have been expanded These are published on the company’s website

Remuneration committee

The remuneration committee comprise Dudley Fishburn as chairman, together with Andy Pomfret, Dan Jones and
Gordon Hamilton The work of the remuneration committee s covered further in the directors’ remuneration report
on pages 46 to 55

Copies of executive directors’ service contracts and the terms and conditions of appointment of the non-executive
directors are availlable for inspection at the company's office during normal business hours

The terms of reference of the remuneration committee are published on the company’s website

Nomination committee

The nomination committee consists of Jonathan Agnew as chairman, together with Dudley Fishburn, Andy Pomfret
and Dan Jones It meets as required and makes recommendations to the board on all board appointments, including
the selection of non-executive directors

The terms of reference of the nomination committee are published on the company’s website

Investment committee

The investment committee consists of Jonathan Agnew as chairman, together with Andrew Horton, Marty Becker, Neil
Maidment, Peter Glynne-Percy (the group's chief investment officer} and Arthur Manners The committee makes
recommendations to the board regarding the investment policy of the Beazley Group and the syndicates, including
the establishment of investment guidelines and monitoring of performance and compliance with those guidelines

The terms of reference of the investment committee are published on the company's website

Shareholder communication

The company places great importance on communication with shareholders The full report and accounts and the
interim report will be available from www beazley com and, on request will be mailed to shareholders and to other
parties who have an interest in the group’s performance The company responds to individual letters from
shareholders and maintains a separate investor relations centre within the existing www beazley com website as a
repository for all investor relations matters

There is regular dialogue with institutional shareholders as well as general presentations, attended by executive
directors and the chairman, after the preliminary and interim results The board 1s advised of any specific comments
from institutional investors to enable them to develop an understanding of the views of major shareholders All
shareholders have the opportunity to put forward questions at the company’s annual general meeting

A resolution was approved at the Annual General Meeting in May 2007 to allow the company to communicate with
its shareholders using electronic and website commumication and to allow for electronic proxy voting

Audit and internal control
The respective responsibilities of the directors and the auditors In connection with the accounts are explained on
pages 56 to 58, and the statement of directors on going concern on page 59

The board confirms that there 1s a continuous process for identifying, evaluating and managing any compliance ;
1ssues and significant nisks faced by the group The internal capital assessment process maps nsks to capital
requirements through review and challenge and sign-off by the board |

The directors are responsible for the group’s system of internal control and for reviewing its effectiveness However,
such a system can only provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss The
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system s designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of fallure to achieve business objectives within
parameters set by the board

The key procedures that the directors have established to ensure that internal controls are effective and
commensurate with a group of this size inciude the day-to-day supervision of the business by the executive directors
Other internal control procedures and reviews for effectiveness by the board include the

- Preparation of standard monthly, quarterly and penod:ic reporting as prescribed by the board for review by the
various group committees,

- Rewview of financial, operattonal and comphance reports from management, and

- Review of any significant issues anising from the external audits

Further information on the role of the audit committee 1s set out above The committee, on behalf of the board,
approves the internal audit project plan and any subsequent changes Internal audit reports directly to the audit
committee, whose terms of reference include approving the appointment or termination of appointment, of the head
of internal audit and monitoring and reviewing the effectiveness of the company’s internal audit function

Further information on nsk management at Beazley 1s contained on pages [x] to [X]
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DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION REPORT

Consideration of matters relating to directors’ remuneration

The remuneration policy I1$ set by the board and s described below Individual remuneration packages of executive
directors and the chairman are determined by the remuneration committee within the framework of this policy The
remuneration committee consists of the non-executive directors and during the year the members included Dudley

Fishburn as chairman, Andy Pomfret, Dan Jones and Gordon Hamilton The company views each of these directors

as independent The committee met five times during the year

The committee receives advice from a variety of sources on 1ssues where it considers it appropriate  New Bridge
Street Consultants LLP advised the committee on ongoing 1ssues The committee also calls on specialist advice from
a variety of additional sources including SBJ Benefit Consultants Limited for pension's advice, Watson Wyatt
publications for salary data, The Share Option Centre, and internal advisers including the chief executive and the
company secretary who present to the committee on specific 1ISsues

Remuneration policy statement

The directors believe that performance related remuneration I1s an essential motivation to management and staff,
and this policy will form the basis for determining executive directors’ remuneration for the current and forthcoming
financial years The general philosophy underlying the reward strategy for executive directors 1s the same as that
applied to all other employees Pay and employment conditions elsewhere in the company and data on comparable
positions in other similar organisations are taken into consideration when determining executive directors’
remuneration

The company's policy 1s to remunerate the executive directors and other management farrly in such a manner as to
facilitate the recrutment, retention and motivation of suitably qualified personnel The measurement of the
executive directors’ performance and the determination of their annual remuneration package 1s undertaken by the
remuneration committee The main elements of the remuneration package payable under the service agreement of
each executive director comprnise basic salary, short-term incentive payments, pension contributions, share-based
incentives and other benefits Other benefits include private medical insurance for the director and his immediate
family, permanent health insurance, death in service benefit at four times annual salary, accident and travel
Insurance, healthclub membership, season ticket, car parking and the provision of either a company car or a monthly
car allowance

In line with Lioyd’s market practice there are no upper imits on the amounts payable to indviduals under short-term
incentives The committee has considered whether 1t 1s appropnate to set an upper imit and has agreed that such a
hmit would adversely affect the company's competitive position and would not be 1n the interests of shareholders
The incentive payments, which comprise short-term incentive payments and share incentive plans, are awarded on a
discretionary basis, and are determined by the committee in respect of performance of both the individual and the
company As the profitability of the group has improved significantly dunng the year, the committee was able to
reflect this improved performance n the incentive awards made fo directors The policy 1s to ensure that a matenal
proportion of each executive director’s overall remuneration 15 performance based to align executive directors’
interests with those of shareholders

The board, on a bi-annual basis, determines the remuneration of the non-executive directors with details set out
below No director plays a part in any discussion about his own remuneration

The directors believe that a key element of the remuneration strategy 1s the share incentive plans that further align
the interests of participants in the plans with shareho!ders’ interests Entitlements under certain plans are subject to
the achievement of performance conditions as described below under share incentive plans

Also It 1s important that the incentive arrangements for directors include an element of downside risk by having
shareholdings and through the deferment of future bonuses that will be at nsk If the syndicate declares losses

Section headings marked ® indicate the information in that section that has been audited
= Service contracts
The company has service contracts with executive directors It 1s company policy that such contracts contain notice

periods of not more than twelve months Details of the contracts currently in place for executive directors who have
served dunng the year and their basic salary for 2008 are as follows
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Annual Date of Unexpired Notice Provision for
salary contract term* period compensation
£

A F Beazley 450,000 6 Nov 2002 n/a 12 months Nl
N H Furlonge 225,000 6 Nov 2002 n/a 12 months Nil
J G Gray 285,000 6 Nov 2002 n/a 12 months Nil
D A Horton 280,000 1 Jun 2003 n/a 12 months Nil
N P Maidment 260,000 6 Nov 2002 n/a 12 months Nl
1 G B Rowell 400,000 G Nov 2002 n/a 12 months Nil
C A Washbourn 260.000 6 Dec 2006 n/a 12 months Nil

» The unexpired term 1s not applicable as each of the executive director's contract 1s on a rolling basis

Subject to the notice requirements described above, there 1s no provision in the service agreements for

compensation to be payable on early termination of the contract  The company will normally phase any payments of
compensation which will also be subject to negotiation and mitigation

Non-executive directors

The fees of non-executive directors, other than the chairman, are determined by the board When setting fee levels

consideration 1s given to levels in comparable companies for comparable services
No non-executive director participates in the company's incentive arrangements or pension plan

Non-executive directors are appointed for fixed terms, normally for three years, and may be reappointed for future
terms Non-executive directors are typically appointed through a selection process that includes the candidate

bringing the desired competence and skills to the group

The board has identified several key competencies for non-executive directors to complement the existing skill-set of
the executive directors  These competencies are as follows

Finance skills

A br-annual review ¢f the fees and other income payable was carned by the board in December 2008

Insurance sector expertise,
Asset management skills,

Public company and corporate governance experience,
Risk management skills, and
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Detalls of the non-executive directors’ terms of appointment and therr fees for 2008 are set out below

Current
annual fees Term of Expires Other
£ appomntment income*
£
J GW Agnew 75,000 3 years 31 Dec 2008 -
J D Fishburn 42,000 3years 31 Dec 2008 7,000
A D Pomfret 42,000 3vyears 31 Dec 2008 14,000
DL Jones 42,000 3 years 30 June 2009 -
W M Becker . 42,000 3 years 7 May 2009 -
A G K Hamilton 42,000 3 years 7 Sept 2009 -

* Other iIncome relates to the additional fee payable to A D Pomiret In respect of his chairmanship of the audit
committee and as senior non-executive director and to J D Fishburn in respect of his chairmanship of the
remuneration committee

Individual aspects of remuneration

A summary of the key elements of short and long term remuneration are as follows

Element Objective Conditions

Base salary To recognise responsibilities None

Benefits To provide basis benefit Reviewed annually with
Increases dependent on
Group and individual
performance

Pension To provide funding for Defined contribution based

reurement on salary

Enterprise bonus

To link cash reward to company
return on equity

Mintmum return on equity to
be achieved

Deferred shares

To defer a proportion of
Enterprise bonus in shares

Vesting dependent on
continued employment for
three years

Retention shares

To retain key staff

Full vesting dependent on
continued employment over
6 years

LTIP

To provide an incentive linked
to long term shareholder
returns

Vesting based on TSR
relative to peer group over a
three year penod and
continued employment

Staff underwriting

To have an element of
downside nsk

Deferred bonuses at risk
from underwnting results

= Details of ndwvidual emoluments and cempensation
The emoluments in respect of qualfying services and compensation of each person who served as a director dunng

the year were as follows
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Total for 12
Enterprise Staff Salary months to Personal Total for
Enterprise bonus Staff Underwniting supplements In 31 pension months to
Salary & bonus Deferred underwriing deferred Iieu of pension December | contribut Decem
feest - cash Shares Distribution bonus Benefits? contributions 2007 ons 2(
£ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £
J G W Agnew 75,000 - - - - - B 75,000 - 68,0
A F Beazley 450 000 1 090,505 150 000 27129 81,975 18 460 179521 1987 590 - 1,702 &
J D Fishburn 49,000 - - - - - 49,000 - - 43,0
N H Furlonge 255 Q00 480,000 100 000 36,071 - 17 159 124 340 1012570 - B3TE
J1G Gray 285 000 724,346 171 000 25 232 - 17,975 - 1223543 42,750 939 ¢
D A Horton 280 000 542 800 167 000 25 222 47 200 13 679 - 1,075,901 42,000 880,F
NP 260,000 666 890 170,000 25222 - 20679 - 1142791 39000 977kt
Maidment
A D Pomfret 56,000 - - - - - 56 000 - 46,0
J G Rowell 400 000 1,149,738 300 000 44,752 157 367 16 423 - 2068 280 60 000 1,785
CA 260,000 770 000 200,000 24771 - 10,715 - 1265 486 33,000 881,C
Washbourn
D L Jones 42 000 - - - - - 42000 19 ¢
W M Becker 42,000 - - - - - 42,000 - 24.¢
AGK 42000 - - - - 42 000 - 11¢
Hamiton
Total 2 496,000 5424 279 1,258,000 208 388 286,542 115,090 303861 10 092 161 222 750 8,217°

1 Other than for the chairman, fees include fees paid for membership of board committees (investment, audit,
remuneration and nomination committees

2 The benefits compnise those detailed in the service contracts of the executive directors and relate to the
standard benefits such as private medical insurance, car allowance, etc

3 The directors have deferred bonus entitlements to support their underwriting through Beazley Staff Underwriting
Limited

Salary

The remuneration committee reviews salanes annually taking into account levels in comparable positions in other
similar financial companies It also considers the performance of the group, individual and average salary increases
for employees across the whole group The annual salary reviews take place i December of each year and the
Remuneration Committee agreed that there should be no salary increases awarded for 2008 for the executive
directors as a measure to Increase awareness for cost management in the business

=  Short-term incentives
Enterprise bonus pool

A scheme based on achieving stretching target returns on group equity with mimimum hurdles to be met has heen
established that better aligns the interests of directors and staff with shareholders

A proportion of this pool 1s altocated among executive directors at the discretion of the committee  In determining
the award levels, as the group's return on equity has improved, the level of awards made was increased

In addition, a proportion of any award can be paid in deferred shares that will vest after three years dependent only
on continued employment It has been agreed that dividends on shares paid prior to vesting will be rolled up and
paid will as a equivalent cash bonus at the time of the vesting of the shares

Retention plan
in addition to the enterprise bonus pool, senior executives will be eligible to receive conditional awards of ordinary
shares under the retention pian

The retention plan i1s cperated on a discretionary basis based on performance to ensure key individuals have an
adequate retention package and the first grant of awards was made n April 2005 The remuneration committee has
concluded that the award of retention shares should be targeted at key staff where retention is essential to the
business

During the year the Remuneration Committee reviewed rules of the scheme and concluded that the release of the
shares that had been awarded should be accelerated from releasing 15% of the outstanding awards (every year after
the first three years) so that the retention value was better recognised by the employees The rules were amended
as follows
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— For awards made prior to November 2006, 33% of the shares will be released on the third anniversary and for
the two years after that, a further 33% of the onginal award of shares will vest,

— For awards made in or after Novernber 20086, 25% of the shares will be released on the thuird anniversary and for
the three years after that, a further 25% of the onginal award of shares will vest,,

The total number of shares awarded to date has been 6,766,190 of which 5,941,820 ordinary shares are held by
the employee benefit trust

Special award of retention shares to Andrew Horton

On 5* Qctober 2007 the remuneration committee awarded 1 mithon retention shares to Andrew Horton which was in
excess of the grants allowed under the existing scheme The committee felt it was necessary to provide this
meaningful incentrve to retain his services in the longer term as he has made a significant contnbution to the group
25% of the shares awarded shall become transferable to Andrew Horton on the third anniversary of the grant
Thereafter, 25% of the onginal award under the scheme shall become transferable on the anniversary for each
subsequent three financial years, subject to Andrew remaining a director or employee within the company's group
Dividends on shares still subject to retention will be rolled up and paid from the third anniversary and thereafter
whenever dividends are paid to shareholders

The award will be forfeited If Andrew Horton ceases to be an employee or director of the company's group unless he
ceases by reason of injury, Ill-health or permanent disability, retirement, redundancy, the sale or transfer of his
employing company or business out of the company's group, or any other reason permitted by the remuneration
committee In these circumstances, the award will vest early to the extent and on such terms determined by the
remuneration committee .

In the event of a takeover (not being an internal corperate reorganisation) or the voluntary winding-up of the
company the award will vest early In the event of an internal corporate reorganisation awards may be replaced by
equivalent new awards over shares In a new holding company No payment s required on the grant of the award
The award 1s not transferable, except on death The award 1s not pensionable The award 1s over shares held by the
company's employees’ benefit trust and does not confer any shareholder nghts until shares are transferred In the
event of any vanation of the company’s share capital the remuneration committee may make such adjustment as it
considers fair and reasonable to the number of shares subject to the award The remuneration committee may, at
any time, amend this special award 1n any respect, provided that the prior approval of shareholders 1s obtained for
any amendments that are to the advantage of Andrew Horton in respect of the terms applying to the size of his award
and the basis for determining his entitlement to, and the terms of, the shares and the adjustment of his award This
prior approval will not, however, apply to any minor alteration made to benefit the administration of the award, to
take account of a change in legislation or to obtain or maintain favourable tax, exchange contro! or regulatory
treatment

=  Pensions

All executive directors, except Andrew Horton, participated in the Beazley Furlonge Limited final salary pension
scheme up to 31 March 2006 when 1t was decided that accruals for future service for all members of the scheme
should cease

Detalls of the entitlements for service accruals up to 31 March 2006 of those directors who participated 1n the final
salary scheme dunng the year are as foliows

increase In Increase In Transfer value Increase In

accrued accrued | Transfer value of accrued transfer

Accrued benefits benefits of (A} less | benefits at 31 value less

benefit at excluding including directors’ Dec 2007 directors’

31 Dec inflation (A) inflation contributions contributions

2007

£ £ £ £ £ £
A F Beazley 222,321 0 0 0 4,218,984 278,451
N H Furionge 139,243 0 0 0 2,917,985 52,773
J G Gray 26,623 0 1,132 0 536,673 113,261
N P Maidment 30,707 0 1,306 0 373,608 39,623
J G B Rowell 26,623 0] 1,132 0 335,747 35,264
C A Washbourn 14,373 o] 611 0 189,211 19,715

The increase (n the transfer value for the past service entitiement of A F Beazley and N H Furionge reflects the
increase In pensicnable salary and the change in discount rate used in the transfer value calculations
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The pension benefits for directors and staff are now provided by way of a defined contrnibution scheme arranged
through Fidelity, which 1s non-contributory The company contributes 15% of salary for directors Andrew Beazley
and Nick Furlonge do not participate in this plan but, instead, receive a salary supplement in lieu of pension

No cther pension provisions are made The normal retirement age for pension calculation purposes 1s 60 years A
spouse’s pension 1s the equivalent of two-thirds of the member’'s pension (before any commutation) payable on the
member’s death after retirement

Share incentive plans
The company operates a vanety of long-term, share-based incentives including, tax-approved and unapproved option
plans, a long-term mcentive plan (LTIP} and a save-as-you-earn scheme (SAYE), which are detailed below

In 2005 it was agreed that in the future share option grants (other than those under the Beazley SAYE scheme which
have substantial tax advantages for participants} are to be made only in exceptional circumstances, e g recruitment,
when the terms of those share options will refiect best practice prevailing at that time  In particular, there will be no
retesting of performance conditions on those grants  Existing options will be honoured and allowed to run their full
course

= The long-term incentive plan

Participation in the LTIP s restrnicted to employees and full-time executive directors of the Beazley Group
Participants are selected on a discretionary basis, and receve awards of free shares in the form of a nil-cost option,
thus, no exercise price 1s payable The optians will normally be exercisable {subject to meeting the performance
conditions set out below and provided that the participant continues 1n the employment of the company at that date)
between the third and tenth anniversanes of grant

The LTIP awards that were granted in March 2004 met the performance criteria established in part and 70% of the
options vested

The maximum normal levels of grants that may be made under the LTIP to one individual 1s one times salary in any
financial year, measured by the value of ordinary shares put under award at the time of the award Dividends are not
currently accrued on ordinary shares prior to vesting and the number of shares awarded 1s not therefore adjusted
The committee will keep this 1Issue under review for future awards

Awards are measured by total shareholder return {TSR) and net asset value (NAV) performance The company
decided upon these measures as TSR aligns the interests of directors with shareholders by requiring superior TSR
performance and NAV 15 a key measure of the company's financial performance

The LTIP performance conditions were ortginally set when the scheme was established by board resolution on 6
November 2002 The performance conditions were amended at an extraordinary general meeting on 14 March
2005 for grants made after that date

Shares worth up to NAV
50% of salary Regardless of the TSR performance, 50% of the Basic shares will be
{"Basic Shares") received If NAV growth 1s at ieast the nsk free rate of return plus 5%
per year
TSR

Regardless of the NAV growth, 25% of the Basic Shares will be
received for median TSR performance and 50% of the Basic Shares
will be received for upper quartile TSR performance

For TSR performance between median and upper quartile the
number of Basic Shares which will be receved 1s determined on a
straight-ine basis

Shares worth more NAV

than 50% of salary Regardless of TSR performance, 50% of the Additional Shares will

(“Additional Shares™) be recewved if NAV growth 1s at least the nisk free rate of return plus
10% per year
For out-performance of the risk free rate of return of between 5%
and 10%, the number of Additional Shares which will be received 1s
determined on a straight-ine basts
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TSR

Regardless of NAV growth, 50% of the Additional Shares will be
received If top decile TSR performance 1s achieved

For TSR performance between upper quartile and top decile
performance, the number of Additional Shares which will be
received I1s determined on a straight-line basis

The company's TSR growth 1s compared with that of members of a comparator group compnising 11 companies from
the insurance sector {the “comparator group”™) over a three-year penod stariing with the year in which the award 1s
made The comparator group is defined as the Lloyd's vehicles hsted on the London Stock Exchange and includes
the following companies for the 2007 awards

Alea

Amhin

Atnum

Brit Insurance
Cathin Group
Chaucer
Hardy
Highway
Hiscox

Kiln

Novae Group

The comparator group has not changed from last year

Details of entitlements under this plan, which are all subject to the above performance conditions, for directors who
served dunng the penod, are set out in the next table

= The pre-IPQO plan

Participation 1n the pre-tPQ plan Is restricted to employees and full-time executive directors of the Beaziey Group
Participants were selected on a discretionary basis No payment 1s required for the grant of an option  All options
under the pre-IPO plan were granted on 6 November 2002 and no further grants are anticipated The performance
conditions were met on 22 January 2007 and 75% of the awards vested

*  The unapproved share option plan

Participation in the unapproved plan Is restricted to employees and full-time executive directors of the Beazley Group,
although it 1s the committee’s intention to only make awards under this plan in exceptional circumstances
Participants are selected on a discretionary basis No payment s required for the grant of an option and the limit on
grants when aggregated with awards under the LTIP 1s shares with a face value of one imes salary or twice salary In
exceptional circumstances

Under both the approved and unapproved share option plans, options are subject to performance conditions and
typically vest on the third anniversary of the date of grant, provided that the participant has remained in employment
to that date The performance conditions require the company’s NAV plus dividends per share growth 10 Increase as
follows over a three-year period

e Anoption may be exercised over all ordinary shares under option If the cumutative growth in NAV plus dividends
per share 1s equal to or exceeds the risk-free rate of return (this being defined as the average yield of UK gilts
with matunty dates within the next five years) in the relevant penod plus 10% per annum,

e Anoption may be exercised over half the ordinary shares under option If the cumulative growth in NAV plus
dividends per share 1s equal to the risk-free rate of return plus 5% per annum,

e For performance where the cumulative growth in NAV plus dividends per share equals a number between the
nsk-free rate of return plus 5% and 10% per annum, the number of ordinary shares over which an option can be
exercised will be calculated on a straight-line basts between these two points,

e For options granted before 2005, If the option 1s not fully exercisable at the end of the three-year period, it will be
re-tested once, on the fourth anniversary of the date of grant, from a fixed base The option Is exercisable over
whichever is the higher number of options vesting No options have been granted since 2005,, and

e The option will lapse If NAV plus dividends per share performance 1s below the nsk-free rate of return plus 5%
per annum In both periods
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The performance conditions above were set when these plans were established by board resolutron on 6 November
2002 These performance conditions were considered to be appropriate as, they impose demanding performance
reguirements, while ensuring that shareholders also receive attractive returns over the performance penod

A proportion of the unapproved {(and approved) options granted in 2003 vested following the announcement of the
results for the year ended 31 December 2006 and the balance of the options lapsed The unapproved (and
approved) options granted 1in 2004 vested in part following the announcement of the results for the year ended 31
December 2006 and the balance of the options are available to re-tested following the announcement of the results
for the year ended 31 December 2007

=  The approved share option plan

Participation in the approved plan 1s restricted to employees and full-time executive directors of the Beazley group
The terms and conditions are consistent with the unapproved plan, except that the plan has been approved by HMRC
(formerly known as the Inland Revenue)

Save-as-you-earnscheme
A SAYE scheme, administered by Yorkshire Bank plc, was launched in May 2003 for the benefit of staff The scheme
rules were approved by HMRC

The scheme offered a three-year savings contract penod with options being offered at a price of 74p for grants in
2005, 93p for grants in 2006 and 114 5p for the grants in 2007 representing the maximum allowed discount of
20% Monthly contributions are made through payroll deduction directly to individual Yorkshire Bank accounts on
behalf of participating employees

All employees who had completed their probationary period prior to the closure of the invitation period were
considered eligible to participate in the scheme

Savings-related share option plan for US employees

The Beazley Group plc savings-related share option plan for US employees (the Plan) permits all eligible US-based
employees to purchase shares of Beazley Group at a discount of up to 15% to the shares’ fair market value The plan
Is designed to comply with the terms of Section 423 of the US Internai Revenue Code A similar arrangement (SAYE
scheme) 15 1n place for UK-based Beazley Group employees Approval 1s being sought from shareholders for the
adoption of this Plan

Participants elect to participate by entering into a savings contract under which the participant agrees to have a
portion of his or her compensation withheld in a savings plan for the purpose of exercising options granted under the
Plan The maximum amount of compensation that may be withheld each month under all savings contracts for any
participant may not exceed £250

After a two-year period, participants may exercise their options to purchase Beazley shares at the exercise price The
shares purchased are non-transferable for at least 12 months following exercise Unexercised options lapse twenty-
seven months after the date on which the options were granted

Options may be exercised early in the event of an employee’s death or retirement, certain other cessations of
employment and certain Beazley group change in control events The Plan, by its terms, will terminate on 5 May
2018, which 1s the tenth anniversary of its adoption

The share plans permit 10% of the company's share capital to be 1ssued pursuant to options/LTIP awards in a 10-
year penod Since November 2002, 30% of this allowance (3 0%) has been allocated for option and LTIP awards

* Directors’ share scheme interests
Details of share optrons of those directors who served during the period are as follows

Scheme A1 31 Dec Awarded Exercised Lapsed At 31 Dec Ex. Earliest date Expiry date
2006 2007 Pnce of exercise

A F Beazley Pre-IPO plan 986 584 - 747,438 249 146 - 7144 06/11/2005 06/11/2012
Unapproved 244 086 - - 244 086 - 7144 06/11/2005 06/11/2012
plan
Unapproved 153 265 - 88,434 64,831 - 9004 15/05/2006  15/05/2013
ptan
Unapproved 84 300 - 54121 - 30179 9395 29/03/2007 29/03/20:4
ptan
LTiP 28 101 - - 8261 19 840 Nil 29/03/2007  29/03/2014
LTiP 140,449 - - - 140 449 Nil 21/03/2008 21/03/2015
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LTIP 133,698 - - - 133698 Nul 21/03/2009 21/03/2016

LTIP - 140,186 - - 140 186 Nl 13/03/2010  13/03/2017

SAYE 2006 10,083 10,083 9273 01/07/20068 01/01/2010

Retention plan 112,359 - - 112,359 Nil 21/03/2008 -

Retention plan 222831 - - - 222,831 Nit 21/03/2009 -

Deferred Plan - 140 186 - - 140 186 Nit 13/03/2010 1370472010
NH Pre-IPQ plan 410,358 - 307 769 102,589 - 7144 06/11/2005 06/11/2012
Furionge

Approved plan 31931 - 20,500 - 11,431 9385 29/03/2007 29/03/2014

Unapproved 92,385 - - 92 385 - Tr44 06/11/2005 Q871172012

plan

Unapproved 72,512 - 41839 30,673 - 7144 15/05/2006 15/05/2013

plan

Unapproved 25,545 - 16 400 - 9,145 9395 29/03/2007 2970372014

plan

LTIP 19 159 - 13,527 5632 - Nil 29/03/2007 29/03/2014

LTIP 184,831 - - - 184,831 N1l 21/03/2008 2170372015

LTIP 70,781 - - - 70,781 Nil 23/03/2009  21/03/2016

LTIP - 70,093 - - 70,093 Nil 13/03/2010  13/03/2017

SAYE 2004 12736 12,736 Nil Nil N/A N/A

SAYE 2007 . 8,253 8,253 1145 01/07/2007 01/01/2011

Retention plan 28,089 - - - 28,089 Nl 21/03/2008 -

Retention plan 70.781 - - - 70,781 Ll 21/03/2009 -

Deferred Plan - 70093 - - 70093 Nil 13/03/2010  13/04/2010
J G Gray Pre-1PO plan 820716 - 615,537 205179 - 7144 06/11/2005 06/11/2012

Approved plan 31931 - 20,500 - 11431 9385 29/03/2007 29/03/2014

Unapproved 118,105 - - 118,105 - 7144 06/11/2005 0€/11/2012

plan

Unapproved 92,700 - 53488 39,212 - 8004 15/05/2006 15/05/2013

plan

Unapproved 33,209 - 21320 - 11,889 9395 29/03/2007 2970372014

plan

LTp . 21,714 - 15331 6,383 - NIt 29/03/2007  29/03/2014

LTip 190,730 - - - 190,730 NIl 21/03/2008 21/03/2015

LTiP 101,506 - - - 101,506 Nil 21/03/2009 21/03/2016

L¥IP - 105 140 - - 105,140 Nil 13/03/2010  13/03/2017

SAYE 2007 - 8,253 8,253 1145 01/07/2007 01/01/2011

Retenuon plan 84 269 - - - 84,269 Nl 21/03/2008 -

Retention plan 135341 - - - 135,341 Nil 2170372009 -

Deferred Plan - 119,158 - - 119 158 Nil 13/03/2010 13/04/2010
D A Horton Pre-IPO plan . - - -

Approved 30,351 - 17 513 12838 - 98 84  13/06/2006 13/06/2013

plan

Approved i - - 1 - 9385 29/03/2007 29/03/2014

plan

Unapproved 159,348 - 91,944 67,404 - 98 84 13/06/2006  13/06/2013

plan

Unapproved 65,140 - 41,819 - 23,321 9385 29/03/2007 2970372014

plan

LTIP 21,714 - 15,331 6383 - Nl 29/03/2007  29/03/2014

LTIP 189 606 - - . 189,606 1] 2170372008  21/03/2015

LTIP 88 476 - - . 88,476 Nil 21/03/2009 21/03/2016

LTIP - 70,093 - - 70,093 Nil 13/03/2010 1370372017

SAYE 2004 12,736 12736 Nil Nil N/A N/A

SAYE 2007 - 8,253 8253 1145 01/07/2007 01/01/2011

Retention 95 505 - - ~ 95 505 Nil 21/03/2008 -

ptan

Raetention 117,968 - - - 117,968 Nit 21/03/2009 -

plan

Ratention - 1,000,000 - ~ 1,000,000 NIt 09/10/2010 .

plan

Deferred Plan - 119,158 - - 119 158 Nil 13/03/201C  13/04/2010
NP Pre-IPO plan 879339 - 659,504 219,835 - 7144 06/11/2005 06/11/2012
Maidment

Approved 31,931 - 20500 - 11,431 9385 29/03/2007 29/03/2014

plan

Unapproved 115,481 - - 115,481 - 7144 06/11/2005 06/11/2012

plan

Unapproved 20,641 - 52,360 38 341 - 9004 15/05/2006 15/05/2013

plan

Unapproved 33,200 - 21,320 . 11,889 9395 29/03/2007 29/03/2014

plan

LTIP 21,714 - 15331 6383 - Nit 2870372007  29/03720t4

LTIP 186,404 - - - 186 404 Nit 21/03/2008 21/03/2015

LTiP 68 487 - - - 68,487 Nil 2170372009  21/03/2016

LTiP - 70,093 - ~ 70093 NIt 13/03/2010  13/03/2017

SAYE 2006 10083 10083 9273 01/07/2006 01/01/2010

Retention 84 269 - - - 84,269 wil 21/03/2008 -

Plan

Retention 91,317 - - - 91 317 Nil 21/03/2009 -

Plan
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Deferred Plan - 119158 - - 119,158 Nil 13/03/2010  13/04/2010
IGB Pre-IPO pfan 586,226 - 439669 146 557 B 7144 06/11/2005 ©6/11/2012
Rowell

Approved 31893t - - 31931 9395 29/03/2007  29/03/2014

plan

Unapproved 120731 - 120,731 - 7144 06/11/2005 0671172012

plan

Unapproved 94 760 - 40,083 54,677 9004  15/05/2006  15/05/2013

plan

Unapproved 33,209 - - 33209 8395 28/03/2007  28/03/2014

plan

LTIP 21714 - 15,331 6,383 - Nil 29/03/2007  29/03/2014

LTIP 210 112 - - - 210,112 Nil 21/03/2008 21/03/2015

LTtp 121,639 - - 121 639 il 21/03/2009  21/03/2016

LTIP - 140 186 - 140,186 NIt 13/03/2010  13/03/2017

SAYE 2007 - 8,253 8,253 1145 01/07/2007 01/01/2011

Retentton 84,269 - - 84,269 Nit 21,/03/2008 -

plan

Retention 162 186 - 162 186 Nit 21/03/2009

plan

Deferred Plan - 245,327 - - 245 327 Nil 13/03/2010 1370472010
CA Pre-IPO plan 486,567 - 364 925 121,842 - 73 06/11/2005 06/11/2012
Washbeurn

Approved 39297 - 39,297 - 78 13/11/2005 13/11/2012

plan

Unapproved 60 356 - G0 366 - T3 06/11/2005 06/11/2012

plan

Unapproved 5567 - 5567 - 78 13/11/2005 13/11/2012

plan

Unapproved 64,272 - 27 187 37,085 92 15/05/2006  15/05/2013

plan

Unapproved 65,141 - - 65 141 96 29/03/2007 2970372013

plan

LTIP 21714 - 6,383 15331 Nil 2A4/058/2007 2470372014

LTIP 169 101 - - 169,101 Nil 2170372008  21/03/2015

LTIP 90181 - 90 181 Nil 21/03/2009  21/03/2016

LTIP - 147 196 - 147,196 NIl 13/03/2010  13/03/2017

SAYE 2004 12736 12,736 Nil Nil N/A N/A

Retention 95,805 - 95,505 Nil 2170372008 -

plan

Retention 120 241 - 120 241 Nil 21/03/2009

plan

Retention 1,000,000 - - 1,000 000 Nit 4/12/2009

plan

Deferred Plan 105 140 - 105 140 Nil 13/03/201C  13/04/2010

LTIP awards mid-market price at 26 March 2004 was 94p (Source Bloomberg)
LTIP awards mid-market price at 18 March 2005 was 89p (Source Bloomberg)

LTIP awards rid-market price at 21 March 2006 was 116p (Source Bloomberg)
LTIP awards mid-market price at 13 March 2007 was 142p (Source Bloomberg)

= Directors’ interests In shares
Details of the ordinary shareholdings of the directors who held office during the year are as follows

Number of Options Options sold Shares sald Number of Shareholding
ordinary exercised ordinary shares | as a percentage
shares held held as at 31 of the total
asatl December 1ssued ordinary
January 2007 share capital as
2007 at 31
December
2007
J G W Agnew 114,263 - - - 114,263 003%
A F Beazley 5,485,300 889,993 (860,421) (3,000,000} 2,514,872 C70%
J D Fishburn 15,714 - - - 15,714 0 00%
N H Furlonge 2,511,622 412,771 (366,341) {1,250,000) 1,308,052 035%
J G Gray 3,381,750 726,176 {718,328) {1,000,000) 2,389,598 0 66%
D A Horton 36,461 179,342 (127.298) - 88.505 002%
N P Maidment 2,958,251 768,955 (761,107) - 2,966,099 082%
A D Pomfret 16,500 16,500 000%
J G B Rowell 4,783,608 455,001 (334,599) 4,904,010 135%
C A Washbourn - 377,661 (377,661) - 0 00%
W M Becker 20,000 20,000 001%
A G K Hamilton 10,000 - - - 10,000 001%
DL Jones 20,000 - - - 20,000 0 00%




With a total of 363,879,762 issued shares at 31 December 2007 (net of shares held in Treasury) the directors held
397%

As beneficiaries of the employee benefit trust, the executive directors are deemed to be interested in the shares held
by the trust which at 31 December 2007 amounted to 5,941,820 ordinary shares

= Underwriting interests on Syndicate 623

The incentive arrangements for directors and key decision makers in the business mclude an element of downside
risk through the deferment of future bonuses that will be at nsk If the syndicate declares losses through the
participation in Beazley Staff Underwriting To date over 100 employees of the group have committed to put at nsk
£5 4m of bonuses to the underwriting results of syndicate 623 Of the total at nsk, £2 4m has already been deferred
from the bonuses awarded

The following directors participated in Syndicate 623 either directly through NameCos or indirectly through Beazley
Staff Underwnting Limited

2007 year of account | 2008 year of account

capacity capacity

£ £

A F Beazley 1,965,116 437,209
N H Furlonge 232,558 300,000
J G Gray 122,791 300,000
D A Horton 232,558 300,000
N P Maidment 122,791 300,000
J G B Rowell 2,398,954 3,016,017
C A Washbourn 120,598 300,000

The directors believe that 1t 1s important that the incentive arrangements include an element of downside risk to align
further with the interests of capital providers The directors participate in the underwniting and have exposure to
underwriting results either through direct involvements in NameCos or through participation in Beazley Staff
Underwriting Limited that provides an indirect involvement in the results of the syndicate

Annual general meeting
A resotution will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting to be held on 21 Apnl 2008 to approve this
directors’ remuneration report

By order of the board

Dudley Fishburmn

Chairman of the remuneration committee
Plantation Place South

60 Great Tower Street

London EC3R S5AD

26 February 2008
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DIRECTORS' REPORT

The directors have pleasure in presenting therr report and the audited financial statements of the group for the year
ended 31 December 2007

Principal activity

The company 1s the ultimate holding company for the Beazley group, a global specialist nsk insurance and
reinsurance business operating through Lloyd's syndicates 2623 and 623 1n the UK and BICI, a US admitted carrier
In the US

Review of business
A more detailed review of the business for the year and a summary of future developments are included in the
chairman’s statement on pages * to * and the business review on pages * to *

Results and dividends
The consolidated profit before taxation for the year ended 31 December 2007 amounted to £138 5m (2006
£86 8m)

The directors recommend a final dividend of 4 Op (2006 3 2p) per ordinary share and a special dividend of 4 Op per
share This, when taken with the intenm dividend of 2 Op {2006 1 6p) per share, gives a total ordinary dividend of

6 Op per share for the year ended 31 December 2007 (2006 4 8p) The total dividend payable for the year s 10 Op
per ordinary share

Directors
The directors of the company at 31 December 2007, who served dunng the year and to the date of this report, were
as follows

Jonathan Geoffrey William Agnew (non-executive chairmany
Andrew Frederick Beazley (chief executive)

Dawd Andrew Horton (group finance director}
Nicholas Hill Furlonge (director)

Jonathan George Gray (director)

Neill Patrick Maidment (director)

Jonathan George Benton Rowell (director)

Clive Andrew Washbourn {director)

John Dudley Fishburn {non-executive director)
Andrew David Pomfret (non-executive director)
Daniel Lawrence Jones (non-executive director)
Willilam Marston Becker (non-executive director)
Alexander Gordon Kelso Hamilton (non-executive director)}

In accordance with the articles of association Andrew Beazley, Nicholas Furlonge, Neil Maidment and Dudley
Fishburn retire by rotation and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting

Details of directors’ service contracts and beneficial interests In the company's share capital are given In the

directors’ remuneration report on pages ** to ** Biographies of directors seeking re-glection are set out on page
* %k

Corporate governance

The company’s compliance with corporate governance 1s disclosed in the corporate governance statement on pages
* 4 tO %k

Going concern
The directors have prepared these accounts on a going concern basis, as they are of the opinion that the company
and group will be able to pay its debts as and when they fall due

After reviewing the group’s budgets and medium-term plans, the directors have a reasonable expectation that the
group has adequate resources to continue In operational existence for the foreseeable future
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Supplier payment policy

The company and group's policy for the year ending 31 December 2007, for all suppliers, 1s to fix terms of payment
when agreeing the terms of each business transaction, to ensure the supplier 1s aware of those terms and to abide
by the agreed terms of payment The group had an average 47 days, purchases included in trade creditors at 31

December 2007 (2006 50 days)

Corporate, social and environmental responsibility

The company's corporate, soclal and environmental policy 1s disclosed on pages ** to **

No political donations were made by the group 1n either of the current or prior reporting period

Financial instruments and risk management
The board agrees and reviews policies and financial instruments for risk management

Further information on reinsurance, borrowings and financial instruments 1s contained In notes ***** to the

financial statements

Substantial shareholdings

As at 19 February 2008, the board had been notified of, or was otherwise aware of, the following shareholdings of
3% or more of the company's 1ssued ordinary share capital

Number of %
ordinary shares

Amvescap plc and subsidiaries 53,492,881 147
JP Morgan Asset Management 32,306,491 89
Barclays Global Investors 29,744,570 82
Jupiter Asset Management 27,594,505 76
Legal & General Investment Management 20,959,995 58
Aberforth Partners 17,978,799 49
Scottish Widows 12,957,514 36
SSGA 11,656,062 32

Annual general meeting [TBA]

The notice of the annual general meeting to be held at 4 00pm on Thursday, 21 April 2008 at Plantation Place South
1S set out in the circular to shareholders regarding the annual general meeting

Resolutions to be proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting are, inter alia

s Renew the directors' general authority to allot the company’s ordinary shares up to an aggregate nominal

amount of £4 500,000 Thus authornty shall expire on whichever 1s the earlier of the conclusion of the annua!
general meeting of the company to be held in 2008 or the date falling fifteen months from the passing of this
resolution The directors have no present intention of exercising this authonty, which represents 24 75% of the

present 1ssued share capital,

» Approve a lmited disapplication of pre-emption nghts on allctments for cash up to an aggregate nominal amount

of £900,000, representing 4 95% of the present 1ssued share capital

s Authornse the directors to make purchases of the company's ardinary shares in the market for cancellation or to
be held 1n treasury when the directors consider that it would be in the best interests of the company to do so, up
to an aggregate nominal amount of £1,800,000, representing 9 9% of the present 1ssued share capital

Following the introduction of The Compares (Acquisitions of Own Shares) (Treasury Shares) Regulations 2003,

companies are now able to hold shares acquired by way of market purchase in treasury, rather than cancelling
them The company may consider holding any of its own shares which it purchases pursuant to the authority
conferred by the relevant resolution as treasury shares This would allow the company to sell shares out of

treasury, providing the company with the ability to replenish its distributable reserves No dividends will be paid

on any shares held in treasury and no voting nights will attach to such shares It will also be possible for the

company to transfer shares out of treasury, pursuant to an employee share scheme

At 26 February 2008 the company held 5,748,038 ordinary shares in treasury
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This 1s a renewal of the authonty granted by shareholders at the 2004 annual general meeting

s Aresolution to adopt new Articles of Asscciation to reflect the provisions of the Companies Act 2006 relating to
directors conflicts of interests

At 26 February 2008 there are outstanding options to subscribe for & 9m ordinary shares pursuant to employee
share schemes, representing 1 9% of the 1ssued share capital If the authority to purchase shares were exercised In
full, these ophions would represent 2 1% of the enlarged 1ssued share capital

Auditors
A resolution to re-appoint KPMG Audit plc as auditors will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting

Disclosure of information to auditors

The directors who held office at the date of approval of this directors’ report confirm that, so far as they are each
aware, there Is no relevant audit information of which the company's auditors are unaware, and each director has
taken all the steps that he ought to have taken as a director to make himself aware of any relevant audit information
and to establish that the company's auditors are aware of that information

By order of the board

A R Manners W{)j

Company secretary
Plantation Place Sou
60 Great Tower Street
London EC3R 5AD

26 February 2008
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STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITIES IN RESPECT OF THE ANNUAL REPORT AND THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and the group and parent company financial
statements in accordance with applicable law and regulations

Company law requires the directors to prepare group and parent company financia! statements for each financial
year Under that law they are required to prepare the group financial statements 1n accordance with IFRSs as
adopted by the EU and applicable law and have elected to prepare the parent company financtal statements on the
same basis

The group and parent company financial statements are required by law and IFRSs as adopted by the EU to present
fairly the financial position of the group and the parent company and the performance for that period, the Companies
Act 1985 provides In relation to such financial statements that references in the relevant part of that Act to financial
statements giving a true and fair view are references to their achieving a farr presentation

In prepanng each of the group and parent company financial statements, the directors are required to

* select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently,

+ make Judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent,

» state whether they have been prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the EU, and

« prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it 1s iInappropriate to presume that the group
and the parent company will continue i business

The directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting records that disclose with reasonable accuracy at any
time the financial position of the parent company and enable them to ensure that its financial statements comply
with the Companies Act 1985 They have general responsibility for taking such steps as are reasonably open to them
to safeguard the assets of the group and to prevent and detect fraud and other irregularnties

Under applicable law and regulations, the directors are also responsible for preparing a Directors' Report, Directors'
Remuneration Report and Corporate Governance Statement that comply with that law and those regulations

The directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial information included

on the company's website Legislation in the UK governing the preparation and dissemination of financial statements
may differ from legislation in other junsdictions
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF BEAZLEY GROUP PLC

We have audited the group and parent company financial statements {the "financial statements") of Beazley Group
plc for the year ended 31 December 2007 which comprise the Group Income Statement, the Group and Parent
Company Balance Sheets, the Group and Parent Company Cash Flow Statements, the Group and Parent Company
Statements of Changes in Equity, and the refated notes These financial statements have been prepared under the
accounting policies set out therein We have also audited the information in the Directors' Remuneration Report that
1s described as having been audited

This report 1s made solely to the company's members, as a body, In accordance with section 235 of the Companies
Act 1985 Qur audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company’s members those matters we
are reguired to state them in an audrtors report and for no other purpose To the fullest extent permitted by law, we
do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the company and the company’s members as a body,
for our audit wark, for this repart, or for the opinions we have formed

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors

The directors' respensibilities for preparing the Annual Report, the Directors' Remuneration Report and the financial
statements in accordance with applicable law and International Financial Reporting Standards {IFRSs) as adopted by
the EU are set out in the Statement of Directors' Responstbilities on page 61

Our responsibility 1s to audit the financial statements and the part of the Directors' Remuneration Report to be
audited i accordance with relevant legal and regulatory requirements and International Standards on Auditing (UK
and Ireland)}

We report to you our opinion as to whether the financial statements give a true and fair view and whether the
financial statements and the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited have been properly prepared
in accordance with the Companies Act 1985 and, as regards the group financial statements, Article 4 of the iAS
Regulation We also report to you whether in our opinion the information given in the Directors’ Report 1s consistent
with the financral statements The information given in the Directors’ Report includes that specific information
presented in the Chairman’s Statement and Business Review that i1s cross referred from the Business Review section
of the Directors' Report

In addition we report to you If, in our opinion, the company has not kept proper accounting records, If we have not
received all the information and explanations we require for our audit, or if iInformation specified by law regarding
directors’ remuneration and other transactrons 1s not disclosed

We review whether the Corporate Governance Statement reflects the company's compliance with the nine provisions
of the 2006 Combined Code specified for our review by the Listing Rules of the Financial Services Authorty, and we
report if it does not We are not required to consider whether the board's statements on internal control cover all
nsks and controls, or form an opinion on the effectiveness of the group's corporate governance procedures or its nsk
and control procedures

We read the other information contamed In the Annua! Report and consider whether 1t 1s consistent with the audited
financial statements We consider the implications for our report If we become aware of any apparent misstatements
or matenal inconsistencies with the financial statements Our responsibilities do not extend to any other information

Basis of audit opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Internaticnal Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland} issued by the

Auditing Practices Board An audit includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the amounts and

disclosures in the financial statements and the part of the Directors' Remuneration Report to be audited It also

Includes an assessment of the significant estimates and judgments made by the directors in the preparation of the

financial statements, and of whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the group's and company's

circumstances, consistently applied and adequately disclosed !

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the information and explanations which we considered
necessary (n order to provide us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance that the financial statements
and the part of the Directors' Remuneration Report to be audited are free from matenal misstatement, whether
caused by fraud or other irregulanty or error In forming our opinion we also evaluated the overall adequacy of the
presentation of information in the financial statements and the part of the Directors' Remuneration Report to be
audited
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Opinion

in our opiNIon

. the group financial statements give a true and fair view, tn accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the EU, of the
state of the group's affairs as at 31 December 2007 and of its profit for the year then ended,

. the parent company financial statements give a true and fair view, 1n accordance with IFRSs as adopted by

the EU as applied in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 1985, of the state of the parent
company's affairs as at 31 December 2007,

. the financial statements and the part of the Directors' Remuneration Report to be audited have been properly
prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 1985 and, as regards the group financial statements, Article 4
of the 1AS Regulation, and

. the information given in the Directors' Report 1s consistent with the financial statements
KPMG Audit PIC

Chartered accountants
Registered auditor

8 Salisbury Square
London
ECAY &BB

| United Kingdom

26 February 2008
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2007

2007 2006
Notes £m £m
Gross premiums written 3 7805 7451
Written premiums ceded to remnsurers (128 3) {170 8)
Net premiums written 3 €652 2 574.3
Change in gross provision for unearned premiums 24 7) (84 9)
Reinsurer's share of change in the provision for unearned
premiums {10 3) 202
Change in net provision for unearned premiums {350) (64 7)
Net earned premiums 3 617 2 5096
Net investment income 4 649 483
Other income 5 101 71
750 554
Revenue 692 2 565.0
Insurance claims 3386 3570
Insurance claims recoverable from reinsurers (31 2) (86 3}
Net insurance claims 3 307.4 2707
Expenses for the acquisition of insurance contracts 3 1792 1338
Administrative expenses 6 582 458
Foreign exchange (gain)/ loss 6 (31) 223
Operating expenses 2343 2019
Expenses 3 5417 472.6
Results of operating activities 1505 924
Finance costs 8 (12 0) (5 6)
Profit before tax 1385 868
Comprises
Profit before tax and foreign exchange adjustments on
non-monetary items 1303 96 2
Foreign exchange on non-monetary items 3 82 94
Income tax expense 9 (38 1) (26 9)
Profit after tax 1004 599
Earnings per share (pence per share):
Basic 10 281 167
Diluted 10 27 4 166
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BALANCE SHEET
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2007

Assets

Intang)ble assets

Plant and equipment
Investment in subsidiaries
Investment In assoclates
Deferred acquisition costs
Deferred income tax
Financial investments
Derivative financial instrument
Insurance receivables
Reinsurance assets
Current Income tax

Other receivables

Cash and cash equivalents

Total assets

Equity

Share capital
Reserves
Retained earnings

Total equity

Liabilities

Insurance liabilities

Borrowings

Dervative financial instruments
Other payables

Retirement benefit cbligations
Deferred income tax

Current income tax liabilities

Total llabilities

Total equity and hiabilities

2007 2006
Group Company Group Company
Notes £m £m £m £m
12 287 - 219 -
13 72 - 70 -
- 979 - 651
14 13 - 13 -
15 820 - 789 -
28 45 - 35 -
16 1,132 3 3418 958 4 3400
25 12 12 - -
17 1999 - 2361 -
18,23 3533 - 3531 -
- 30 - 07
120 1056 146 254
19 358 3 209 209 4 298
2,1807 570.4 1,884.2 4610
20 184 184 181 181
21,22 2231 2241 2258 2309
1571 1293 756 149
398 6 371.8 319.5 263.9
23 14719 - 12256 -
24 1567 158 8 154 9 1570
25 - - 24 24
26 106 6 398 152 7 377
27 09 - 19 -
28 340 - 116 -
120 - 156 -
1,782.1 198.6 1,564.7 1971
2,1807 570.4 1,884.2 4610

The financial statements were approved by the board of directors on 26 February 2008 and were signed on 1ts

e

behalf by

J G W Agnew, Chairman
A F Beazley, Chief Executive
D A Horton, Finance Director
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2007

Group

Balance at 1 January 2006

Retained profits for the year

Change i net investment hedge

Foreign exchange translation differences
Dividends paid

Issue of shares

Equity settled share based payments
Acguisition of own shares 1n trust

Balance at 31 December 2006

Retained profits for the year

Change in net investment hedge

Foreign exchange translation differences
Dividends paid

Issue of shares

Equity settled share based payments
Acquisttion of own shares in trust

Purchase of treasury shares
Transfer of shares to employees

Balance at 31 December 2007

Company

Balance at 1 January 2006

Retained profits for the year

Foreign exchange translation differences
Dividends paid

Issue of shares

Balance at 31 December 2006

Retained profits for the year
Dividends paid

Issue of shares

Equity settled share based payments
Purchase of treasury shares
Acquisition of own shares In trust
Transfer of shares to employees

Balance at 31 December 2007

Share Retained
capital Reserves earnings Total
Notes £m £m £m £m
18.0 2321 303 2804
- - 599 59 9
- {06) - (0 8)
- 28) - (28)
11 - - (14 6) (14 6)
20,21 01 03 - o4
21 - 08 - 08
21 . (4 0) - (4 0)
181 2258 756 3195
. - 100 4 100 4
- o1 - 01
11 - - (18 6) (18 6)
20,21 03 40 - 43
21 - 34 (0 3) 31
21 - (5 4) . (5 4)
21 - (51) - (51)
21 - 03 03
184 2231 157 1 398.6

Share Retained
capital Reserves earnings Total
Notes £m £m £m im
180 2294 16.1 . 2635
- - 134 134
- 13 - 13
11 - - (14 6) (14 6)
20,21 01 02 - 03
181 2309 149 2639
- - 1319 1319
11 - - (18 6) (18 6}
20,21 03 40 - 43
- 50 11 61
21 - 51 - (51)
21 - (11 0) (11 0)
21 - 03 03
18.4 224.1 1293 3718
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT

FCR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2007

Cash flow from operating activities

Profit before tax

Adjustments for non-cash items
Amortisation of Intangibles
Equity settled share based
compensation

Foreign exchange translation of foreign

subsidiary

Net fair value losses/(gains) on
financial assets

Cepreciation of plant & equipment
Transfer of own shares in trust
Transfer of shares to employees

Changes in operating assets and
habilities

Increase in insurance liabilities
Decrease/ (Increase) In insurance
receivables

Decrease/(increase) in other receivables

Increase in deferred acquisition costs
Decrease/(increase) in reinsurance
assets

Increase In other payables

Income tax paid

Contribution to pension fund
Acquisition of own shares in trust

Net cash from operating activities

Cash flow from investing activities
Purchase of plant and equipment
Purchase of syndicate capacity
Acquisition of subsidiary {net of cash
acquired)

Purchase of goodwili

Purchase of investments

Expenditure on software development
Proceeds from sale of investments
Capital injection in subsichary

Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flow from financing activities
Proceeds from 1ssue of shares
Purchase of treasury shares

Repayment of syndicated loan
Proceeds from Tier 2 subordinated debt
Dividends paid

Net cash used In financing activities

Net increase In cash and cash
equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning
of year

Notes

21

13
12

12

12

11

2007 2006
Group Company Group Company
£m £m £m £m
138.5 132.3 868 14.4
24 - 14 -
31 62 o8 -
(12) - {4 6) -
(14 3) (4 6) (8 8) o8
16 - 12 -
- (56)
03 03
246 4 - 1292 -
362 - (851) -
24 {80 2) 139 229
(31) - (26 2) -
(02) - 492 -
(49 2) 20 376 65
(18 7) 27 (11 5) (31
(10) - (10) .
(54) (5 4) (4 Q)
3378 423 178.9 415
(18) - 57
- - 02
- - 22y -
57 - - -
{2,522 5) (411 8) (2,125 1) (412 4)
17 - (31) -
2,363 0 4145 1,947 2 2935
- {32 8) - (334)
(168.7) (301) {189.1) (152.3)
44 44 04 04
(51) (51) - .
- (1 8) {18 6) -
. - 1481 1481
(18 6) {18 6) {14 6) {14 6)
(19 3) (21 1) 1153 1339
1498 (89) 1051 23.1
209 4 298 1126 67
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Effect of exchange rate changes on cash
and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

19

(0 9)

{(83)

358 3

209

2094

298
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 Statement of accounting policies

Beaziey Group plc 1s a group domiciled in England and Wales The consolidated financial statements of the group for
the year ended 31 December 2007 compnse the parent company and its subsidiaries and the group's interest in
assoclates

Both the financial statements of the parent company, Beazley Group pic, and the consolidated financial statements
of the group have been prepared and approved by the directors in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the EU
{'Adopted IFRSs’) On publishing the parent company financtal statements here together with the group financial
statements, the parent company Is taking advantage of the exemption in 230 of the Companies Act 1985 not to
present its iIndvidual income statement and related notes that form a part of these approved financial statements
The following accounting policies apply to both the group and parent company unless otherwise indicated

These consohdated financial statements have been prepared on the basis of adopted IFRSs in 1ssue that are
effective or available for early adoption at 31 December 2007 Based on these adopted IFRSs, the directors have
applied the accounting policies, as set out below

In preparing these consolidated financial statements, the group has adopted IFRS 8 “Operating Segments” prior to
its required application date of 1 January 2009

The adoption of IFRS 8 has impacted the type and amount of disclosures made In these financial statements, but
had no impact on the reported profits or financial position of the group or the parent company In accordance with
the transitional requirements of the standards, the group and the parent company have provided full comparative
information

IFRIC 11 “Group and Treasury Share Transactions” has been earty adopted This did not have an impact on the
group’s current treatment of recording share incentives awarded to employees as equity settled share based
payment transactions of the parent company |

The following new standard and interpretation reteased by the International Accounting Standards Board {IASB) have
not been early adopted but are expected to be of relevance to future financial years Neither of these are expected to |
have any significant tmpact on the future consolidated financial statements of the group

IAS 23 (amended) “Borrowing costs”
IFRIC 14 “The Limit on a Defined Benefit Asset, Mirimum Funding Requirements and their Interaction”™

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below The
policies have been consistently applied to all perods presented, unless otherwise stated

Basis of presentation

The consolidated financial statements are prepared using the historical cost convention except that denvative
financial instruments are stated at their fair value All amounts presented are stated in sterling and millions, unless
noted otherwise

Use of estimates and judgements

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the application of accounting policies and reported amounts of assets, habilittes, income and expenses
Actual results may differ from these estimates

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the penod in which the estimate Is revised and in any future penods affected

In particular, information about significant areas of estmation uncertainty and cnucal Judgements in applying

accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised In the financial statements are
described in notes 2 and 23 {on sk management, insurance habilities and reinsurance assets) |

Consolidation
a) Subsidiary undertakings
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Subsichary undertakings, which are those entities in which the group, directly or indirectly, has the power to exercise
control over financial and operating polictes sc as to obtain benefits from their activities, have been consolidated
They are consolidated from the date on which control s transferred to the group and cease to be consolidated from
the date on which control ceases

The group has used the purchase method of accounting for the acquisition of subsidiaries Under purchase
accounting, the cost of acquisition 1s measured as the fair value of assets given, shares issued or habiitties
undertaken at the date of acquisition plus costs directly attnbutable to the acquisition The excess of the cost of an
acquisition over the net fair value of the identifiable assets, labiities and contingent liabilities of the subsidiary
acquired 1s recorded as goodwill

Financial investments made by the parent company in group undertakings are stated at cost and are reviewed for
Impairment when events or changes in circumstances indicate the carrying value may be impaired

Certain group subsidianes underwrite as corporate members of Lioyd's on a syndicate managed by Beazley Furionge
Limited In view of the several liabilty of underwriting members at Lloyd's for the transactions of syndicates in which
they participate, only attributable share of transactions, assets and habilities of that syndicate has been included in
the financial statements

b) Associates
Associates are those entitres in which the group has power to exert significant influence but which 1t does not control
Significant infiuence 1s generally presumed If the group has between 20% and 50% of voting nghts

Investments in assoclates are accounted for using the equity method of accounting  Under this method, the group’s
share of post-acquisibion profits or losses 1s recognised n the income statement and its share of post-acquisition
movements 1S recognised In reserves The cumulative post-acquisition movements are adjusted against the cost of
the investment

When the group’s share of losses equals or exceeds the carrying amount of the associate, the carrying amount 1s
reduced tc mil and recognition for the losses 1s discontinued except to the extent that the group has incurred
obiigations In respect of the associate

Equity accounting i1s discontinued when the group no longer has significant influence over the investment

¢) Intercompany balances and transactions
All intercompany transactions, balances and unrealised gains or losses on transactions between group companies
have been eiminated Transactions and balances between the group and associates are not elrminated

Foreign currency translation

a) Functional and presentation currency

Items inciuded in the financial statements of the parent and the subsidianes are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment tn which the relevant entity operates (the "functional currency”) The consohdated
finanoial statements are presented in sterhing, which is the group's presentation currency

b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using average exchange rates applicable to
this penod and which the group considers to be a reasonable approximation of the transaction rate  Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from translation at the penod end
of monetary assets and habilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in the income statement Non-
monetary items recorded at histoncal cost in foreign currencies are translated using the exchange rate on the date of
the nitial transaction

¢) Group companies

The results and financial position of the group companies that have a functional currency different from the

presentation currency are translated into the presentation currency as follows

+ assets and liabilities are translated at the closing rate ruling at the balance sheet date,

« income and expenses for each income statement are translated at average exchange rates for the reporting
perod, and

+ all resulting exchange differences are recognised as a separate component of equity
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The exchange differences on disposal of foreign entities are recognised In the income statement as part of the gain
or loss on disposal

Insurance contracts

Insurance contracts (including inwards reinsurance contracts) are defined as those containing significant insurance
nsk Insurance nsk 1s considered significant if, and only If, an insured event could cause an insurer to pay significant
additional benefits in any scenario, excluding scenarios that lack commercial substance Such contracts remain
insurance centracts until all nghts and obligations are extinguished or expire

Financial guarantees provided by the parent company to subsidianes are treated as insurance contracts under IFRS
4

Net earned premiums

a) Premiums

Gross premiums written represent premiums on business commencing in the financial year together with
adjustments to premiums written In previous accounting penods and estimates for premiums from contracts entered
inte duning the course of the vear Gross premiums written are stated before deduction of brokerage, taxes, duties
levied on premiums and cther deductions

b) Unearned premiums

A provision for unearned premiums (gross of reinsurance) represents that part of the gross premiums written that is
estimated will be earned in the following financial periods It is calculated using the daily pro-rata method where the
premium 1s apportioned over the penod of nsk

Deferred acquisition costs (DAC)

Acquisition costs comprise brokerage, premium levy and staff-related costs of the underwnters acquiring new
business and renewing existing contracts The proportion of acquisition costs in respect of unearned premiums 1S
deferred at the balance sheet date and recognised in later penods when the related premiums are earned

Claims

These include the cost of ¢claims and claims handiing expenses paid during the period, together with the movements
in provisions for outstanding claims, claims incurred but not reported {IBNR) and claims handling provisions  The
provision for claims comprises amounts set aside for claims advised and IBNR

The IBNR amount is based on estimates calculated using widely accepted actuanal techniques which are reviewed
quarterly by the group actuary and annually by Beazley's independent syndicate reporting actuary The technigues
generally use projections, based on past experience of the development of claims over time, to form a view on the
likely ultimate claims to be expenenced For more recent underwniting years, regard 1s given to the vanations in the
business portfolic accepted and the underlying terms and conditions Thus, the critical assumptions used when
estimating provisions are that past experience 1S a reasonable predictor of likely future claims development and that
the rating and business portfolio assumptions are a fair reflection of the likely level of ultimate claims to be incurred
for the more recent years

Liability adequacy testing

At each balance sheet date, hability adequacy tests are performed to ensure the adequacy of the claims liabilities net
of DAC in performing these tests, current best estimates of future contractual cash flows, claims handiing and
administration expenses as well as investment iIncome from the assets backing such liabilities are used Any
deficiency 1s immediately charged to the income statement iniuially by writing off DAC and by subsequently
establishing a provision for losses ansing from hability adequacy tests (“unexpired risk provision”)

Reinsurance

These are contracts entered into by the group with reinsurers under which the group 1s compensated for losses on
contracts 1ssued by the group and that meet the definition of an insurance contract Insurance contracts entered
into by the group under which the contract holder 1s another insurer (inwards reinsurance} are included with
insurance contracts

Any benefits to which the group 1s entitled under its reinsurance contracts held are recognised as reinsurance assets
These assets consist of balances due from reinsurers and include reinsurers’ share of provisions for claims  These
balances are based on calculated amounts of cutstanding claims and projections for IBNR, net of estimated
irrecoverable amounts having regard to the reinsurance programme in place for the class of business, the claims
expenence for the penod and the current secunty rating of the reinsurer involved Reinsurance habrities are
primarily premiums payable for reinsurance contracts and are recognised as an expense when due
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The group assesses Its reinsurance assets for mpairment  If there 1s objective evidence of impairment, then the
carrying amount s reduced to its recoverable amount and the impairment toss 1s recogrised in the income
statement

Revenue
Revenue consists of net earned premium, net investment income, profit commissions earned and managing agent's
fees

Profit commissicns and managing agent’s fees are recognised as the services are provided

Dividends paid

Dividend distnbution to the shareholders of the group 1s recognised 1n the penod tn which the dividends are
approved by the shareholders in the group’s annual general meeting Intenm dividends are recognised in the period
in which they are paid and approved by the board of directors

Plant and equipment

All plant and equipment Is recorded at cost less accumulated depreciation Depreciation 1s calculated using the
straight-line method to allocate the cost of the assets to their residual values over their esumated useful lives as
follows

Fixtures and fittings Three to ten years
Computer equipment Three years

These assets’ residual value and useful lives are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted If approprate

The carrying values of property and equipment are reviewed for impairment when events or changes in circumstance
indicate that the carrying value may be impaired If any such condition exists, the recoverable amount of the asset 1s
estimated in order to determine the extent of Impairment and the difference 1s charged to the income statement

Intangible assets

a) Goodwilf

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition over the fair value of the group’s share of the fair value
of the identifiable assets, habilitres and contingent liabilities of the acquired subsidiary at the date of acquisition
Goodwill 1s carned at cost less accumulated impairment losses

Goodwill has an indefinrte hfe and 1s annually tested for impairment Goodwill 1s allocated to each cash generating
untt for the purpose of impairment testing Goodwill 1S impaired when the net present value of the forecast future
cash flows 15 insufficient to support its carrying value On transition to IFRS at 1 January 2004, any goodwill
previously amortised or written off was not reinstated

b) Syndicate capacity

The syndicate capacity represents the cost of purchasing the group’s participation in the combined syndicates The
capacity 1s caprtalised at cost in the balance sheet It has an indefinite useful life and 1s carned at cost less
accumulated impairment It 1s annually tested for impairment by reference to the expected future profit streams to
be earned by Syndicate 2623 and provision 1s made for any impairment

¢c) Licences

Licences are shown at historical cost They have an indefinite useful life and are carnied at cost less accumulated
impairment Licences are annually tested for impairment and provision 1s made for any impairment when the net
present value of future cash flows 1$ less than the carrying value

d) IT development costs

Costs that are directly associated with the development of identifiable and unique software products and that are
anticipated to generate economic benefits exceeding costs beyond one year, are recognised as intangible assets

Costs Include external consultants’ fees, certain qualifying internal staff costs and other costs incurred to develop
software programs These costs are amortised over their estimated useful ife (three years) Other non-qualifying
costs have been expensed as incurred

Financial instruments
Financial instruments are recogrised 1n the balance sheet at such time that the group becomes a party to the

contractual provisions of the financial instrument A financial asset 1s derecognised when the contractual nghts to
receive cash flows from the financial assets expire, or where the financial assets have been transferred, together
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with substantially all the nsks and rewards of ownership Financial labilities are derecogrised if the group’s
obligations specified in the contract expire, are discharged or cancelled

Purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the trade date, which 1s the date the group commits to
purchase or sell the asset

The fair value option 1n IAS 39 has been used to eliminate measurement or recognition iconsistency that would
result from measunng assets or liabilities or recognising gains or losses on them on different bases

Financial assets

On acquisition of a financial asset, the group 1s required to classify the asset into the following categonies financial
assets at fair value through the income statement, loans and receivables, held to maturity and available for sale
The group does not make use of the held to matunty and available for sale classifications

Financial assets at fair value through income statement
This category has two sub-categones financial assets held for trading and those designated at fair value through the
Income statement at inception

Trading assets are those assets which are acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the short term, or which
are held as part of a portfolio in which there 1s evidence of short-term profit taking or if it 15 designated so by
management Dervatives are classified as held for trading unless they are designated as hedges

A financial asset s designated as fair value through the income statement upon initial recogrition If it is managed
and 1ts performance is evaluated on a fair value basis  Information about these financial assets i1s provided internally
on a fair value basis to the group's key management The group’s Investment strategy I1s to invest and evaluate their
performance with reference to their fair values

Upon initial recognition, attributable transaction costs are recognised in the income statement when incurred
Financial assets at fair value through the income statement are measured at fair value, and changes therein are
recogrused In the Income statement  Net changes in the fair value of financial assets at fair value through the
Income statement exclude interest and dividend income

Insurance receivables and payables

Insurance receivables and payables are recognised when due These include amounts due to and from agents,
brokers and insurance contract holders These are classified as “loans and rece(vables” as they are non-denvative
financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted on an active market Insurance receivables
are measured at amortised cost less any provision for impairments Insurance payables are stated at amortised cost

Other receivables
Other receivables principally consist of prepaymenits, accrued income and sundry debtors and are carrned at
amortised cost

Investment income

Investment income consists of dividends, interest, realised and unrealsed gains and losses on financial assets at
fair value through the income statement Dividends on equity securities are recorded as revenue on the ex-dividend
date Interest s recognised on an accruals basis for financial assets at farr value through the income statement
Realised gains or losses on disposal of an investment 1s the difference between the proceeds and the carrying value
of the Investment Unrealised investment gains and losses represent the difference between the carrying value at
the balance sheet date, and the carrying value at the previous period end or purchase value durnng the penod

Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recorded at fair value less transaction costs incurred  Subsequently borrowings are stated at
amortised cost and interest 1s recognised in the income statement over the period of the borrowings using the
effective interest method

Finance costs comprise interest payable, fees paid for the arrangement of debt and letter of credit facihty and
commissions charged for the utilisation of letters of credit  These costs are recognised in the income statements
using an effective interest method

Other payables
Other payables are stated at amortised cost
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Hedge accounting and derivative financial instruments

Denvatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which a denvative contract is entered into and are
subsequently re-measured at their fair value The method of recognising the resulting fair value gains or losses
depends on whether the denvative 1s designated as a hedging instrument and, If so, the nature of the item being
hedged Fair values are obtained from guoted market prices in active markets, recent market transactions, and
valuation techniques which include discounted cash flow models  All denivatives are carried as assets when far
value 1s positive and as liabilities when fair value 1s negative

The best evidence of fair value of a denvative at inttial recognition 1s the transaction price
The group designates certain derivatives as cash flow hedges or net investment hedges

The group documents at the inception of the transaction the relationship between hedging Instruments and hedged
tems, as weil as its nsk management objective and strategy for undertaking various hedging transactions The
group also documents its assessment, both at hedge inception and on an ongoing basis, of whether the denvatives
that are being used in hedging transactions are expected to be and have been highly effective In offsetting changes
in fair values or cash flows of hedged items

a) Cash flow hedges

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualify as cash flow hedges 1s
recognised in equity  The gatn or loss relating to any ineffective portion 1s recognised immediately in the income
statement within “net fair value gains/(losses) on denvative financial instruments”

If the denivative expires or 1s sold, terminated, exercised, or no longer meets the critena for cash flow hedge
accounting, or the designation is revoked, then hedge accounting 1s discontinued and the amount recognised in
equity remains In equity until the forecast transaction affects the income statement  If the forecast transaction 1s no
longer expected to occur, then the hedge accounting 1s discontinued and the balance in equity 1s recognised
Immediately in the iIncome statement

b} Fair value hedges

When a derivative 1s designated as a hedge of the change In fair value of a recognised asset or hability or a firm
commitment, changes in the fair value of the denvative are recognised immediately in the income statement
together with the changes in the fair value of the hedged item that are attributable to the hedged risk

If the derivative expires or Is sold, terminated, exercised, or no longer meets the critena for far value hedge
accounting, or the designation 1s revoked, hedge accounting 1s discontinued  Any adjustment up to that point, to a
hedged rtem for which the effective interest method 1s used, 1s amortised to profit or loss as part of the recalculated
effective interest rate of the item over its remaining life

¢) Netinvestment hedges

Hedges of net investments in foreign operations are accounted for simitarly to cash flow hedges Any gain or loss on
the hedging instrument relating to the effective portion of the hedge 1s recognised in equity, the gain or loss relating
to the ineffective portion 1s recognised immediately In the income statement within “net fair value gamns/(losses) on
financial investments” through the income statement

Gains and losses accumulated in equity are included 1n the income statement on disposal of the foreign operation

Impairment of financial assets

The group assesses at each balance sheet date whether there 1s objective evidence that a financial asset or group of
financial assets 1s impawed A financial asset or group of financial assets s impaired and iImpairment fosses are
incurred only If there 1s objective evidence of iImpairment as a result of one or more events that have occurred after
the initial recognition of the assets and that event has an impact on the estimated cash flows of the financial asset
or group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated

If there 1s objective evidence that impairment exists, the amount of the loss 1s measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the value of the estimated future cash flows The amount of the loss 1s recognised
in the income statement

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash at bank and in hand, deposits held at calt with banks, bank overdrafts
and other short-term highly hiquid investments with maturnities of three months or less from the date of acquisition
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Operating leases

Leases where a significant portion of the nsks and rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as
operating leases Payments made for operating leases are charged to the iIncome statement on a straight-hne basis
over the penod of the lease

Employee henefits

a) Pension obligations

The group operates a defined benefit pension plan that 1s now closed to future service accruals  The scheme I1s
generally funded by payments from the group taking account of the recommendations of an independent qualified
actuary All employees now participate in a defined contribution pension funded by the group

A defined benefit plan 1s a pension plan that defines an amount of pension benefit that an employee will receive on
retirement, usually dependent on one or more factors like age, years of service and compensation The pension costs
are assessed using the projected unit credit method  Under this method the costs of providing pensions are charged
to the Income statement so as to spread the regular costs over the service lives of employees in accordance with the
advice of the qualified actuary, who values the plans annually The pension obligation (s measured at present value
of the estimated future net cash flows and 1s stated net of plan assets

Actuanal gains or losses ansing subsequent to 1 January 2004 are accounted for using the ‘corndor method’
Actuanal gains or losses that exceed 10 per cent of the greater of the fair value of the plan assets or the present
value of the gross defined benefit obligations in the scheme are recognised in the iIncome statement over the
average remaining working lives of employees participating in the scheme

For the defined contribution plan, the group pays contributions to a privately administered pension plan Once the
contnbutions have been patd, the group has no further obligations The group’s contributions are charged to the
income statement in the period to which they relate

b) Share-based compensation
The group offers option plans over the group’s ordinary shares to certain employees, including the SAYE scheme,
details of which are included in the directors’ remuneration report

The group accounts for share compensation plans that were granted after 7 November 2002 The cost of providing
share-based compensation 1S based on the fair value of the share options at grant date, which is recognised in the
Income statement over the expected service period of the related employees and a corresponding entry In reserves
The fair value of the share options i1s determined using the Black Scholes method

When the options are exercised, the proceeds received, net of any transaction costs, are credited to share capital
(nominal value) and share premium

Income taxes

income tax on the profit or loss for the period presented comprises current and deferred tax  Income tax 1s
recognised n the Income statement except to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in equity, In which
case 1t 1s recognised In equity

Current tax 1s the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at balance sheet date and any adjustments to tax payable in respect of prior periods

Deferred tax 1s provided, using the hability method, on temporary differences ansing between the tax bases of assets
and liability and thetr carrying amounts in the financial statements The amount of deferred tax provided 1s based on
the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at balance sheet date

Deferred tax assets are recognised In the balance sheet to the extent that it 1s probable that future taxable profit will
be available against which the temporary differences can be utihsed

Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing profit after tax avallable to shareholders by the weighted average
number of erdinary shares in 1ssue dunng the penod

For diluted earnings per share, the weighted average number of ordinary shares in 1ssue 1s adjusted to assume
conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares such as share options granted to employees
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The shares held in the employee share options ptan {ESOP) have been excluded from both the calculations, until
such time as they vest uncondittonally with the employees

Prowisions and contingencies

Provisions are recognised when the group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past event, it
Is probable that an outflow of resources of economic benefits will be regquired to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate of the obligation can be made Where the group expects a provision to be reimbursed, the reimbursement
1S recognised as a separate asset but only when the reimbursement s virtually certain

Contingent habilites are present obligations that are not recognised because 1t 1s not probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to meet the habilities or If the amount of the obligation cannct be measured with sufficient
reliability

2 Risk management

The group has identified the nisks ansing from its activities and has established policies and procedures to manage
these items tin accordance with its nisk appetite The group categonses Its risks into six areas Insurance, credit,
market, iguidity, operational and group risk The sections below outime the group’s risk appetite and explain how 1t
defines and manages each category of risk Risk 1s managed on a group wide basis and therefore disclosure 1s not
provided separately for the ulimate parent

2 1 Insurance risk

The group's insurance business assumes the risk of loss from persons or organisations that are directly exposed to
an undertying loss Insurance risk anses from this sk transfer due to inherent uncertainties about the occurrence,
amount and timing of insurance habiliies The four key components of insurance risk are underwriting, reinsurance,
claims management, reserving and ultimate reserves Each element 1s considered below

a) Underwriting nisk
Underwriting nsk compnses four elements that apply to all insurance products offered by the group

- Event nisk - the risk that individual risk losses or catastrophes lead to claims that are higher than anticipated in
plans and pricing,

- Pneing risk - the nisk that the level of expected loss I1s understated in the pnicing process,

- Cycle nsk - the nsk that business i1s written without full knowledge as to the (injadequacy of rates, terms and
conditions, and

- Expense risk - the nsk that the allowance for expenses and Inflation in pricing i1s inadequate

The group's underwniting strategy 1s to seek a diverse and balanced portfolio of risks i order to hmit the varnability of
outcomes This is achieved by accepting a spread of business over time, segmented between different products,
geography and size

The annual business plans for each underwnting team reflect the group’s underwnting strategy, and set out the
classes of business, the terntories in which business 1s to be written and the industry sectors to which the group 1s
prepared to expose itself These plans are approved by the board and monitored by the monthly underwniting
committee

Our underwriters calculate premiums for nsks written based on a range of critena talored specifically to each
individual nsk These factors include but are not imrted to the financial exposure, loss history, risk characteristics,
limits, deductibles, terms and conditions and acquisition expenses

The group also recognises that insurance events are, by their nature, random, and the actual number and size of
events dunng any one year may vary from those estimated using established statistical techniques

To address this, the group sets out the exposure that it 15 prepared to accept in certain territories to a range of
events such as natural catastrophes and specific scenanos which may result in large industry losses This Is
maonitored through regular calculation of realistic disaster scenarnos (RDS) The aggregate position 1s monitored at
the time of underwriting a rnisk, and reports are regularly produced to highlight the key aggregations to which the
group 1s exposed

The group uses a number of modelling tools to momitor aggregation and to simulate catastrophe losses 1n order to
measure the effectiveness of its reinsurance programmes Stress and scenano tests are also run using these

68




models The range of scenanos considered include natural catastrophes, marine, hability, political, terrorism and war
events

One of the largest types of event exposure relates to natural catastrophe events such as flood damage, windstorm or
earthquake Where possible the group measures geographic accumulations and uses Its knowledge of the business,
historical loss behaviour and commercial catastrophe modelling software to assess the probable maximum loss
{PML) Upon application of the reinsurance coverage purchased, the key gross and net exposures are calculated on
the hasis of extreme events at a range of return penods

The group's high level catastrophe risk appetite s set by the board and the business plans of each team are
determined within these parameters The board may adjust these mits over time as conditions change Currently,
the group operates to catastrophe risk appetite for a probabilistic 1 in 250 year US event of US$340m net of
reinsurance

Lloyd's has also defined its own specific set of RDS events for which all syndicates with relevant exposures must
report The group's three largest Lioyd's specified natural catastrophe stress events are

2007 2006
Modelled PML Modelled Modelled PML Modelled PML
{before PML (after (before (after
reinsurance)  remsurance} reinsurance) reinsurance)
Lloyd's prescnbed natural catastrophe event US$m US$m US$Em us$m
San Francisco quake (US$69bn, 2006
US$65hn) 447 2 188 3 3844 161 4
Guif of Mexico windstorm (US$108bn, 2006
US$100bn) 4133 2029 3363 1499
Flornda Pinellas windstorm (US$106bn, 2006
US$100bn) 3596 186 4 3318 1901

The net exposure of the group to each of these modelled events at a given point in time 15 a function of assumptions
made about how, where and the magnitude of the event that occurs, the amount of business wntten that 1s exposed
to each event and the reinsurance arrangements in place

To manage underwriting exposures, the group has developed mits of authonty and business plans which are binding
upon all staff authorised to underwrite and are specific to underwnters, classes of business and industry In 2007,
the normal maximum gross PML line that any one underwriter could commit the managed syndicates to was
US$100m In most cases, maximum lines for classes of business were much lower than this

These authority imits are enforced through a comprehensive sign-off process for underwnting transactions including
dual sign-off for all ine underwriters and peer review for all nisks exceeding individual underwriters authonty imits
Exception reports are also run regularly to monitor compliance

All underwriters also have a nght to refuse renewal or change the terms and conditions of insurance contracts upon
renewal Rate monitoring details, including limits, deductibles, exposures, terms and condiions and risk
charactenstics are also captured and the results are combined to monitor the rating environment for each class of
business

Binding Authority contracts

A proportion of the group’s insurance nsks are transacted by third parties under delegated underwnting authorities
Each third party 1s thoroughly vetted by our coverholder approval group before it can bind nsks, and Is subject to
ngorous monitorng to maintain underwnting qualty and confirm ongoing compliance with contractual guidelines

Terms and conditions of insurance risks

The group’s business 1s structured as a confederation of four independent business segments utlising the same
capital base and central services The group has recognised risk features specific to the main insurance products
offered by the group, and these are explained below

Specialty hnes

This segment mainly underwrites professional ines, employment practices liability, specialty habilty, political nisk,
directors’ and officers’ liability, healthcare, stand-alone terronsm and contingency Whilst most of this business 1s
domiciled In the US, the team writes business all over the world and also has a physical presence in the UK,
continental Europe and the Far East
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Our lrability insurance 1s considered medium tail because claims In this class typically take three to nine years before
they are fully assessed and paid by the group for a given accident year The speed of clamm reporting and claim
settlement 1s a function of the specific coverage provided, the jurisdiction and any policy provisions apphed such as
selfansured retentions Other inherent uncertainties encountered through this class include

- Whether the “event” tniggening coverage 1s confined to only one-time period or 1s spread over muliple-time
periods,

- The potential financial costs ansing from individual claim acticns,

- Whether such claims were reasonably foreseeable and intended to be covered at the time the contracts were
written, and

- The potential for mass claim actions

Property

Our property segment underwrites commercial, high-value homeowners and engineening property Iinsurance on a
worldwide basis Property insurance indemmnifies, subject to any limits or deductibles, the policyholder against loss or
damage to their own matenial property and business interruption arising from this damage The event giving nseto a
claim for damage to builldings or contents usually cccurs suddenly (as for fire and burglary) and the cause I1s easily
determinable The claim will thus be notified promptly and can be settled without delay (an exception to this Is
subsidence claims)

Significant geographical concentrations of risk can exist within property portfolios meaning that natural perils such as
adverse windstorms or earthguakes may expose large segments of the group's property nsks In the event of an
earthquake, the property portfolio expects to receive claims for both structural damage and business interruption

Marnne

This segment underwrites a broad spectrum of manne classes Specialist cover includes hull, energy, cargo & specie
and war nsks, and the majonty of these risks are exposed to catastrophes For example, a significant portion of the
energy business 1s exposed to Gulf of Mexico events and thus has substantial hurricane exposure

Some areas of the manne business overlap with other segments which can result in loss accumulations These
accumulations, including exposures to catastrophes, are regularly monitored and managed by our reinsurance
programmes

Reinsurance
This division specialises 1n wniting property catastrophe, property per nisk, aggregate excess of loss and pro-rata
business

The two primary nsks in this business are

- The nsk that a catastrophe event does or does not occur, and
- That future catastrophe experience may turn out to be inconsistent with the assumptions used in the industry-
wide pricing models, causing claims experience to be higher than expected

b) Retnsurance risk

Reinsurance nsk to the group anses where reinsurance contracts put in place to reduce gross insurance risk do not
perform as anticipated, result in coverage disputes or prove Inadequate in terms of the vertical or honzontal himits
purchased Faiture of a reinsurer to pay a valid claim 1s considered a credit nsk which is detailled separately below

The group's reinsurance programmes compliment the underwriting team business plans and seek to protect group
capital from an adverse volume or volatility of claims on both a per nisk and per event basis In some cases the group
deems 1t more economic to hold capital than purchase reinsurance These decisions are regularly reviewed as an
integral part of the business planning and performance monitornng process

In 2007, the group bought a combination of propertional and non-proportional reinsurance treaties and facultative
reinsurance to reduce the maximum net exposure on any one nisk for the managed syndicates to US$30m  In most
classes of business the maximum net exposure per nsk 1s much lower than this The group aims to establish
appropriate retention levels and imits of protection to achieve the target rate of return and remain within the board’'s
nsk tolerance imits The efficacy of protection sought 1s assessed against the cost of rensurance, taking mto
consideration current and expected market conditions

The reinsurance secunty committee (RSC) examines and approves all reinsurers to ensure that they possess suitable
security The group’s ceded reinsurance team ensures that these guidelines are followed, undertakes the
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administration of reinsurance contracts, monitors and instigates our responses to any erosion of the reinsurance
programmes

c) Claims management risk

Claims management nsk may anse within the group i the event of inaccurate or incomplete case reserves and
claims settlements, poor service quality or excessive claims handling costs These rnsks may damage the group
brand and undermine its ability to win and retain business or incur punitive damages These risks can occur at any
stage of the claims life-cycle

The group's claims teams are focused on delivering quality, reliability and speed of service to both internal and
external clients Therr aim 1s to adjust and process claims in a far, efficient and timely manner, in accordance with
the policy's terms and conditions, the regulatory environment, and the business’ broader interests Prompt and
accurate case reserves are set for all known claims habilities, including provisions for expenses

d) Reserving and ultimate reserves risk

Reserving and ultmate reserves risk occurs within the group where established insurance liabiliies are insufficient
through naccurate forecasting, or where there Is inadequate allowance for expenses and reinsurance bad debts in
provisions

To manage reserving and ultimate reserves rnsk, our expernienced actuarial team uses a range of recognised
techrmiques to project gross premiums written, monitor claims development patterns and stress test ulumate
insurance liability balances An external independent actuary also performs an annual review to produce a statement
of actuarial opinion for reporting entities within the group

The objective of the group's reserving policy 1S to produce accurate and reliable estimates that are consistent over
time and across classes of business The estimates of gross premiums written and claims prepared by the actuarial
department are used through a formal quarterly peer review process to independently test the integnty of the
estimates produced by the underwriting teams for each class of business These meetings are attended by senicr
management, senior underwnters, actuarnal, claims, and finance representatives

2 2 Credit nsk
Credit nsk anses where counterparties fall to meet their financial oblhigations in full as they fall due The pnmary
sources of credit risk for the group are

- Reinsurers - whereby reinsurers may fail to pay valid claims against a reinsurance contract held by the group,

- Brokers and intermedianes - whereby counterparties fail to pass on prermums or claims collected or paid on
behalf of the group, and

- Investments - whereby 1ssuer default results in the group tosing all or part of the value of a financial instrument

The group's core busingss 1s to accept significant Insurance nsk and the appetite for other nsks 1s low  This protects
the group’s caprtal from erosion so that it can meet its insurance habilities

To assist In the understanding of credit risks, AM Best, Moody's and Standard & Poor's (S5&P) ratings are used
These ratings have been categorised below as used for Lloyd's reporting

AM Best Moody's S&P

Tier1 A++to A- Aaa to A3 AAA to A-
Tier 2 B++ to B- Baal to Ba3 BBB+ to BB-
Tier 3 C++t0C- Bl to Caa B+ to CCC
Tier 4 D,E,F,S CatoC R,(U,8) 3
The following tables summanse the group’s significant concentrations of credit nsk

Tier 1 Tier 2 Tier3 Unrated Total
31 December 2007 £m £m £m £m £m
Financtal investments 907 0 858 69 1326 1,132 3
Insurance receivables - - - 199 9 1999
Reinsurance assets 3433 - - 100 3533
Cash and cash equivalents 3583 - - - 3583
Total 1,608.6 858 69 3425 2,0438
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Tier 1 Tier 2 Tier3 Unrated Total

31 December 2006 £m £m £im £m £m
Financial iInvestments 7887 646 52 99 9 9584
Insurance receivables - - - 2362 236 2
Reinsurance assets 3277 50 - 204 3531
Cash and cash equivalents 2094 - - - 2094
Total 1,325.8 696 52 356.5 1,757 1

The carrying amount of financial assets at the balance sheet date represents the maximum credit exposure

The group has insurance receivables that are past due but not impaired at the reporting date The group believes
that impairment of these receivables 15 net appropnate on the basis of stage of collection of amounts owed An aged
analysis of insurance receivables that are past due but not impaired 1s presented below

Greater

Not yet due Upto 30 30-60 60 - 90 than 90
Premium debtors* days days days days Total
31 December 2007 72% 18% 4% 2% 4% 100%
31 December 2006 70% 20% 5% 1% 4% 100%

*This analysis excludes binder and treaty reinsurance recetvables

An analysis of the overall credit nsk exposure indicates that the group has rensurance assets, insurance receivables
and other debtors that are impaired at the reporting date Reinsurance assets that are individually impaired at 31
December 2007 total £5 7m (2006 £4 8m)

These assets have been individually impaired after considenng information such as the occurrence of significant
changes in the counterparty's financial position, pattern of histonical payment information and disputes with
counterparties

The group has developed processes to formally examine all reinsurers before entering intc new business
arrangements  New remnsurers are approved by the RSC, which also reviews arrangements with all existing
reinsurers at least annually Vulnerable or slow-paying reinsurers are examined more frequently

An approval system also exists for all new brokers, and broker performance 1s carefully monitored Regular exception
reports highlight trading with nen-approved brokers, and the group’s credit control function frequently assesses the
ageing and collectability of debtor balances Any large, aged 1items are priontised and where collection 1$ outsourced,
incentives are In place to support these priornities

The investments committee has established comprehensive guidelines for the group’s investment managers
regarding the type, duration and quality of investments acceptable to the group The performance of investment
managers 1s regularly reviewed to confirm adherence to these guidelines

2 3 Liguidity nsk

Liguidity nsk anses where cash may not be available to pay cbligations when due at a reasonable cost The group 1s
exposed to daily calls on its availlable cash resources, pnncipally from claims ansing from its insurance business In
the majority of the cases, these claims are settied from the premiums received

The group's approach 1s to manage its liguidity position so that it can reasonably survive a significant individual or
market loss event  This means that the group maintamns sufficient hquid assets, or assets that can be translated into
liquid assets at short notice and without any significant capital loss, to meet expected cash flow requirements
These liquid funds are regularly monitored using cash flow forecasting to ensure that surplus funds are invested to
achieve a higher rate of return The group also makes use of loan facilities and borrowings, detalls of which can be
found in note 24

The following 1s an analysis by business segment of the estimated timmg of the net cash flows based on the claims
liabilies balance held at 31 December 2007
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Weighted

average

Greater term to

Within 1 than 5 settlement

31 December 2007 year 2-3years 4-byears years Total (vears)
Specialty ines 22% 41% 26% 11% 100% 26
Property 53% 38% 7% 2% 100% 13
Reinsurance 45% 44% 10% 1% 100% 15
Marine 44% 42% 13% 1% 100% 16
Weighted

average

Greater term to

Within 1 than 5 settlement

31 December 2006 year 2-3years 4-5years years Total {years)
Specialty lines 20% 40% 27% 13% 100% 27
Property 53% 38% 7% 2% 100% 14
Reinsurance 48% 40% 12% - 100% 15
Marine 41% 43% 15% 1% 100% 16

2.4 Market nsk

Market risk arnses where the value of assets and liabilities changes as a result of movements in foreign exchange
rates, interest rates and market prices Note that this section contains sensitivity analysis which i1s aimed at showing
what the financial impact of a change in prevailing market rates and conditions would be While risk can have both
‘upside’ and ‘downside’ potential, the sensitivity analysis provided 1s for adverse changes to conditions only The
sensitivity analysts has been appled as at the balance sheet date

Foreign exchange risk

The group 1s exposed to changes in the value of assets and habilities due to movemenits tn foreign exchange rates
The group deals In four main currencies, US dollars, UK stering, Canadian dollars and Euros  Transactions in all
other currencies are converted to UK stering on initial recognition and revalued at the balance sheet date

The group manages foreign exchange exposure by projecting forward ifs US dollar profits for each calendar year and
selling one twelfth of the expected amount each month The amounts sold are penodically validated against actual
exposure and additional "top up” trades of US dollars are made If required The foreign exchange exposure to
Canadian dollars and Euros are closely monitored by the group and a similar approach will be taken to manage the
risk as our exposure grows in the future

The group also has investment in foreign subsidianes with functional currencies that are different from the
presentational currency This gives nise to a currency translation exposure to US dollars, Hong Kong dollars and
Singapore dollars, although the exposures to Hong Kong dollars and Singapore dollars are mimma!  The US dollar
translation exposure is managed by borrowing funds denominated in the same currency

The following table summarises the carrying value of total assets and total liabilities categonsed by currency

uss CAD $ EUR € Subtotal UK £ Total
31 December 2007 £m £m £m im £m £m
Total assets 1,4385 728 144 3 1,655 6 5251 2,180 7
Total habiities (1,370 7) (58 4) {(1251) {1,554 2) (2279) (1,782 1)
678 14 4 192 1014 297.2 398.6
Uss CAD $ EURE€  Subtotal UK £ Total
31 December 2006 £m £m £m £m £m £m
Total assets 1,035 8 491 858 11707 7135 1,884 2
Total labilities (985 0} {36 0) (683) (1,089 3) (4754) (1,564 7)
508 131 175 81.4 2381 3195

73




The net assets have been stated net of the cross-currency swap as explained in note 24

Sensitvity analysis

if the US dcllar, Canadian dollar and Euro weakened against the UK sterling by 10%, with all other variables constant,
pre-tax profit would have been lower by an estimated £18 5m (2006 £12 4m) and ret assets would have decreased
by an estimated £18 Om (2006 £10 8m) The analysis 1s based on the current information available and our
assumptions in performing this analysis are

- the closing year end spot rates and the average rates throughout the year were 10% higher,
- the analysis includes an estimate of the impact on our foreign borrowings and cress currency swaps, and
- the impact of foreign exchange on non-monetary items will be nil

interest rate risk
Some of the group's financial instruments, including financial Investments, cash and cash eguivalents and
borrowings, are exposed to movements in market interest rates

The group manages interest rate nsk by primarily investing in short duration financial investments and cash and cash
equivalents The investment committee monitors the duration of these assets on a regular basis

The following table shows the average duration of the financial Instruments Duration 1s a commonly used measure
of volatility and we believe gives a better indication than matunty of the likely sensitivity of cur portfolio to changes in
interest rates

Duration
510
31 December 2007 <tyr 12yrs 23yrs 34yrs 45yrs yrs  >10yrs Tota!l
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Debt securities 5839 1837 958 785 535 111 - 10065
Cash and cash equivalents 3583 - - - - - - 3583
Denvative financial instruments - - - - - 12 - 12
Borrowings - - - - - (147 7} (20} (1567)
Total 9422 183.7 958 785 535 (1354) (90) 21,2093
5-10
31 December 2006 <lyr 12yrs 23yrs 34yrs 45yrs yrs >10yrs Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Debt secunties 568 0 1808 69 1 262 126 07 - 867 4
Cash and cash equivalents 20914 - - - - - - 2094
Denvative financial statements - - - - - 24 - (24)
Borrowings - - - - - (1457) (92) (1549)
Total 7774 190.8 69.1 26.2 126 (147 4) (8 2) 9195
The next two tables summanise the carrying amount of financial instruments exposed to interest rate nsk by matunty
at balance sheet date.
Matunty
5-10
31 December 2007 <iyr 1-2yrs 2-3yrs 34yrs 4bHyrs yrs  >10yrs Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Debt securities 3889 2092 750 751 890 777 816 10065
Cash and cash equivalents 3583 - - - - - - 3583
Dernvative financial instruments - - - - - 12 - 12
Borrowings - - - - - (147 7) (30) (1567)
Tota! 747 2 2092 750 75.1 990 (68.8) 726 12093
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510

31 December 2006 <lyr 1-2yrs 23yrs 34yrs 45yrs yrs >10yrs Total

£m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Debt securities 5221 2293 618 271 234 11 26 867 4
Cash and cash equivalents 2094 - - - - - - 209 4
Dervative financial Instruments - - - - - (24) - (2 4)
Borrowings - - - - - {145 7) {8 2) (154 9)
Total 7315 229.3 618 27.1 234 (147.0) (6.6) 919.5

The group makes interest payments for borrowings and derivative financial instruments Further details are provided
In notes 24 and 25

Sensitivity analysis

The group holds financial assets and labilities that are exposed to Interest rate nsk  An increase in 100 basis points
In Iinterest yields, with all other vanables constant, would result in a loss of capital on debt securities and a change in
value of borrowings and denvative financial instruments This will decrease pre-tax profits for the period by an
estimated £13 8m (2006 £10 7m) and net assets would have decreased by an estimated £9 7m (2006 £7 5m)

Price risk
The equity securnties and hedge funds that are recognised on the balance sheet at their fair value are susceptible to
losses due to adverse changes In prices This 1s referred to as price nisk

Investments are made In equities and hedge funds depending on the group's appetite for risk These investments
are well diversified with high quality, iquid securities The investment committee has established comprehensive
guidelines with investment managers setting out maximum investment himits, diversification across industries and
concentrations in any one industry or company

Listed investments are recognised on the balance sheet at quoted ind price If the market for the investment 1S not
considered to be active, then the group has established fair value using valuation techniques This includes using
recent arm's length market transactions, reference to current fair value of other investments that are substantially
the same, discounted cash flow models and other valuation techniques that are commonly used by market
participants

Sensitivity analysis

At 31 December 2007, the fair value of hedge funds recognised on the balance sheet was £71 1m (2006 £50 3m)
If the fatr value of the group’s hedge fund portfolio were to fall by 10%, then the overall pre-tax impact on net assets
would be a decline of £7 1m (2006 £5 0m)

At 31 December 2007, the fair value of equifies recognised on the balance sheet was £54 7m (2006 £40 7m)
These equities are hsted on varous global stock exchanges and a 10% fall in the global equity market will result in a
pre-tax Impact on net assets of £5 5m (2006 £4 1m)

2.5 Operational nisk
Operational rnsk arses from the rnisk of losses due to Inadequate or failed internal processes, people, systems,
service providers or from external events

There are a number of business activities for which the group uses the services of a third party company, such as
Investment management, data entry and credit control These service providers are selected against ngorous critena
and formal service level agreements are in place, and regularly monitored and reviewed

The group also recognises that it 1s necessary for people, systems and infrastructure to be avallable to support our
operations Therefore we have taken significant steps to mitigate the impact of business interruption which could
follow a variety of events, including the loss of key individuals and facilities We operate a formal disaster recovery
plan which, in the event of an incident, allows the group to move critical operations to an alternative location within
24 hours

The group actively manages operational nsks and minimises them where appropnate This 1s achieved by
implementing and communtcating guidelines to staff and other third parties The group also regularly monitors the
performance of its controls and adherence to these guidelines through the risk management reporting process




Key components of the group’s operational control environment include
- ICA modelling of operational risk exposure and scenario testing,

- Management review of activities,

- Documentation of policies and procedures,

- Preventative and detective controls within key processes

- Contingency planning, and

- Other systems controls

2 6 Group nsk

Group risk occurs where business units fall to consider the impact of their activities on other parts of the group, as
well as the nsks ansing from these activities There are three mamn components of group nsk which are explained
below

Strategic

Thrs 1s the nisk that the group’s strategy I1s inappropriate or that the group 1s unable to Implement its strategy There
IS no tolerance for any breach of guidance i1ssued by the board, and where events supersede the group strategic plan
this 15 escalated at the earliest opportunity through the group’s monitorng tools and governance structure

Reputation

Reputation nsk 1s the nsk of negative publcity as a result of the group’s contractual arrangements, customers,
products, services and other activities Key sources of reputation risk include operation of a Lloyd's franchise,
interactton with capital markets since the group’s IPO dunng 2002, and reliance upon the Beazley brand in the US,
Europe and Asia The group’s preference 1s to minimise reputation risks but where 1t 1s not possible or beneficial to
avoid them, we seek to minimise their frequency and severity by management through public relations and
communication channels

Management stretch

Management stretch 1s the nsk that busmess growth mught result i an nsufficient or overly complicated
management team structure, thereby undermining accourttabiiity and control within the group  As the group expands
its worldwide business in the UK, US, Europe and Asia, management stretch may make the identification, analysis
and control of group rnsks more complex

On a day-to-day basis, the group's management structure encourages organisational flexibility and adaptability, while
ensuring that activities are appropriately cocrdinated and controlled By focusing on the needs of their customers
and demonstrating both progressive and responsive abilrties, staff, management and outsocurced service providers
are expected to excel In service and qualty Individuals and teams are also expected to transact their activities in an
open and transparent way These behavioral expectations reaffirm low group nisk tolerance by aligning interests to
ensure that routine activities, projects and other initiatives are implemented to benefit and protect resources of both
local business segments and the group as a whole

Capital management

The group follows a risk based approach to determine the amount of capital required to support Its activities
Recognised stochastic modelling techniques are used to measure rnisk exposures, and capital to support business
activities 1s allocated according to nsk profile Stress and scenarno analysis ts regularly performed and the results are
documented and reconciled to the board’s risk appetite where necessary The group has several requirements for
capital as set out on page 83

Risk type Sources Importance to group capital requirements
Underwnting
Insurance Retnsurance
Claims management
Reserving & ultimate reserves
Reinsurers
Brokers & intermedianes Materal
% Investments

Insurance & norHnsurance cash
ne Liquidity calls Low
Foreign exchange
Interest rates Matenal
Investment prices
People
Process and systems
Regulation

Dominant

Credit

Market

Operational Moderate
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Service provider
Business continuity
Information secunty
Financial reporting
Data integrity

Legal

Strategic
Reputation Moderate
Management stretch

Group

Insurance nsk 1s our biggest nisk, and includes both catastrophe and non-catastrophe exposures To manage these
exposures we mode! aggregate risks and the likely financiat impact to the group for defined events

To manage our underwnting, we assign maximum gross and net line sizes for all underwnters  This imit 1s adjusted
according to the nature of the business being underwritten and the experience of the underwriter and cannot be
exceeded unless appropriately authorised To ensure that our decisions are robust, there 1s a comprehensive sign-
off process for underwnting transactions including dual sign-off for all ine underwriters

Reserving activities are ngorously controlled to ensure adequate reserves are set A quarterly peer review process
exists for the underwriting teams and group actuary to independently determine required movements

3 Segmental analysis

Segment information 15 presented in respect of reportable segments  This 1s based on the group’s management and
internal reporting structures and represents the level at which financial informatton 1s reported to the Board, being
the chief operating decision maker as defined in IFRS 8 The operating segments are based upon the different types
of Insurance risk underwrntten by the Group as described in note 2

Segment results, assets and liabilities include items directly attributable to a segment as well as those that can be
allocated on a reasonable basis

Foreign exchange differences on non-monetary items have been left unallocated This has been separately disclosed
as It provides a fairer representation of the loss ratios, which would otherwise be distorted by the mismatch ansing
under IFRSs whereby unearned premium reserve, retnsurers share of unearned premium reserve and DAC are
treated as non-monetary items and claims reserves are treated as monetary items Non-monetary items are carned
at historic exchange rates, while monetary items are translated at closing rates This imbalance creates volatility in
our accounts which cannot be hedged as the mismatch 1s not monetary in nature

Finance costs and taxation have not been allocated to operating segments as these items are determined by entity
level factors and do not relate to operating performance

Total
Specialty reportable
lines Property Remnsurance Manne segments  Unallocated Total
2007 £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Segment results
Gross premiums written 3949 188 ¢ 578 1398 7805 - 7805
Net premiums written 3262 157 4 48 6 1190 6522 - 652 2
Net earned premiums 286 5 158 0 459 1161 606 5 107 617 2
Net investment income 43 2 86 71 60 649 - 649
Other income 51 21 13 16 101 - 101
Revenue 3348 168 7 543 1237 6815 107 692.2
Net insurance claims 169 4 76 6 162 45 2 3074 - 3074
Expenses for the
acquisition of insurance 76 2 56 3 101 336 176 2 30 1792
contracts
Administrative 323 137 39 83 582 - 582
expenses
Foreign exchange 10 (04) {0 5) {0 (2 6) (05) (31)
(gain)/ loss

77




Expenses

Segments result
Finance costs

Profit before tax
Income tax expense
Profit after tax
Claims ratio

Expense ratic
Combined ratio

Segment assets and liabilities

Segment assets
Segment liabihities
Net assets

Additional information
Capital expenditure
Depreciation

Net cash fiow

2006

Segment results

Gross premiums written
Net premiums written

Net earned premiums
Net investment income
Other income

Revenue

Net insurance claims
Expenses for the
acquisition of iInsurance
contracts
Administrative
expenses

Foreign exchange
(gamn)/ loss

Expenses

Segments result
Finance costs

Profit before tax
Income tax expense
Profit after tax
Claims ratio

Expense ratio
Combined ratio

276.8 1462 297 864 539.2 25 5417
579 225 246 373 1423 8.2 1505
(12 Q)
1388
(381)
1004
59% 48% 35% 39% 51% - 50%
38% 44% 31% 36% 39% - 38%
97% 92% €6% 75% 30% - 88%
14613 3480 1068 2631 2,1792 15 2,1807
(1,2605) (2782) {56 5) (186 9) (1,782 1) - (1,7821)
200.8 69 8 503 76.2 397.1 15 3986
94 08 03 06 - - 111
20 10 03 07 - - 40
506 487 85 411 - - 1489
Total
Spectalty reportable
hnes Property  Reinsurance Manne segments  Unallocated Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m
3610 1878 584 1379 7451 - 7451
267 3 1499 405 1166 5743 - 5743
234 6 1231 421 1015 5013 83 5096
359 42 41 41 483 - 48 3
40 13 07 11 71 - 71
2745 1286 469 106.7 556 7 83 5650
146 3 663 137 44 4 2707 - 2707
540 408 103 286 1337 01 1338
24 1 119 44 54 458 - 458
22 12 04 09 47 176 223
226.6 1202 288 793 4549 177 4726
479 84 181 274 1018 (9.4) 924
(586
868
(26 9)
599
62% 54% 33% 44% 54% 53%
33% 43% 35% 34% 36% 35%
95% 97% 68% 78% 90% 88%
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Segment assets and habilities

Segment assets 995 9 3389 2186 3307 1,884 1 18342
Segment llabities (8234) (2803) (180 8) (273 4) (1,557 9) (68 (15647
Net assets 1725 586 378 573 326.2 {6.7) 3195
Addtional information

Capital expenditure 57 3.0 10 23 120 120
Depreciation 07 03 01 03 14 14
Net cash flow 647 170 89 145 1051 1051

b) Secondary reporting segment - geographical segments

The group's four business segments are managed geographically by placement of risk, 1 e Lloyd's and non-Lioyd’s

2007 2006
£m £m
Net earmned premiums
Lloyd's 609 4 5071
Non-Uloyd’s 78 25
617.2 5096
2007 2006
£m £m
Segment assets
Lloyd's 2,0354 1,8105
Non-Lloyd’s 1453 737
2,1807 1,884 2
Segment assets are allocated based on where the assets are located
Capital expenditure
Lloyd's 97 106
Non-Lloyd’s 14 14
111 120
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4 Netinvestment Income

Investment income at fair value through income statement
- Interest income

Realised gains/({losses) on financial investments at fair value
through income statement

- Realised gains

- Realised losses

Net fair value gains/{losses) on financial iInvestments through
income statement

- Fair value gains

- Fair value losses

Investment management expenses

5 Other income

Profit comrmssions
Agency fees
Other income

2007 2006
£m £m
531 280
189 229
(115) 99
229 24 4
(16 O} (15 6)
{2 5) {15)
64.9 48 3
2007 2006
£m £m
76 55
10 11
15 05
101 7.1
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6 Operating expenses

2007 2006
£m £m
Fees payable to the company's auditor for the audit of the
company's annual accounts 02 02
Fees payable to the company's auditor and its associates for
other services
- Audit of the company's subsidhanes 01 01
- Tax services 01 01
- other services 02 01
Operating leases 20 20
Foreign exchange (gain)/ loss - excluding foreign exchange on
non-monetary items (2 6) 47
7 Employee benefit expenses
2007 2006
Group Company Group Company
£m £m £m £m
Wages and salaries 307 03 284 03
Short-term incentive payments 196 - 11 4 -
Social secunty 38 - 32
Share-based remunerations 30 - 13
Pension costs 39 - 39 -
610 03 48 2 03
Recharged to syndicate 623 (70) - (7 8) -
540 03 40.4 03
Further information on employees s provided on page xwx [ref employee numbers in financial review}
8 Finance costs
2007 2006
£m £m
Interest expense 118 55
Arrangement fees 02 01
120 586
9 Income tax expense
2007 2006
£m £m
Current tax expense
Current year 202 214
Prior year adjustments (21) 14
181 228
Deferred tax expense
Origination and reversal of temporary differences 192 56
Prior year adjustments 08 (15)
200 41
Income tax expense 381 269
Profit before tax 1385 868
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Tax calculated at UK tax rates 399 260

Effects of

- Tax rates in foreign jurisdictions 05 06
- Non-deductible expenses 02 02
- Deductible items for which no deferred tax asset 1s recognised {12) -
- Under/(over} provided in prior years (13) o1
Tax charge for the perniod 381 269

The weighted average applicable tax rate was 28 3% (2006 30%)

The effect of the change in the UK corporation tax rate from 30% to 28% with effect from 1 April 2008 on deferred
tax recognised in prior pencds 1s a gain in the 2007 income statement of £0 1m

10 Earnings per share

2007 2006
Basic 28 1p 16 7p
Diluted 27 4p 16 6p

Basic

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing profit after tax of £100 4m (2006 £59 9m) by the weighted
average number of 1ssued shares during the year of 357 4m (2006 357 9m) The shares held in the Employee
Share Options Plan (ESOP) have been excluded from the calculation, until such time as they vest unconditionally with
the employees In addition, the treasury shares have been excluded from the calcuiation

Diluted

Diluted earrings per share are calculated by dwviding profit after tax of £100 4m (2006 £59 9m) by the adjusted
welighted average number of shares of 366 Om (2006 361 5m) The adjusted weighted average number of shares
assumes conversion of dilutive potentiat ordinary shares, being shares from the SAYE, retention and deferred share
schemes The shares held in the ESOP have been excluded from the calculation, until such time as they vest
unconditionally with the employees In addition, the treasury shares have been excluded from the calculation

11 Dividends per share

The final dividend of 4 Op (2006 3 2p) per ordinary share and the special dividend of 4 Op per share, will be payable
on 9 May 2008 to shareholders registered on 18 April 2008 in respect of the year ended 31 December 2007
Together with the intenm dividend of 2 Op (2006 1 6p) this brings the total ordinary dividend to 6 Op (2006 4 8p)
The total dividend payable for the year s 10 Op per ordinary share These financial statements do not provide for the
final dividend as a iabihty

12 Intangible assets

Syndicate IT development

Goodwill capacity Licences costs Total
£m £m £m £m £m

Cost
Balance at 1 January 2006 60 37 52 36 185
Acquisition of subsidiary 19 o7 - - 26
Additions - - - 37 37
Amounts wntten off - - - (08) {0 8)
Foreign exchange - - {0 6) - (0 6)
Balance at 31 December 2006 79 4.4 4.6 6.5 234
Balance at 1 January 2007 79 44 46 65 234
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Acquisition of business portfolio 76 - - - 76
Additions - - - 17 17
Amounts written off - - - {02) (02
Balance at 31 December 2007 15.5 44 46 8.0 325
Amortisation
Balance at 1 January 2006 03 03
Amounts wntten off during the year (02} (02)
Amortisation for the year 14 14
Balance at 31 December 2006 15 15
Balance at 1 January 2007 15 15
Amounts written off dunng the year {0 1) (01)
Amortisation for the year 24 24
Balance at 31 December 2007 38 38
Carrying amount
31 December 2007 155 44 46 42 287
31 December 2006 79 44 46 50 219
Impairment tests
Goodwtll, syndicate capacity and licences are deemed to have indefinite ife  Consequently, they are not amortised
but annually tested for impairment They are allocated to the group’s cash generating units (CGUs) as follows
2007 2006
Lloyd's Non-Lloyd's Lloyd's Non-Lioyd's
£m £m £m £m

Goodwill 155 - 79 -
Syndicate capacity 44 - 44 -
Licences - 46 - 46

When testing for impairment, the recoverable amount of a CGU is determined based on value in use Value in use 1s
calculated using projected cash flows based on financial budgets approved by management coverng a three-year
penod Cash flows beyond a three-year penod are extrapolated using an estimated growth rate of 2% (2006 2%)
This growth rate 1s consistent with the long-term average growth rate for the industry A pre-tax discount rate of 8%

{2006 8%) has heen used to discount the projected cash flows

The spiit of Lloyd’s / Non-Lloyd's business 1s the most appropriate level at which these intangible assets can be
allocated since the assets were purchased in respect of future revenue streams to the Lloyd's syndicates and the US

admitted insurance company (Non-Lloyd's)

13 Plant and equipment

Fixtures & Computer
fittings equipment Total
£m £m £m
Cost
Balance at 1 January 2006 24 01 25
Additions 49 08 57
Balance at 31 December 2006 73 0% 82
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Balance at 1 January 2007 73 09 82
Additions 0g 09 i8
Balance at 31 December 2007 82 18 100
Accumulated depreciation
Batance at 1 January 2006 - - -
Depreciation charge for the year (10 (02) {12)
Balance at 31 December 2006 (10) (02 (12)
Balance at 1 January 2007 (10) (02 (12)
Depreciation charge for the year 12 (0 4) (16)
Balance at 31 December 2007 (22) (06) (28)
Carrying amounts
31 December 2007 6.0 1.2 72
31 December 2006 63 07 70
14 Investment in associates
The group has the following interests (n associates
Ownership
Country 2007 2006
Beazley Finance Limited UK 22 7% 22 7%
Beazley Dedicated Limited* UK 227% 22 7%
Summary financial information - 100%
Assets Liabilitres Equity Profit
£m £Em £m £m
2007
Beazley Finance Limited 04 {05) 01) -
Beazley Dedicated Limited* 35 {0 9) 26 -
39 (1.4) 2.5 -
2006
Beazley Finance Limited 02 {02) - 01
Beazley Dedicated Limited* 28 - 26 -
28 {02) 26 01

* This 1s an indirect holding of the Group as described below

Beazley Furlonge Holdings Limited owns 5,000,000 ordinary shares in Beazley Finance Limited, the holding company
of Beazley Dedicated Limited, a dedicated corporate member of syndicate 623 This shareholding represents 22 7%
of the entire share capital of Beazley Finance Limited Beazley Furlonge Holdings Limited has guaranteed a letter of
credit of £2.0m to support underwnting of Beazley Dedicated Limuted on syndicate 623 The proportion of profits
receivable by the group 1s determined by agreement between AON (the majonty shareholder In Beazley Finance

Limited) and the group and varnes by year of account
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Beazley Dedicated Limited participated in syndicate 623 for all years of account up to 2002 Reflected in these
accounts are the results for the 2002 year of account together with the results of Beazley Finance Limited to 31
December 2007

15 Deferred acquisition costs

2007 2006
£m £m
Balance at 1 January 789 527
Additions 1823 1600
Amortisation charge (179 2) {133 8)
Balance at 31 December 820 789
16 Financial iInvestments
2007 2006
Group Company Group Company
£m £m £m £m
Financial investments at fair value through
profit and loss
Equity securities-listed 547 - 407 -
Hedge funds 711 - 503 -
Debt securities
- Fixed interest 7784 2881 6723 287 2
- Floating interest 2281 437 1951 52 8
Total financial investments at fair value
through profit and loss 1,132 3 3418 958.4 340.0
Current 483 8 1928 5388 2970
Neon-current 648 5 149 0 4196 430
1,1323 3418 958 4 3400

The group has given a fixed and floating charge over its Investments and other assets to secure obligations to Lloyd’s
In respect of its corporate member subsichary  Further details are provided in note 32

17 Insurance receivables

2007 2006

£m £m

Insurance receivables 199 9 2361
1999 236.1

These are recevable within one year and relate to business transacted with brokers and intermediaries  All
insurance receivables are designated as loans and receivables

18 Reinsurance assets

2007 2006
£m £m
Reinsurers' share of claims 2861 2747
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Impairment provision {(57) (4 8)
2804 2699
Reinsurers’ share of unearned premium reserve 729 832
3533 3531
Further analysis of the reinsurance asset 1s provided in note 23
19 Cash and cash equivalents
2007 2006
Group Company Group Company
£m £m £m £m
Cash at bank and in hand 395 06 163 06
Short-term deposits 2458 203 1317 292
Overseas deposits 730 - 614 -
Cash and cash equivalents 3583 209 209.4 29.8
20 Share capital
2007 2006
No of shares No of shares
{m) £m {m) £m
Ordinary shares of 5p each
Authonised 450 0 225 450 ¢ 225
Issued and fully paid 3671 18 4 3610 181
Balance at 1 January 3610 181 3606 180
Issue of shares 61 03 c4 01
Balance at 31 December 3671 184 3610 18.1
21 Reserves
Group Foreign Employee  Treasury Employee
currency share shares share
Share Merger translatio options trust
premium reserve nreserve reserve reserve Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Balance at 1 January 2006 2305 16 08 08 - (16} 2321
Issue of shares 03 - - - - - 03
Share based payments - - - 8 - 08
Acquisition of own shares held in
trust - - - - {40) (4 0)
Change in net investment hedge - - {0 6) - - - (0 6)
Foreign exchange translation
differences - - (28) - - - (2 8)
Balance at 31 December 2006 2308 1.6 (2.6) 16 - (5 6) 2258
Issue of shares 40 - - - - - 4 d
Share based payments - - - 34 - - 34
Acquisition of own shares held in
trust - - - - - (5 4) {54




Purchase of treasury shares
Foreign exchange translation
differences

Transfer of shares to employees

Balance at 31 December 2007

The above movements In reserves are stated net of any related taxation

Company

Balance at 1 January 2006
Issue of shares

Foreign exchange translation
differences

Balance at 31 December 2006
Issue of shares

Share based payments
Purchase of treasury shares
Acquisition of own shares held in
trust

Transfer of shares to employees
Balance at 31 December 2007
22 Equity compensation plans

221 Employee share trust

Costs debited to employee share trust

reserve
Balance at 1 January

Additions
Transfer of shares to employees

Balance at 31 December

The shares are owned by the employee share trust to satisfy awards under the group’s deferred share plan and

- - - (51) - {51)
- - 01 - - 01
- - - - - 03 03
2348 16 (2.5) 50 (5.1) (10.7) 223.1
Foreign Employee Treasury Employee
currency share shares share
Share Merger translatio options trust
premium reserve  nreserve reserve reserve Total
£m £m £im £m £m £m £m
2305 - (1.1) - - - 229 4
03 - - - - - 03
- - 12 - - - 12
230.8 - 0.1 - - - 230.9
40 - - - - - 40
- - - 50 - - 50
- - - - (51) - 51)
R - - - - {11 0) (11 0)
- - - - - 03 03
234.8 - 01 5.0 51) {(107) 2241
2007 2006
Number {m) £m Number (m) £m
5.2 56 1.9 16
356 54 33 40
{0 3) (03 - -
84 107 52 56

retention plan These shares are purchased on the market and carned at cost

On the third anniversary of an award the shares under the deferred share plan are transferred from the trust to the
employees Under the retention plan, on the third anniversary, and each year after that, 15 0% of the shares
awarded are transferred to the employees

The deferred share plan 1s recogrised in the income statement on a straight-ine basis over a period of three years,

while the retention share plan 1s recognised in the income statement on a straight-line basts over a penod of six

years
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222 Employee share option plans

The group has a long term incentive plan (LTIP), approved share option plan, unapproved share option plan, phantom
share option and SAYE that entitle employees to purchase shares in the group In accordance with these plans,
options are exercisable at the market price of the shares at the date of the grant

The terms and conditions of the grants are as follows

No. of

options

Share option plan Grant date {m)

LTIP 29/03/2004 01

21/03/2005 19

21/03/2006 16

21/03/2007 08

Approved share 29/03/2004 03
option plan

Unapproved share 15/05/2003 01

option plan 29/03/2004 03

06/12/2004 02

SAYE 14/04/2005 03

13/04/2006 07

11/04/2007 06

Total share options cutstanding 69

Vesting conditions

In summary the vesting conditions are defined as

Three year's service

Vesting conditions

Three year's service + NAV

Three year's service + NAV

Three year's service

Three year's service + NAV + TSR comparator

Contractual Iife

of options

10 years

10 years

10 years

An employee has to remain in employment untit the third anniversary from the

grant date

NAV The NAV growth 15 greater than the nsk-free rate of return plus a premium per
year

TSR comparator The group’s TSR growth 1s compared with that of members of the comparator

group over a three-year period starting with the year in which the award 1s made

Further details of equity compensation plans can be found in the directors’ remuneration report on pages 46 to 55

The number and weighted average exercise prices of share options are as follows

Outstanding at 1 January
Forferted dunng the year
Exercised duning the year
Granted during the year

Outstanding at 31 December

Exercisable at 31 December

2007 2006
Weighted average No of Weighted average No of
exercise price options exercise price options
{pence per share) (m) (pence per share) (m)
43 2 10.2 504 88
497 (2 8) 732 (0 4)
774 (19) 730 c4)
559 14 1150 22
338 69 43.2 102
09 -
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The share option programme allows group employees to acquire shares of the company The fair value of options
granted Is recognised as an employee expense with a corresponding increase in employee share options reserve
The fair value of the options granted s measured at grant date and spread over the pencd in which the employees
become unconditionally entitled to the options  The fair value of the options granted 1s measured using the Black
Scholes model, taking into account the terms and conditions upon which the options were granted The amount
recognised as an expense 15 adjusted to reflect the actual number of share options that vest, except where forfeiture

is due to the share option achieving the vesting conditions

The following 1s a summary of the assumptions used to calculate the fair value

Share options charge to income statement

Weighted average share price (pence per option)
Weighted average exercise price {pence per option)
Weighted average expected life of options
Expected volatility

Expected dividend yield

Average risk-free interest rate

The expected volatility 1s based on historic volatility over a penod of at least two years

23 Insurance liabilities and reinsurance assets

Gross
Claims reported and loss adjustment expenses
Claims incurred but not reported

Gross claims habilities
Unearned premiums

Total insurance labilities, gross

Recoverable from reinsurers
Claims reported and loss adjustment expenses
Claims incurred but not reported

Reinsurers share of claims liabiities
Unearned premiums

Total reinsurers’ share of insurance habilities

Net
Claims reported and loss adjustment expenses
Claims ingurred but not reported

Net claims habilities
Unearned premiums

Total insurance habilities, net

2007 2006
£m £m

3.1 10
108 7 959
338 432
57yrs 60yis
25 0% 25 0%
4 0% 4 0%

4 2% 4 0%
2007 2006
£m im
3020 2782
7856 5878
1,087 6 8660
384 3 3596
14719 1,2256
891 1031
191 3 1668
2804 2699
729 832
3533 3531
2129 1751
594 3 4210
807 2 596 1
3114 2764
1,118.6 8725

The gross claims reported, the loss adjustment liabiiities and the habihties for claims incurred but not reported are

net of expected recovenes from salvage and subrogation
23 1 Movements In Insurance habilities and reinsurance assets
a) Claims and loss adjustment expenses

2007

2006

Gross Reinsurance Net

Gross

Reinsurance
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£m £m £m £m £m £
Claims reported and loss adjustrent
expenses °* 2782 (103 1) 1751 3493 (198 5) 150
Claims incurred but not reported 5878 {166 8) 4210 4795 (140 8) 338
Balance at 1 January 8660 {269 9) 596 1 8288 {3392 3) 489
Claims paid (224 0) 555 (168 5) (258 3) 1325 (1251
Increase m claims
- Ansing from current year claims 4250 (53 5) 3715 3946 {929 301
- Ansing from prior year claims (86 4) 223 (64 1) (36 3) 53 (31¢
- Reinsurance to close 1091 (37 6) 715 234 {29 13
Net exchange differences (21) 28 o7 (86 2) 344 (511
Balance at 31 December 1,087 6 (280 4) 807 2 866.0 {269 9) 596,
Claims reported and loss adjustment
expenses 3020 (89 1) 2129 278 2 (103 1) 175
Claims incurred but not reported 7856 (191 3) 594 3 587 8 (166 8) 421
Balance at 31 December 10876 {280.4) 807.2 8660 {269 9) 596

b) Unearned premiums reserve

2007 2006%*
Gross Reinsurance Net Gross Reinsurance Net
£m £m £m £m £m £m
Balance at 1 January 3596 {83 2) 2764 2747 (63 0) 2117
Increase in the year 7805 (128 3) 6522 7451 (170 8) 574 3
Release in the year (755 8) 1386 (617 2) (660 2) 1506 {509 6)
Balance at 31 December 3843 (72 9) 3114 3596 (83.2) 276.4

*The 2006 comparative for unearned premium reserves (gross and reinsurance) has been re-presented due to a
revised allocation from insurance receivables to unearned premium reserve

23.2 Assumptions, changes in assumptions and sensitivity
a) Process used to decide on assumptions

The peer review reserving process
Beazley uses a quarterly dual track process to set its reserve

e The actuanal team uses several actuanal and statistical methods to estimate the ultimate premium and claims
costs The most appropniate methods are selected depending on the nature of each class of business, and

® The underwriting teams concurrently review the development of the incurred loss ratio over time, work with our
claims managers to set specific reserve estimates for identified claims and utihse their detalled understanding of
the rnisks underwritten to establish an alternative estimate of ultimate clasims cost which are compared to the
actuanally established figures

A formal internal peer review process Is then undertaken to determine the reserves held for accounting purposes
which, in totality, 1s not lower than the actuarnally established The group also commissions an annual independent
review by the group's syndicate reporting actuary to ensure that the reserves established are reasonable

Actuanal assumptions

Chain-ladder techniques are appled to premums, paid claims and incurred claims (1 e paid claims plus case
estimates) The basic technique involves the anaiysis of histonical claims development factors and the selection of
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estimated development factors based on historical patterns The selected development factors are then applied to
cumulative claims data for each underwriting year that i1s not yet fully developed to produce an estimated ulimate !
claims cost for each underwriing year

Chaindadder techriques are most appropnate for classes of business that have a relatively stable development
pattern Chain-ladder techniques are less suitable in cases in which the insurer does not have a developed claims
history for a particular class of business or for underwniting years that are still at immature stages of development
where there is a higher level of assumption volatility

The Bornhuetter-Ferguson method uses a combination of a benchmark/market-based estimate and an estimate
based on claims expenence The former i1s based on a measure of exposure such as premiums, the latter 1s based
on the paid or incurred claims observed to date The two estimates are combined using a formula that gives more
weight to the experience-based estimate as time passes This techrnigue has been used In situations where
developed claims expenence was not avallable for the projection (1 e recent underwriting years or new classes of
business)

The expected loss ratio method uses a benchmark/market-based estimate applied to the expected premium and is
used for classes with little or no relevant historical data

The choice of selected results for each underwriting year of each class of business depends on an assessment of the
technique that has been most appropnate to observed historical developments  In certain instances, this has meant
that different technigues or combinations of technigques have been selected for individual underwriing years or
groups of underwnting years within the same class of business  As such, there are many assumptions used to
estimate general insurance habilities

We also review triangulations of the paid/outstanding claim ratios as a way of monitoring any changes in the strength
of the outstanding claim estimates between underwriting years so that adjustment can be made to mitigate any
subsequent over or under reserving To date, this analysis Indicates no systematic change to the outstanding claim
strength across underwriting years

Where a significantly large loss impacts an underwnting year (¢ g the events of 11 September 2001 and the
hurricanes In 2004 and 2005), its development 1s usually very different from the attritional losses  In these
situations, the large loss Is extracted from the remainder of the data and analysed separately by the respective
claims managers using exposure analysis of the policies in force in the areas affected

Further assumptions are required to convert gross of reinsurance estimates of ultimate claims cost to a net of
reinsurance level and to establish reserves for unallocated claims handling expenses and reinsurance bad debt

b) Major assumptions

The main assumption underlying these techniques 1s that the groups past claims development experience (with
appropnate adjustments for known changes) can be used to project future claims development and hence ulimate
claims costs  As such these methods extrapolate the development of premiums, paid and incurred losses, average i
costs per claim and claim numbers for each underwriting year based on the observed development of earlier years l

Throughout, jJudgement 15 used to assess the extent to which past trends may not apply in the future, for example, to
reflect changes in external or market factors such as economic conditions, public attitudes to claiming, levels of
claims inflation, premium rate changes, judicial decisions and legislation, as well as internal factors such as portfolio
mix, policy conditions and claims handling procedures

¢) Changes 1n assumptions

As already discussed, general Insurance business requires many different assumptions The diagram below
illustrates the main categones of assumptions used for each underwriting year and class combinations
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Property Premium rate change
Specialty Lines . VARG Cla:ms inflation
U ol Mix of business
Remsurance A ,

Reporting patterns
Settlement patterns
Judicial decisions
Professional judgement

1993 1994 2006 2007

Given the range of assumptions used, the group’s profit or loss Is relatively insensitive to changes to a particular
assumption used for an underwnting year/class combination However, the group's profit or loss 1s potentially more
sensitive to a systematic change in assumptions that affect many classes, such as judicial changes or when
catastrophes produce more claims than expected The group uses a range of risk mitigation strategies to reduce the
volatiity including the purchase of reinsurance In addition, the group holds additional capital as ICA

The net of remsurance estimates of ultimate claims costs on the 2006 and prior underwriing years has improved by
£64 1m dunng 2007 (2006 £310m) This movement has arnisen from a combination of better than expected
claims expenence coupled with small changes to the many assumptions reacting to the observed experience and
anticipating any changes as a result of the new business written

d) Sensitivity analysis

The estimation of IBNR reserves for future claim notifications 1s subject to a greater degree of uncertainty than the
estimation of the outstanding claims already notified This 1s particularly true for the specialty lines business, which
will typically display greater vanations between initial estimates and final outcomes as a result of the greater degree
of difficulty in estimating these reserves The estimation of IBNR reserves for other business written 1s generally
subject to less vanability as claims are generally reported and settled relatively quickly

As such, our reserving assumptions contain a reasonable margin for prudence given the uncertainties inherent in the
insurance business underwritten, particularly on the longer talled specialty hnes classes

Since March 2005, we have identified a range of possible outcomes for each class and underwnting year
combination directly from our ICA process Comparing these with our pricing assumptions and reserving estimates
gives our management team increased clanty into our perceived reserving strength and relative uncertainties of the
business written

To illustrate the robustness of our reserves, the loss development tables below provide information about historical
claims development by the four segments - specialty ines, property, reinsurance and manne The tables are by
underwriting year which 1 our view provides the most transparent reserving basis We have supplied tables for both
ulttmate gross claims and ultimate net claims

The top part of the table illustrates how the group's estimate of claims ratio for each underwnting year has changed
at successive year-ends The bottom half of the table reconciies the gross and net claims to the amount appearing in
the balance sheet

While the information i the table provides a historical perspective on the adequacy of the claims habilities
established 1n previous years, users of these financial statements are cautioned against extrapolating redundancies
or deficiencies of the past on current claims liabilities The group believes that the estimate of total claims liabilities
as at 31 December 2007 are adequate However, due to inherent uncertainties in the reserving process, It cannot
be assured that such balances will ultimately prove to be adequate |
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2002ae 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007

Gross ulttmate claims % % % % %

' Specialty ines
12 months 714 714 711 689 68 4
24 months 673 699 68 3 657
36 months 650 66 3 652 - )
48 months 574 620 - - B
60 months 513 - - )
Property
12 months 513 652 849 583 590
24 months 385 651 823 467 i
36 months 358 65 4 806 - i
48 months 352 636 - B
60 months 347 - )
Reinsurance
12 months 585 867 1912 525 598
24 months 335 796 1811 245 )

. 36 months 280 748 181 4 - )
48 months 282 724 - )
60 months 252 - - )
Marne
12 months 598 626 824 57 3 573
24 months 446 641 791 439 )
36 months 390 618 698 - )
48 months 362 615 - i
60 months 358 - - i
Total
12 months 629 701 897 632 635
24 months 525 690 867 538 )
36 months 494 663 833 - )
48 months 451 634 - )
60 months 417 - - )
Total ultimate losses (£m) 1,048 4 2699 467 3 6631 484 2 6111 3,544 0
Less paid claims net of reinsurance {(£m) (8496) (1574) (272Q) (3388} (87 5) (19 9) (1,725 2)
Less unearned portion of ulimate losses (£Em) - - - (410) (3091) (350 1)
Gross claims labilities (100% level) (Em) 198 8 1125 195.3 3243 3557 2821 1,468 7
Less unalgned share (£m) (59 6) (33 8) (58 6) (97 3) (78 2) (53 6) (381 1)
Gross claims liabilities, group share (Em) 1392 787 136.7 2270 2775 2285 1,087 6

93



2002ae 2003 2004 2005 20086 2007
Net ultimate claims % % % % %
Specialty ines
12 months 681 686 691 671 674
24 months 649 678 67 4 648 )
36 months 630 650 646 - )
48 months 559 604 - - )
60 months 513 - - . i
Property
12 months 492 507 64 8 623 61.8
24 months 426 616 626 518 )
36 months 404 607 588 - )
48 months 398 59 2 - - )
60 months 394 - - - }
Reinsurance
12 months 604 880 153 6 54 4 553
24 months 382 836 126 7 359 )
36 months 334 809 1249 - )
48 months 341 752 - - )
60 months 312 - - - )
Marine
12 months 555 583 55 6 541 546
24 months 44 3 525 489 430 )
36 months 397 487 428 - )
48 months 392 481 - - )
60 months 391 - - - )
Total
12 months 603 666 735 625 631
24 months 531 655 687 552 )
36 months 505 629 65 2 - )
48 months 468 596 - - )
60 months 4472 - - - )
Total ultimate losses (£m) 5604 2318 3607 412 2 3928 514 9 2,472 8
Less paid claims net of reinsurance (Em) (4839) (1366) (1949 {174 5) (82 8) {193y (1,0920)
Less unearned portion of ulimate losses (£m) - - - - (307N (266 7) (297 4)
Net claims habilties (100% level) (Em) 765 952 1658 2377 2793 2289 1,083 4
Less unaligned share (£m) (230) (286) (497) (713 (60 1) (43 5) (276 2)
Net claims liabilies, group share (£m) 535 666 1161 166 4 2192 185 4 807 2
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Analysis of movements In loss development tables

General
We have updated our loss development tables to show the loss ratics as at 31 December 2007 for each
underwnting year

The benign claims experience during 2007 has produced a general trend of reducing loss ratios across the
underwnting years of our business and we comment on the main movements by team below

In addition, the catastrophe loading on the 2006 underwriting year has been removed as at 31 December 2007 We
note that the 2006 underwnting year loss ratios are relatively consistent with the 2003 underwriting year at the
same stage of development

The opening pasitions for the 2007 underwnting years are similar to the opening positions of the 2006 underwrnting
years, reflecting the relatively consistent rating environment

Specialty Lines
The changes to the opening posittons across underwriting years have ansen from variations in the mix of business

The development of the 2004 underwriting year has not replicated the 2003 underwriting year at the fourth year of
development This 1s largely driven by a higher level of claims uncertainty on the 2004 underwnting year of two
classes at this stage of development As our reserving policy 1s to move the ultimate loss ratios only when we have
sufficient evidence to do so, the timing of release 1s lIkely to differ between underwriting years

Property
The 2006 underwnting year ultimate Igss ratios have reduced as the catastrophe loading has been removed

The ulimate loss ratios on the 2006 underwriting year are higher than the ultimate loss ratios on the 2003
underwriting year at the same stage of development, mainly as a result of claims ansing from our homeowners
account

Reinsurance
The 2006 underwrting year ultimate loss ratios have reduced as the catastrophe loading has been removed

Whilst the gross ultimate loss ratio on the 2005 underwriting year 1s relatively unchanged since 31 December 2006,
we note that the net ultmate loss ratic has reduced caused by an increase In estimated net premium during the
year The increase has arnsen as we do not expect to pay as much outwards remnstatement premium as we had
onginally cautiously anticipated

The 2003 and 2004 underwriting years have continued to develop favourably

Marine
The 2006 underwriting year ultimate loss ratlos have reduced as the catastrophe loading has been removed

The 2005 underwriting year ultimate loss ratios have reduced as the claims experience has been favourable
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The table below illustrates movements in our net claims recognised in the iIncome statement in 2007 by both underwniting

year and by business segments

Specialty lines Property Reinsurance Marine Totai
2007 £m £m £m £m £m
Current year 2028 874 261 552 37156
Prior year
- 2004 and earlier (25 5) (20 (30} {C3) (30 8)
- 2005 year of account 54) (35) (17} {4 6) (15 2)
- 2006 year of account (2 5) (5 3) (52) (5 1) (18 1)
(334) (10 8) (29) (10 0) (64 1}
Net insurance claims 1694 76 6 162 452 3074
Specialty lines Property Reinsurance Marine Total
2006 £m £m £m £m £m
Current year 164 3 682 196 4986 3017
Prior year
- 2003 and earlier (12 3) on (04 {O 4) {13 8)
- 2004 year of account (47) 07) (08) {30) 92
- 2005 year of account (10) {0 5) (47) {18) (80)
(18 0) {19) (59 {5 2) (310)
Net insurance claims 146.3 663 137 44 4 2707
24 Borrowings
The carrying amount and fair values of the non-current borrowings are as follows
2006
Group Company Group Company
£m £m £m £m
Carrying vaiue
Suberdinated debt 90 90 92 92
Tier 2 subordmated debt 147 7 149 8 1457 147 8
156 7 158 8 1549 1570
Fair value
Subordinated debt 90 90 92 92
Tier 2 subordinated debt 146 7 144 6 150 2 148 2
1557 153.6 159.4 1574

The fair value of the borrowings s based on quoted market prices When quoted market prices are not available, a
discounted cash flow mode! 1s used based on a current yield curve appropnate for the remaining term to matunty
The discount rates used in the valuation techniques are based on the borrowing rates
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In November 2004, the group 1ssued subordinated debt of US $18m to JPMorgan Chase Bank, N A (JPMorgan) The
loan was unsecured and interest was payable at the US London interbank offered rate (LIBOR) plus a margin of
3 65% per annum The subordinated notes are due in November 2034

in October 20086, the group 1ssued £150m of unsecured fixed/floating rate subordinated notes that are due in
October 2026 with a first callable date of October 2016 (nterest of 7 25% per annum 1s paid annually in arrears for
the period up to October 2016 From October 2016, the notes will bear annual interest at the rate of 3 28% above
LIBOR The notes were assigned a credit rating of BBB- by S&P’s rating services

The group entered Into a cross currency swap transaction with Lloyds TSB Bank plc (Lloyds TSB) and JPMorgan tn
October 2006 In exchange for £42 3m the group received US$40m from each party which will be finally exchanged
on termination of the contract, being October 2016 Lloyds TSB charges interest at US three-month LIBOR plus

2 25%, while JPMorgan charges interest at US three-month LIBOR plus 2 23% As part of the agreement, the group
receives interest at 7 25% from both parties  There 1s an option to terminate the swaps in October 2011 and
annually thereafter until October 2016

The group also entered into an interest rate swap transaction with Lloyds TSB and JPMorgan in October 2006  Under
this agreement, the fixed interest rate of 7 25% on the balance of £107 7m (£53 8m from each party) 1s exchanged
for floating interest rate of UK LIBOR plus 2 24% with Lloyds TSB and UK LIBOR plus 2 23% with JPMorgan This
agreement terminates on 17 October 2016 with an optional early termination 1n October 2011 and annually
thereafter

In addition to these borrowings we operate a £50m syndicated short-term banking faciity, managed through Lloyds
TSB The facility was successfully renegotiated for three years in November 2007 if funds are drawn the charge 1s
1 25% above UK LIBOR, letters of credit raised against the facility are charged at 1 25% At the end of 2007, no
drawings had been made against this facility

25 Denvative financial instruments

The group uses fair value interest rate hedges and net iInvestment hedges tc manage some of its exposures The
group entered into denvative financial instruments to manage this nsk

2007 20086
£m £m

Fair value
Interest rate swap (0 4) (30)
Cross currency swap 16 06
12 {2 4)

a) Farr value hedges

As described in note 24, the group has hedged its fixed rate borrowing using fixed-to-floating interest rate swaps In
2007, the hedge was effective and therefore the group did not recognise any gamn or ioss In the income statement in
respect of the hedge

b) Hedge of net investment in foreign entity

The group's US dollar denominated borrowing 1s designated as a hedge of the net investment in the group's US
subsidianes The foreign exchange gain of £0 1m on translation of the borrowing to sterling at the balance sheet
date was recognised in “foreign currency transtation reserve” This offsets the gain or [0ss on translation of the net
investment in the group's US based subsidianes In 2007, the hedge was effective and therefore the group did not
recognise any gain or loss in the income statement In respect of the hedge

26 Other payables

2007 2006
Group Company Group Company
£m £m £m £m
Reinsurance premiums payable 593 - 1082 -
Accrued expenses including staff bonuses 342 - 254 -
Other payables 88 08 99 01
Amounts due to subsidiaries - 390 - 376
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Due to syndicate 623 and associates 43 - 92 -

106 6 39.8 152.7 377
27 Retirement benefit obligations
2007 2006
£m £m
Retirement benefit obligations 09 19

Of the £0 9m (2006 £1 9m) of retirement benefit obligations £0 3m (2006 £0 5m) 1s recoverable from syndicate 623
Beazley Furlonge Limited operates a funded pension scheme ("the Beazley Furlonge Limited Pension Scheme”)
providing benefits based on final pensionable pay, with contributions being charged to the income statement so as to
spread the cost of pensions over employees’ working lives with the company The contributions are deterrmined by a
quahfied actuary using the projected unit method and the most recent valuation was at 31 December 2007

Penston benefits
Amount recogmsed in the balance sheet

2007 2006
£m £m
Present value of funded obligations ' 17 5 16 0
Fair value of plan assets (15 5) {13 3)
20 27
Unrecognised actuanal losses (11) {08
Liabtlty in the balance sheet 09 1.9
Amounts recognised in the Income statement
Current service cost - 03
Interest cost 08 06
Expected return on plan assets {09) (086)
(0 1) 03
Movement in present value of funded obhgations recognised tn the balance sheet
Balance at 1 January 16.0 141
Current service cost - 03
Interest cost 08 06
Actuanal losses o7 10
Balance at 31 December 175 16 0
Movement in fair value of plan assets recognised in the balance sheet
Balance at 1 January 13.3 101
Expected return on plan assets 09 06
Actuanal (losses)/gains 04 05
Employer contnbutions 17 21
Balance at 31 December 15.5 13.3
Plan assets are compnsed as follows:
Equrties 125 109
Bonds 30 24
Total 155 133
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The actual return on plan assets was £0 4m (2006 £1 2m)

Principal actuanal assumptions
Discount rate

Inflation rate

Expected return on plan assets
Future salary increases

Future pensions Increases

Life expectancy

28 Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax asset
Deferred income tax hability

The movement In the net deferred iIncome tax 1s as follows

Balance at 1 January
Income tax charge

Foreign exchange translation differences

Balance at 31 December

Plant and equipment
Intangible assets

Other receivables

Trade and other payables
Syndicate profits

Retirement benefit obligations
Tax losses

Net deferred income tax account

Plant and equipment
Intangible assets

Other receivables

Trade and other payables
Syndicate profits

Retirement benefit obligations
Tax losses

Net deferred income tax account

55% 52%

34% 32%

6 2% 6 3%

62% 4 4%

30% 27%

84 years 84 years
2007 2006
£m £m
45 35
{34 0) (11 6)
(29 5) (81)
(81) (36)
(21 4) {4 1)
- (04)
(29 5) 81)
Balance Recognised In Balance 31 Dec
1 Jan 07 income o7
£m £m £m
12 (09) 03
07) - (07)
(01) 03 02
22 (22) -
{14 8) (19 3) (34 1)
06 {0 3) 03
35 10 45
(8.1) {21.4) (29.5)
Balance Recognised in Balance 31 Dec¢
1Jan 06 Income 06
£m £m £m
04 08 12
(0 3) {0 4) (07)
{0 4) 03 (01)
11 11 22
{v7) (7 1) (14 8)
c9 (0 3) 06
24 11 35
(3 6) (4.5) (81)

The group has recogrised deferred tax assets on unused tax losses to the extent that it 15 probable that future
taxable profits will be available against which unused tax losses can be utilised
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29 Operating lease commitments
The group leases land and buiidings under a non-cancellable operating lease agreement

The future minimum lease payments under the non-cancellable operating lease are as follows

2007 2006

£m £m

No later than 1 year 13 13
Later than 1 year and no later than 5 years 66 58
Later than 5 years 58 70
137 141

30 Related party transactions

The group and company have related party relationships with syndicate 623, its subsidiaries, associates and its
directors

301 Syndicate 623
Beazley Furlonge Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of the group, received management fees and profit
commissions for providing a range of management services to syndicate 623 1n which the corporate member

subsidianes participated

The value of the services provided and the balances with the syndicate are as follows

2007 2006
£m £m
Services provided
Syndicate 623 132 159
Balances due:
Due to syndicate 623 (19 (6 3)
30 2 Key management compensation
2007 2006
£m £m
Satanies and other short-term benefits 92 86
Post employment benefits 09 04
Share-based remuneration 15 05
116 95

Key management include executives and non-executive directors and other senior management

Further detalls of directors’ shareholdings and remuneration can be found In the directors’ remuneration report on
pages

303 Other related party transactions

At 31 December 2007, the group had a balance payable to the associates of £2 5m (2006 £1 8m) All transactions
with associates and subsidianes are priced on an arm’s length basis

100



31 Parent company and subsidiary undertakings
Beazley Group plc 1s the ultimate parent and the ultimate controlling party within the group

The following s a hist of all the subsidianes

Country of Ownership

incorporation interest Nature of business
Beazley Furionge Holdings Limited England 100% Intermediate holding company
Beazley Furlonge Limited England 100% Hoyd's underwriting agents
BFHH Limited England 100% Dormant
Beazley Investments Limited England 100% Investment company
Beazley Corporate Member Limited England 100% Underwnting at Lloyd'’s
Beazley Dedicated No 2 Limited England 100% Underwnting at Lloyd’s
Global Two Limited Englanc 100% Underwriting at Lloyd’s
Beazley Underwnting Limited England 100% Underwniting at Lloyd’s
Beazley Management Limited England 100% Intermediate management company
Beazley Staff Underwriting Limited England 100% Underwnting at Lloyd’s
Beazley Solutions Limited England 100% Insurance services
Beazley Corporate Member No 2 England 100% Dormant
Beazley Corporate Member No 3 England 100% Dormant
Beazley USA Services, Inc USA 100% Insurance services
Beazley Holdings, Inc USA 100% Holding company
Beazley Group (USA) General Partnership USA 100% General partnership
Beazley Insurance Company, Inc USA 100% Underwnte admitted lines
Beazley Limited Hong Kong 100% Insurance services
Tasman Corporate Limited England 100% Underwnting at Lioyd's
Beazley Pte Limited Singapore 100% Underwnting at Lioyd's

32 Contingencies

321 Funds at Lloyd's
The foliowing amounts are subject to a deed of charge in favour of Lloyd’s to secure underwrnting commitments

2007 2006
Company £m £m
Debt securities and other fixed income securities 3062 2920
306.2 2920

The parent company has provided a financial guarantee 1n favour of its subsidiary Beazley Insurance Company, Inc
which unconditionally guarantees the payment of amounts due to third party reinsurers in the event of the inability of
the subsidiary company to meet its obligations

33 Foreign exchange rates

The group used the following exchange rates to translate foreign currency assets, labtlities, ncome and expenses
into the group's presentation currency

2007 2006
Average Year end spot Average  Yearend spot
US dollar 200 199 184 196
Canadian dollar 215 196 209 228
Euro 146 136 147 148

101



Admitted carrler

An insurance company authonsed to do business in the US An agreement 1s entered into which stipulates the terms

and conditions under which a business must conduct within a state in the US

Aggregates/aggregations

Accumulations of insurance loss exposures which result from underwriting multiple nsks that are exposed to

common causes of loss

Aggregate excess of loss

The retnsurer indemnifies an insurance company {the reinsured) for an aggregate (or cumulative) amount of losses n

excess of a specified aggregate amount

A.M. Best

A M Best s a worldwide insurance-rating and information agency whose ratings are recognised as an ideal

benchmark for assessing the financial strength of insurance related orgamsations, following a ngorous quantitative

and qualitative analysis of a company’s balance sheet strength, operating performance and busmess profile

Beazley Group plc obtained an A rating, while Beazley Insurance Company, Inc , received a rating of A

Binding authority .
A contracted agreement between a managing agent and a coverholder under which the coverholder is authonised to ;
enter into contracts of insurance for the account of the members of the syndicate concerned, subject to specified

terms and conditions

Capaclty

This 15 the maximum amount of premiums that can be accepted by a syndicate Capacity also refers to the amount of

Insurance coverage allocated to a particular pelicyholder or in the marketplace in general

Catastrophe relnsurance

A form of excess of l0ss reinsurance which, subject to a specified limit, indemnifies the reinsured company for the

amount of loss in excess of a specified retention with respect to an accumulation of losses resulting from a

catastrophic event or series of events |
Claims

Demand by an insured for indemnity under an insurance contract

Claims ratlo

Ratio, in percent, of net insurance claims to net earned premiums

Combined ratlo

Ratio, in percent, of the sum of net insurance claims, expenses for acquisition of insurance contracts and
administrative expenses to net earned premiums  This 1s also the sum of the expense ratio and the claims ratio
Coverholder/managing general agent

A firm erither in the Urited Kingdom or overseas authorised by a managing agent under the terms of a binding '
authority to enter into contracts of insurance in the name of the members of the syndicate concerned, subject to

certain wrnitten terms and conditions A Lloyd's broker can act as a coverholder

Deferred acquisitlon costs (DAC)

Costs incurred for the acquisition or the renewal of insurance policies (e g brokerage, premium levy and staff related

costs) which are capitalised and amortised over the term of the contracts

Earnings per share {(EPS) - Basic/Dlluted

Ratio, in pence, calculated by dividing the consolidated profit after tax by the weighted average number of ordinary

shares 1ssued, excluding shares owned by the group For calculating diluted earnings per share the number of !
shares and profit or loss for the year 1s adjusted for all dilutive potential ordinary shares like share cptions granted to

employees

Excess per risk reinsurance

A form of excess of loss reinsurance which, subject to a specified imit indemnifies the reinsured company against

the amount of loss In excess of a specified retention with respect of each rnisk involved in each loss

Expense ratio

Ratio, in percent, of the sum of expenses for acquisition of msurance contracts and administrative expenses to net

earned premiums

Facultative relnsurance

A reinsurance nisk that 1s placed by means of a separately negotiated contract as opposed to one that 1s ceded under

a reinsurance treaty

Gross premlums written

Amounts payable by the insured, excluding any taxes or duties levied on the premium, including any brokerage and

commission deducted by intermedraries

Hard market

An insurance market where prevalent prices are high, with restrictive terms and conditions offered by insurers
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Horizontal limits

Reinsurance coverage limits for multiple events

Incurred but not reported (IBNR)

These are anticipated or hikely claims that may result from an insured event although no claims have been reported
so far

International accounting standards (IAS)/International financial reporting standards (IFRS)

Standards formulated by the IASB with the intention of achieving internationally comparable financial statements
Since 2002, the standards adopted by the IASB have been referred to as International Financial Reporting Standards
{IFRS) UntH existing standards are renamed, they continue to be referred to as International Accounting Standards
(IAS)

international accounting standards board (JASB)

An international pane! of accounting experts responsible for developing 1AS/IFRS

Lead underwriter

The underwriter of a syndicate who 1s responsible for setting the terms of an insurance or reinsurance contract that
1S subscribed by more than one syndtcate and who generally has pnimary responsibility for handling any claims
ansing under such a contract

Line

The proportion of an insurance or reinsurance nsk that 1s accepted by an underwnter or which an underwriter is
willing to accept -

Lloyd's

Lloyd's 1s the world's leading specialist insurance market and expects to have the capacity to wrte £16 1bn of
business in 2007 It occuples stxth place in terms of global reinsurance premium income, and Is the second largest
surplus lines insurer in the US In 2007, 66 syndicates are underwniting insurance at Lloyd's, covering all classes of
business from more than 20C countnes and territornies worldwide

Managed syndicate

The combination of syndicate 2623 and 623 through which the group underwrite insurance business

Managing agent

A company that 1s permitted by Lioyd’s to manage the underwriing of a syndicate

Managing general agent (MGA}

An insurance intermediary aching as an agent on behalf of an insurer

Medium tall

A type of insurance where the claims may be made a few years after the period of insurance has expired

Net assets per share

Ratio, in pence calculated by dividing the net assets (total equity} by the number of shares 1ssued

Net premlums written

Net premiums written 1s equal to gross premiums written less outward reinsurance premiums written

Provislon for outstanding claims

Prowvision for claims that have already been incurred at the balance sheet date but have erther not yet been reported
or not yet been fully settled

Rate -

The premium expressed as a percentage of the sum insured or hmit of indemnity

Relnsurance to close (RITC)

A reinsurance which closes a year of account by transfernng the responsibility for discharging all the habilities that
attach to that year of account (and any year of account closed into that year) plus the night to buy any income due to
the closing year of account into an open year of account 1n return for a premium

Retention limits

Limits imposed upon underwriters for retention of exposures by the group after the application of reinsurance
programmes

Return on equlity (ROE)

Ratio, In percent calculated by dividing the consolidated profit after tax by the average total equity

Retrocessional relnsurance
The reinsurance of the reinsurance account It serves to 'lay-off' nsk
Risk
This term may vanously refer to
a) the possibility of some event occurning which causes injury or loss,
b) the subject matter of an insurance or reinsurance contract, or
c) annsured penl
Short tail
A type of insurance where claims are usually made dunng the term of the policy or shortly after the policy has
expired Property insurance 15 an example of short tall business
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Soft market

An insurance market where prevalent prices are low, and terms and conditions offered by insurers are less
restnctive

Stamp capaclty

The volume of business measured in gross written premiums net of acquisition costs underwritten by the group
through its managed syndicates at Lloyd's of London

Surplus lines insurer

An nsurer that underwnites surplus lines insurance in the USA Lloyd's underwniters are surplus lines insurers in all
Jurisdictions of the USA except Kentucky and the US Virgin Islands

Total shareholder return

The increase In the share pnce plus the value of any dividends paid and proposed during the year

Treaty reinsurance

A reinsurance contract under which the reinsurer agrees to offer and to accept all nsks of certam size within a
defined class

Unearned premliums reserve

The portion of premium income in the business year that is atinbutable to penods after the balance date 1s
accounted for as unearned premiums In the underwnting provisions
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